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ndependent Audiors Report

To the Shareholder and the Board of Directors of Agrarian Credit
Corporation Joint Stock Company

Ciualified Opinion

We have audited the unconsolidatad financial statements of Agranian Credit Corporation
Joint Stock Company (the “Company’), which comprise the unconsolidated stalement of
financial position as at 31 December 2022, the unconsolidated stalements of profit or loss,
comprahensive income, changes in equity and cash Bows for the year then ended, and
noes, comprising significant accounting podcies and oiber axplanatory Bformation

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matler described in the Basis for Qualified
Opiwon section of owr reporl. the accompanying unconsolidated financial statements
prasent fairty, in all material respects, the unconsolidated financial position of the Company
as at 31 December 2022 end |8 unconsclidated financial performance and i3
unocansofidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Standards as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Beard (IFRS),

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Az described in Nole B fo the unconsoldated financial slalements; as al 31 December
2021, with regard to loans issued 0 conporate custemars, classified in Stage 3 of credi
nsk, with the grass carmying amount of KZT 304,221,793 thousand, the Company
racagnised en allvwance for expected credit losses in the amaunt of KZT 82,564,883
thousand, respactively. IFRS 9 Financial instrumerds requires enfifies o use rassonable
and supportabie information on which assumgptions and expectations are based when
measuring expecied creditlosses. We disagree with cerlain assumptions used to estimate
the expected cash flows from the coliateral realisation for credit-impaired loans to corporate
custiomers and belleve (hal the allowence for expected credil losses is significantly
undarstated as at 31 December 2021. During 2022, the Company reassessed tha fair value
of collatenal for loans issued 1o corporate cusiomers and recalculated the corresponding
Bllowance for expacied credit [osses as at 31 December 2022, having recognised a parl of
tha impairment logsas an loans to cuslomers directly in the Company's equily in 2022. The
effects of this deparure from IFRS on ta alowances for expecied credit losses in the
unconsolidated statement of financial pogilion as af 31 December 2021 and ather related
elements making up the unconsclidated stalements of profil o loss, comprehensive
income and changes in eguity for the vears ended 31 December 2022 and 34 Decamber
2021 hawve nat been determingd
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We conducied our audit in accordance with Intemationsl Standards on Auditing (15As).
Owr responsibilibes under those etandards are further described. in the Audiors’
Responshilifties for the Audl of the Uncornsalidated Enancial Siafemants section of our
repart. We are independent of the Company In acoordance with the Intermationat Ethice
Standards Heard faf  Accountants Intemstional Cede of Ethice for Brofessional
Accourtants (including Intemational independence Standards) (\ESSA Coda) togather
with the ethical requirements thal are relevani to our audit of the unconsolidated financial
statements In the Rapublic of Kazakhsian, and we have fuliled owr other ethical
responsibilities in accordancs with these requirements and the IESEA Code. Wa balisva
that the sudt evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis
for cur quakified cplmian,

Key Audit Matters

Key sudih matters are those matlers thatl, in owr professional judgment, were of most
significance in our eudi of he unconsolidated financial slatements of the current perod,
These matters weare addressad in the context of our audit of the unconsolidated financial
siatements a5 a whole, ang in forming our Spinicn thereon, and we do mot provice a
separate opinicn on these matiers, In addition o the malter described in the Basis for
Califed Opinion section we have determined the matters described below 1o be the key
audil matters to be commuenicated in our repod

KPMG

Expecied credif losses (ECL) for loans fo cusiomers

Please refier o the Motés 3, 4,9, 22 and 26 in the unconsolidated inancial slatemants,

The key audii matter

How the matter was addressed in our audft

Loans lo customers represent assets of
Esgalg and are stated nel of allowsenca
for expecied credit insaes (ECL) thal ks
eshmated on a regular basls and &
sensitive o assumptions used,

The Ceompeny wses ECL wvalualian
mdel, which reguires management o
apply professional judgement and o
make assumpbons related o the
following key dareas,

—lrrdy  |denffication of significant
increase in credil sk and defaul
evanis (gllocation befween siages
1, 2 and 3 in accordance with the
IFRS 8 Financlal instrumenis);

—assassment of probebility of default
(PD) and loss given default (LGDY;

= gagegsmeni of add-on adjustment to
sccaunt for difisrent scenarios and
forward-locking Information;

—agsessment of expected cash Bows
forecast for lpans G0 cusiomess
which are classified as  credit-
impaired,

Due 1o the significant volume of loans
1o custorners and refsted estimation
uncertainty of expecled cradit losses
thereon, this area is a key audit matier,

We ansiysed the key aspecis of the Company's
mathodology and policies related o ECL
astimale for compliance with the requiremeants
al IFRS 8 including involvemen! of sur own
specialists in financis rsk managemeanl Wa
lested the principle of operation of the
respective madels used by the Company,

To analyse the adequacy of professional
Judgement and assumptions made by the
management In réfation lo the allowance for
ECL estimate, our awdil procadures inchded
the fallowing:

—We fesled design  and  operating
effectiveness of coniols owver  limely
reflection of delinguency events refated o
IDEns W CUSomers.

—For a sampla of loans to customers, for
which the potantial changes in ECL estimate
may have a significan! Impast on the
unconsolidaled financigl  sisiements, we
tested whather stages are comectly
assigned by the Company Dy analysing
fingrcial and noninancial imformation, as
wel @2 assumplions and professions|
Judgermenis, applled by the Company.

| =—For & sample of lbans to cusiomers we
lested the coractness of data inputs for PD
and LGD -calculations by agresing o
underlying documents as well a5 by verifying
e gasessmanl of value of collateral and
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expected Timing of % realksaton wssd to
estimata ECL.

—\We also analysed the overall adeguacy of
the adjustmenl o accounl for varous
seenarios and lorward4ooking information
and compared il wilth our aslimates laking
into aecaun! e currant and future economic

sRuation,

—iWe alEo assessed whether  the
unconsolidatoed financial statemeniz
disclogures approprately  reflect  the
Company's exXposure to chedit rek.

Loans recelved af balow markal rates

| Plaase refer to the Notes 3 {Govemment grants], 13, 15, 17 and 20 in the unconsalidated
financlal stalements.

The key audit matier How the malter was addressed in our sudif

During 2022 the Company abiained
financing from the Govemment via
raceipls of leans from the Ministry of
Finane and locy execufive bodies in
the amount of KEZT 170828728
thousand bearing an mterest rate of
001% pa and in the amount
ELT G00.000 thousand bearing a
nominal intersst rate of 1.00% p.a., n
eddition the loars in the amount of
8,300,000 thousand bearing a marminal
interest rale of CH% pa. wems
received from the parent company as

part of the Gowernmeanl Programma far |

funding the agro-ndusirial compiex, At
initial racognition these knans received
wiery  recognized st falr  vaelues
measured by applying relevant market
inferes!  rater Io  discouni the
coniractual fulure cash fiows.

The difference of KZT 44 496654
thousand betwasn the far velue and
fhe nomimal valee of loens receved
was recognised as & govemmant grant,
which i subsequently recognised in

profit or loss wpon  fulfilment of
conditions  attsched 1t respective
financiig.

Tha astimats of the fair valve of fhe
laans faceived requires management o
BABICISA significant professional
judgement. Accounting judgemants ars
glsc  meguéred In determining  tha
prasentation and classificaien of he
differance between the nominal values
and fair velua of loanz received

Dur audit procedures included essessing of
managemant’s  judgment whether the
difference batween the fair value and the
naminal value of loans recaived represents a
government granl o the difference shoukd be
recognised in equlty.

We compared assumpbons used by
management to determine market rates appled
o calculale fair values of the lbans recalvad o
avallable markal information.

| We assessed the appraprialaness of mathods
uvsed 1o caleulate incoma from govemment
granis,

We also assessad whether the unconsalidated
financial statement disclosures appropriately
reflect the information in relation o govemment
grants  recogriised in the  unconsolidaled
financial slatemanis.
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Cither Information

Managemern | responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annusl Repont for the year 2022 but does not include the
uresnsalidated finenciel statements and our suditors’ repor thereon. The Annual Repost
for ihe year 2022 is expected to be made svailable to us after the date of this auditors’
repan,

Our opinicn on the wnconsolidated financial statemenis does not cover he other
information and we will not express any farm of assurance conciusion thanson,

In connection with our audit of the unconsclidated financial statements, our responsibility
I5 to read the other information ientified above when i becomas available and, in doing
50, consider whether the ofher Information i materally inconsistent with the
unconsdlidaled financial slatements or our knowledge oblained in the audit. or otherwise
appears o b malarially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for thel

Unconsolidated Financlal Stalomoents

Managemeet is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidaied
financial stalements in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control s management
determings is necessary 1o enable the preparation of the unconsolidated financial
siatements fal ans e from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud o error.

In preparing the unconsolidated fingncial statements, management i respansible for
asssessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicatle,
matiers related io going concern and using the going concam basis of accounting unlass
managerment aeither intende o liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
reaisiic afternative but o do so.

Those charged with governance are responeible for oversesing the Company’s financial
refarting process

Auditors’ Responsibllities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Our objecfives are o obtain reagonable sssurance sbout whether the unconsolidates
financial stalements as a whole are free from malerial misstalernant, whather due to fraud
or arror. and to issue an auditors’ report hat includes cur opinion. Reasoneble assurance
i @ high level of ssurance. but is not & guarantee that an audil conducted in sccordance
with 345 wil always detect a material misstaiement when it exists. Misstatemenis can
ange from fraud or error and are considered matenal if, individuady or in the aggregate.
they could reasonably be expected 1o infuence the economic decislons of users taken on
the basis of thess unconsolldated inancial stalemenls.

As part of an audit in accordance wilth 15As, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professiona sceplicism throughout the audt We also;

— ldantify and assess the risks of material misstatermani of the unconsolidated inancial
ststements, whether due lo frawd or error. design and perform audit procedures
responeive to those risks, and obiain audif evidence that is sufficent and appropriate
o provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of nol delecting a material misstatemen
resulting from fraud is higher than for cne resulling from erar, as fraud may Invalve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misreprasentabions, of the override of intemal
cantrol

~— Dbtain an undarstanding of internal control redavant to the audilin arder to design audit
procedures thal are appropriabe in the circumatences, but not for the purpose of
axpressing en opinton on the effectivenass of the Company's internsl contral

= Evaluate the appropriataness of accounting policies used and the reasonablenass of
accounting esimeies &nd related fstlosumas made by management,
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— Caonclude on he approprateness of management's use of the going concam basss of
accouniing and, based on the awdil evidence oblained, whether a material uncartainty
exists rsfated to events or conditions thet may cesl significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concem. fwe conclude that & material uncertainty exists,
Wi are required to drew attention in our suditors’ report 1o the related disclosures in
the unconsolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are Inadequate, to
madify our apinden. Cur conclusions are based on tha audd evidence ohtalned up to
the date of our suditors’ report. However, fulure events or condiions may cause the
Company to cease [0 continue as a going condern.

— Evaluate the overall presentstion, strecture and comlent al the unconsolidaied fnanciz
sfatements, including the disclosures, and whether the unbonsolidated financis
statemenis regrasent the underdying transactions and events in a manner (hal achisyes
fair presantation.

We communicate with those charged with governance ragasding, amang other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the sudit and significant audit fndings, Including any
significant deficiencies in mtemal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with gowvernance with a statement thatl we have complied
with relevant athical requirements regarding independance, and communicate with them
all relationships and cther matters thal may masonably be thoughl to bear on ouwr
independence. and whare applicable, actions taken 1o eliminate thrests or ssfeguerds
applied.

From the matiers communicated with those charged wilh governance, we determéing those
mallers thal were of most signifcance In the audil of the wunconsolidaied financial
staterments of the currard period and are therefora the key sudit matters, We describe these
matters in aur audifors’ repor unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the meter or when, in exthamely ram cicumstances, we determing that a matter shoukd
nol be communicated in our report because the adverss conseguencas of 2oing 5o woulkd
reasonably be expecied io outweigh the public interest banefits of such communcation,

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' repaort &

Agsel Lirda
Carified Auditar
of the Republic of
Audtor's Qualification i

Mo, M@-0000055 of 27 August 2012

KPMG Audit LLC

Sfate License fo conduwst aualt #0000027 dated & December 2006 issusd by the Miniziy
af Finance of the Repubiic of Kazakhstan

5
Sargey DAmantyey
Ganeral Director of KPMG Audit LLT
acting o the basis of ils Charter

23 May 2025
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Comsobdased Finamcal Stements foe 2022

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Az at 31 December 2022
oo KL

Assets

Cash and cash eqmvalents

Loans to banks

Loans o custamers

Fomance leaze receivables

Assets classtfied g3 held for sale

[ reessmient secunries

leowestment property

Propery, plant and equipmen:
Intarygbile ssees

VAT and other tmnes recoverable
LR COpOTate iReome f aisets
(kher psseis

Total assats

Liahilitses

Amasnrs due 1o the Shascholder
Amouds due to the Govemment
Amaniais due fo stnte and hndgr.l CHIEANLRALIO 5
Aomvouees g o credin msmnaeons

Dichit secunties vsssed

Cureeni esinatcel labahics

D ferred cogporate moome tax balilres
Deferred VAT habiliries

Cravirimnt grantn

Uther labalines

Towl hakiligea

Equiry
Shaee capital

Heserve copital

[ Accwmulared lossee] / setxdied wimangs
Total equity

Toral Hahilities and eguing

Carrving value of one ordinary share (KZT)
Signed and sutho ._ pab-h

23 May 2023

Clued Acomarian

Tibr saiectrd explawartony - noses S8 ol o oy TF o 72 fores aoor imiggrad parst af these comsodioated Fvamisn Jdaemus.

Af Decermber AF December

Nowe 2 2021

7 172 484,306 2853173

d HLSIR, 18T 12,708,512

b TEA.304, 7000 6o, 6,237

1 03 8465553 Daka 642

1024785 1,6 S06

= A14 125

2H50493 3124634

bk T L4235 5804

FRIIT G246E3

1 B.523,586 I 080,70

19 1,950 KOG I, 785,036
12 036,522 5,74 341

1,329,887, 185 Bibs 484,97

13 B0 001, T3 Tk, 2004 22

14 640,747 473 -

15 1B2,850k442 L, 514,305

I TO5F2 417 -

17 R4, T I0R 1,654, 258

1403575 L, 205, L:20%

19 12348307 fbl445]

21 10917373 =

k| 4, H23 093 A0,515,010

14 16,573,686 20,731,001

S04, i, M) 535,795,337

22 401,536,504 254,366,470

22 13,B46.278 11,237,766

713577 364,805

454,900,585 270,689,441

1,329,847, 385 BOG,484,078

22 1,035,40 106685

Lieputy Chatrpesson of the Manapement Foard,
member of the KMarmpement Board

11
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
For the year ended 31 December 2022

i KZT
Mo P e 202y

lonerest income caleulated using effective interest method
Cash and cash equivalents L2396, T84 b TE AR
Loans to hanks 4418907 3,925,001
Laoans to custamers 105,075,892 65,920,438
Investment secunties 15548 A 042

122,025,131 78,284,680
Orher interest income
Finance lesse seceivahles 27,767 320 45 o4
Chibier peceivables (cesaion) BHIDS5 =

149,880,546 TE, 53, 364
listeresi EXCTIRE
Amaoen due o the Shareholder [ B TEh A0 (13,313,105
Amounty due o the Govemmens of the Republic of Kizaklatan (12,087 124 T B bl
Amaunts due o it and bedges ogrnisations [18,939,424) 1% 183,325,
A duc oo coodst msaanons (3,444,953 -
Deht secunties sssued (33,074 286 CIEG15.05 0,
Chibier lahbilitics 1895 27 143

(76,228,572} (40,064, 360)
et mrerest income T3.654,974 35,270,004
Expenies on credit lnsses 23 {37,525038) 7.5300
Net interest income net of expenses on credit losses 36,129,936 38,192,474
et forvign exchange {Joss) gun (43,728 N R
Personnel expenses 24 (9,180,004 (4,573,765
Cither admaistrative expense 24 4, 023,143) (24635,235)
Mt lesses from modifscanon of fnance] ageers mcasured an
amarmsed oot (002,344 miuy
Cither income / [Coprnses), nist 25 180,065 (20,232,159
Mon-inierest expense (13,764,202 (27,204,980)
Profit before mcome wax 22,365,644 10,897 494
Corporare income X eXpense ] (LE30, 314 i%ﬁ&h!
Piufit for the vear 19,535,328 140

Chael Aceountant

23 hlay 023

Tt selevted epiamabury metes sof wad o pages 15 tw 72 Sormw an g et of tlese swmsoibilated [Faansial rimiemmenss,

Deputy Chairperson of the Managemeat Board,
memiber of the hlanagement Board

|
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the vear ended 31 December 2022

LULTE

Profic for the vear 19,535,328 8,005 00
Chher comprehensive meome for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 19,535,328 8,695 044

Signed and suthorised for issue on behalf of the Management Board of the Group:

Chict Accountant

T sviveted moplamatery waves and aud an pages 1500 72 faree an intgrod paet of therse conmdidinted framna/ satements

Depaty Chasrperson of the Management Board,
membier af the Manapemeni Board

i2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Y KAT

2022 AEH
Cash fAows from operarng actvites
Interost neceived 204 44,613371
Interest paid (33136135 (25,251 450
Ferscnnel expenses puid {BAE2TT B R L]
[xher operetng expense, e (754,163 [2, 15051 1)
Cash flows from operating actvinies before clianges m operating asseis and
Habilides B0, 502 0ird 15,371, 21E
e fisriearelf derves fr ateraling musl
Lozms o banks B I65,R18 33554671
Lavams o costiomerns (93,17 04K 58 TR T 54)
Finance lease (170 B1CH =
Cither nssets 274,123) 674,130
M fpreaa! (uleorwaiie | £ aferniap Soladier
oo e (372,043 6,207,014
Chber abibies 221530 a7,
Met cash used in operating activitics before corporaic mcome tax paid (124 175 830) {25, 00, T T
Corrpesate mesine tax prod {4, 1, 40 [3,520.T6E)
et canh used in operating activities (120,242, 234} {41,827 5633
Cash Nows foan mvesing activities
Actuston of propeny, plast and squipment, sntangible sesets [#62 4B5| 33,726
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and egupment, intangible assets 12761 5957
Proceeds from repavment of invesrment secanties 233, M3 -
Procesds from business combimticn (N o) 43 934 757 At 44 24
Pet cosh from investing activities 33,718,426 46,551,520
Cash flows from Fivandcing scimvities
Preszeesly from loana from che Government of the Republic of Kamkbaran
(Nater 14, 28) 14,0008 (401 00,000,000
Bepurment of ans from the Govemmest of the Repubie of Kazakhstan (Mate 28] {0, R 0T (000, N
Proceeds fram loss (nom hanks (T 16, 28 TRATT -
Bepurment of loans from crede ssnmmons v J8) i, E9H, 9501) -
Procesds (oo Joans from the Bhareholder Mg 10 28] A, 300 (00 1B 500,19
Beparment of loass fom the Shicchalder MWae 28] (B4, 350,057 (52 182 190
Dielat sevcurines mssued Svafer 17, 24) S0 2366 H3951 457
Beparment uf slebn soountes jsseed (Sae 28] {0, B D (38785, 341
Pivpeeads fam lownme fmen state snd budper arganimamane (Toner 15, 28] 3,30 126 5,005 11
Reparment of loans e stive and bodiger organmsanons (NWare 28] (TA 02T (6T [143,152,235)
Dividends paid MNate 22} 60186, 528 (13,762,035,
Net cash from financing activities 154,334,516 22,457,143
Effect of expected credsf Jasses an cash aad cash equivabenrs [2,042) (U3,
Effect of moverneats in exchange mtes on cash and cash equavalens {133.52% £
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 69,631,133 27,210,068
Cush and cush pyuivalens s the hlg:.nm.ng of the year 102,853,173 Tﬁrt_.lém,ﬁ
Cash and caish equivalents ar the end of vear Mo 7 I7TL 484, 306 102 883 173

Chzef Accounsant

23 May 2023

The sefectrd gxfrianatury wiws sof oul on g 15 to 72 fores an imegrad poer of theie consniidaral faansal sttty

Dieputy Chatsperson of the Management Board,
semther of the Managemien: Board

4



Agranan Credin Corporation |50 Consabdared Finanaal Stasements for 2022
EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o KLT

Reporting entity
These consolfared financial stareements comiprse the fnancial stafements. of Ageamin Credel Corporation [omt Stock
Cempany (the “Company™) and finencial statements of it snbsidiary [the “Groap™).

The Company was estabbshed by the Decsee of the Govemment of the Republic of Kazakhstan No.137 dared 25 January
2007 “Chu the Livnr of v Agricadtionn! Sector Lewdeng™ a5 2 joint sinck company o accordance with the lepisbation of the Repubhc
of Kazakhstan. The Company 15 opersting on the basts of & beense to earry out operstions provided for by the banking
lepisbinen of e Republic of Karakhenn, Mo, 5.2.24 dated 5 Noveriher 2013, issued br the Committes for Repalation and
supervision of the Financial Market avd Finsocial Insthetions wnder the Nanonal Bank of the Repulilic of Kazakhstan
(“WHRE"), The acovities of the Company are regulated by the Agency for Regulavon and Development of the Financal
Market of the Bepublic of Kazakhstan,

The Company's poncipal scevie b promotion of mdeimlisstion and dvemficason of the sgriculunl sector thrmugh
developmeni of the sffordable lending svarem for agro-mdusemal complex entties, perdnrmance of bank bormwing operanons
on the basiz of the relevant Beense, partcipation m the wnplementarion of the goversment progremmes o support the
agriculiusal sector theough lending, antracnon of the domestic and foreign investments, participatien m the develapment snd
tmphementation of the projects i the agro-andustmal comples, leasing setivitios, fanding of financial isstnnions, fimancing of
legal enttes wimg lslamic finsncial merruments 1o provide Talamic finance to agroandustna! compley entities, and other
activities not prohibeed by the legslatve acts that meer the goals and objectives of the Company provided for by its Churtee.

The Company's finsncing acrvities stipulae spectfic requirements and restiictions on the wie of funds. The interest mie on
livins provided i lower than the market mie due o mmplemenrsion of the agrculturl development progmmmes m the
Republic of Kizakhsian

Ak ar 31 Diecember 2022 and 31 December 2021, the Company had 19 repestered hranches (31 December 2021 - 17 branches)
in the Republic of Kxsakhetin During the reportng vear the Company opened 2 new bancbes: the Branch for Ulrau Obiast
and the Branch for Abai Chlast,

Ar at 31 December 2022 the Company owned & 100% interest in KazAproFinance [5C; the pancipal actvity of
RazAgroFimince [5C o leasing actvity i the agroandustrial comples, lending of enttes operatng in the agro-irdustrial
complex, paricipation in the implementation of the progrummes funded Erom the nanonsd badger and odies progrnmmes
simed at development of the sgro-indusral complex (31 December 2021 the Compunsy had no subsidisries),

Asar3] December 0022, Puiterek MNamonal Managing Holding 15C "Baiterek” or “Shareholder™) aums 100% of the Groag's
shafes.

The Geoup's ultimate saner is the Govennment of rhe Republic of Kaakhstan
The Group's registered office is 11 Tmanov Streer, Astana, Republic of Kazakhsean,

Business Crvir et

Ihe Urroup's opemtions are bocated in Kazakhstan, Comseguently, the Group 15 exposed 10 the economse and fnandal mackess
of Kazakhstan which display charsctenstics of an emergmy market The lepal, tax and repolaory fameworks continue
developient, bt are mbject 10 varping mrerprerstions dnd fequent changes which together with other legal ind fescal
impedimnenis conmbre o the challenges faced by enttes opemating m Kazakhstan, Depoicintion of the Kamkhson enge
and volsulity m the global poce of ol dso incresses the level of ucemme m the business envirenment, The recent
propolinical unceratney around Bassia and Uhraine has farther devared bevels of economac uncenatary i Raeokhsian,

I Fetmury 2022, because of the milirary conflict between the Russian Federanon and Ukrane, @ number of conmtnies imposed
sanctions agamst the Russian Federation. The conflict affects not only the coonomic sctivity of two countries bur the global
economy as well As u result oF sncrions, commodity and food paces have dsen in many countries amund the world, the
established links berween supply of wesources have been disrupaed, inflation also affects the prces; and analveis aho forecast
£CONOTIC lh'lph.n‘.‘.ll.ﬂ'.m: o the plobal indusry

The consobdoted financial sttements, wlecr the manapement’s gssessment of the mpact of the Repuhbc of Kazakhsian
business environment on the operations and the Anancal poston of the Group, The future busness envirenment may differ
from manageimenl’s sssesament.

Bagis of preparation

The sccompanyng consobdaed fnancal ststements are prepared = sccordance with Iotemanonal Fenancal Reporting
Eranchards (JFRS),

The consoldated finencial sttements kave been prepared on the hisroncal cost hass, exceps as mentioned ia the S
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The consolidated fnancal starensents are presented i thousands of Kaeakhetan renge PRET thovsand’), excepr for the dara
used w cabeulsnon of comenon thite carrring amounts or onless aihensise indicsted

The sccimnpainyni consoldaied financial staemente have been prepased on o poang concern hass, which provides for asset
sales und settkement of pbligations i the oninary course of business. The Groap’s abality i sell ite asaete and s future
operitons mey e spulicantly affeceed by the carrenrand fumee econoende environment i Kazakhsan,

Significant accounting policies

The secounting policees ser aut heling have heen applied congsently to all penods presenred in these consolidared fnencinl
statemenis, except for judgerments about measurement of expected credin lossee an logts 1o culomers o updared in 2033
(e 27),

Fair vahie measurement

Fair valse i the prce that would be recerved 1o sell an asset or paid o ransfer a habaliny i an ordedly rransscnan bepaseen
murket participants ot the nessamement dove. The Gir value memsurement 1= bassd on the presusmplion that e trmsacton o
aell the asaet or tansfes the liabiliy akes place either

= in the poncipal maske for the ssser or lebakay; o

" 1 the absence of a priscipal muarket, in the most advantageous market for the asser or Babiliy.

The prncipal or the mos advanmgeous mateet must be scoessable by the Group The fatr vilue of an asset or 2 labihiy =
measured using the ssmmptions that marker parmcpants would use when pricing the ssser or lability, sssuming tat macket
parncrpnts act i their commimamag bt intereat A fmir value messuremens of o non-Aoancial ssset ke im0 account o mazket
particrpants ahilite o pomemate economic benefirs by using the asser in s lighest and bese use or by selling it to another
market participant that would vee the asset i sts highest and bess wses

The Group uses valuation technkyues that are appropoare 0 the circumstances and for which sufficient data are avalable o
measure fair valoe, maxmmsing the v of relevans observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable wpurs. Al sssers
and Eabilities for which fur vilue is measured or disclosed mn the comselidated francial satements are catepomsed within the
fir value hierorchy, descnibed as follows, hased od the lowest level input that 1= significant o the far vabae mersuserment as g
whnle

& Level 1: i.]lﬂl.'lli.'ﬂ pertces | imadpested ) moactve rackets foridentcal siaere e labilites

. Level 2 valustion models, in which significant assessment of fair value sre based on inputs relsted 1o the lowest level
of hietarchy and are observable in the madker enther dieectly or mdirecty.

. Level 3 vialution model for which the lowest level inpur that B senificant o the fair value messtoamest s
unatservalile

For ussets and liabilines tha e recogrmsed i the consolidared financial sratements o0 @ secutnng basis, the Lrroap dedermings
wherher rransfers huve occurred betwien levels i the hierarchy by re-arsessing catrepostsation (based on the kevest level [k
that 5 sgesficant o the fair value measarement is o whole) o the end of cach reporting perind.

Financial assets and Habilities
Inftfal recogmistion
Liair of reopeiiien

All regular wap parchases und sales of Ananceal assers and Eabilives are recognosed on the mde dase e the date that the
Crrouap comrndte 00 purchinse the asset or hability, Regular way parchises or sales of Anancal ssser and labilites that riure
delivesy of sssens and lababnes wathin the pennd peacnlly estahlished by regulanon or convention in the markesphice,

The chassificason of fnance] assers on inidal recognmon depends o the coatrictual serms and besaness mode] gsed for
muarging, imstoamens. Founcia msmumests are inkially messured o therr fur value, except in the case of finencial ssets and
Anancis| Halubines secoeded ar FVTPL, tansscHon vosts zre sdded o this amont,

Mycumrsmeni saolygonvs af Foancad asseir awd Sabilnes

The Group classfics all of s finevoal assers based oo the astness modd for manigimg the assets and e ssser’s Contracnl
tirma, medsared of enher

- smornped cosl;
- fuir valus through other comprebensive imcome (FVOCT;
. Frar valwe through peofit or loss (FVTTLYL
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The Group dastifies und messures s desvative dad wading partfolin ot FV'TPL The Group may desfgnan: finandal
mitrments at [VIPL, if 30 dolng elanmites or spmificantly reduces messnrement o recogtition incoussstineses

Fmancial lishilities, odies than boms commubments und fnancial guarmniees, are measuted ar amortsed cost o af FVITPL whien
they are hidd for trading, ane dedvative wstoumests o (e G sabioe desigration ts applied,

Armars due frome hauks baws 00 Chewees, Intestevet Jecurihie meamwrnd & gemoriined

The Creomp only recasures amounts due from bunks, lears: o customers and other Emancial vestments at wnormsed cose i
both of the following, condimons are men

" 4 fmancial assed is held within a business model whose objective t 10 hold sssets oo collecr conrracneal cash fows;

. s comraciual reoms gve mee on specified dates to cosh Sows that aze solely paymenrs of principal and interest on the
prncipal srnount owtssanding (3177'1).

These penmes are detailed below.

Bucrinesy smodel axseiripont

The Group detenmunes its bunness model ar the level thar best reflects how 1t manages groaps of financial assets 1o acheve
i ks albpecve.

The Gironp's basmers model is not assessed at the level of indwvidual instrements bat at o higher level of eppregaied pordolios
and is hased on observable factors, sasch as;

. bow the performance of the business medel and the fnancial assets held wthin that business model 5 evaloared and
bow this informatien s reperied o the key managensent,

. the naks thar affecr the pesformance of the busness model {and the financial sseets held wdtkan that bosiness model)
and b dyose ricks are managed;

. bow managess of the busness are compenrited — e, whether compensation i based on the fair valoe of the assets
managed or the contracmal cash Bows collecned:

L the expected frequency, vohmme snd uming of wles s abso mpornt aspects of the Group’s business madel
AEEET T

The business moded sssessment 13 hased on ressonably expecied scenanos wathowt kg “warst case” of ‘stress case’ seenanos
tnbo seceant, IF cash flows after matial recogrinon are cealised in g way thas 1= defferent from the Group’s onginal expectations,
the: Group does ot change the dasificaion of the remaining fndncial pssets held o thar business model but MICOIPOEae:
sach snformaton whin asseseng newly onginated or newly purchased financial assets gomg forward.

"aakedy ey of feincitaland muderent on e peimad mevomt ovirlanding” ey (SPPT feid)

As a second srep of its clissification procers, the Group assesses the contractual iermes of the fmncial asset to identify whe et

the cantmictual cash flows on an asset are ‘solely papments of poncipal aod mtcrest oo the prncpal amount cutstnding’ (e,
whedber they meet the SPPL pest)

‘Panapal” for the purpose of this test ik defived a8 the fax vahue of the Snancial asset on mitial recognition end may change
over the ifie of the financial asset {for example, if there are repayments of prncipal or smortisadon of the premiom, discounr)

The most agnificant elements of interest wathin o lendang srmngement are repically the conmderanon for the sme value of
money and credit risk. To muke the SPPL wssessment, the Geoup applies judgmient and considers relevant factors such as tha
currency in which the financial aset 12 denominated, and the pedod for which the intesest rare 15 set,

Tan comtrast, eontme bl tomns thar miveduce a more than de mindmds exposuse to miks or volain in the conmicmal cagh
flows that ore unselated to a basic lending arangement do not give rise o contractual cash Mows that ure selely payments of
pencipal and anterest o the amounl outstanding. In such cases, the financial asset 15 mogquired 1o be measared a1 FVYTPL

A preparment feamre s conastent with the solely payments of prncipal and imterest catenon f the prepayment amoun;
subsmuntially eepreseats unpand amoants of pnnopal sndd intceests on the poncipal amoanr owstending, wiich nay tnclude
reasonable addisonal compensation for carly repnination of the contzact. In addinon, o prepayment Teature 15 treated s
congstent with this cotenon if & financial asset 14 scquised o ongnated of 3 premium oc discount to Hs contractual par
amount, the prepayment smount substintally represents the contrachual par amouni ples secroed (bat unpand] contmcnsl
nserest fabuch may dlso include ressonable compensation for early termination), and the fag value of the prepavment fesrare

5 insignific it on inftial rocogminom,
Coes pedatd commR R
Loaedir related commatments are commitments under which, over the duration of the commament, the Groap is requited 10

prowide a boan with pre-specified teses to the customer. These contracts are in the scope of the BCLL wquircments:
I



Agraman Credit Corpotation 150 Consobdared Firnncsl Statements for 2022
EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YK KAT

The Group occasonaly 1smes commimments 1o provide loans at below-market interest mres. Such commitments are metalky
recopnzsed at faur valse and subsequently measured at the higher of an ECL allosanice ind the smount initially recagrised bees
curisdanve meorme, where UpTTORRTE,

Reclasuificanon of financial assers and labilnes

The Group does oot reclasdify it fnopcal assers subsequint 1o thar imaal recopstion; apart from the exceptional
crrcumssances in which the Group changes the busmess mode! for managing financal assets. Faunelsl labalines are never
reclassified,

Cash and cash couivalents

Cash and cash equivalests consis of cash on hand snd ameunts due from coedit institations thar mature within pot more than
ninety days of the date of onginaton and are fror from contmetual encumbmnces.

Biormwings

Iswied fBnancal insruments of ther components are chissified s Labdlines, whese the substunce of the contracmal
armangemear fesulns in e Greoup having an obligation either to deliver cash or another fnancial asset (o the holdes, of
satiafy the obljpaon other than by the exchange of 3 fised amounr of cash ar anather Brnancal ssset for @ fioied number of
own equaty msiruments. Such wstramensy ioclude amounts due o the shareholder and amoone due o credin settations,
debt secunzies issued and payables w soane and budger orpanisanons. After initial recognition, borrewings ase sohsequently
measured st wmerised cost wing the offecove mterest method. Gados s Tosees ate secognised m the profit or Toss when
Labilities are derecogmsed; a5 well s throsgh thie smotisation process

COiffeenting of financial instrumenis

Francial assess and lichalities are offeet and the net ameunt s reporied i the consolidated attement of financial position
when thee s q |i."gi|.|] erifereeable r.Ehl e aet ol the n:uﬁnlud aiaoaiate and Biene isan imtenaon o sertle on g et hekeis, o
ton peilise the usser and setde the habdlity smoltenenusly. The nght of ser-off mus nor be contipent on o future event ond
sl be legally enfonceable inoall of the following circumetances

L the noomal course of busmees;
L the event of defauls and

. the event of msolvency or hanknupecy of the ennty and all of the counterpames,

These conclitions are nog geosetally mesmaster nerdap agreements, and the reksted assets and labilines ae prescaid gross m
the consalidated statement of fnancial position,

Renegotiated loans
Whete posithle, the Growp secks to restructure boans rather than m ke possession of coflateral. This may mvalve estending
the pavment amangements and the agresment of new ko condimons.

The Liroup derecogases 3 financial asser, e a loan 10 2 customer, i the relared contracnunl ferms are renegotiated fo the
extent thar it in Bt becomes o new Joan, and rocords the difference s gaing o0 losses arising from derecopnation before
unpairmeat ko @ recopised. Upon il recognition the losns are clissifiod as Stage 1 for ECT. measuremens parposes,
urdogs the tes loan is deemed to be POCL Whee aatessing, whether the loan to customier should be desecognised, the Group
considers the fallowing:

. change in cugrency of the losn;
- change in COMMTEOPATTY;
L] if the sodificaton js such thar the nemrement would so longer meet the PP cnienion.

If the mistificetion does aot wwply o substannal change m cash fovws, such modificanon does nor resall 10 derseogmtion,
Based on the change in cash fows disconnted ar the onginal EIR, the Group reconds a modificition pamn or boss that is
presented within othes ncome or losses m the consobdated starement of profic or loss.

1f the moddication doer not sesult @ derecognizion, the Group alio reassesses. the sgnificant meresse in credit nsk or the
need to classify assety a5 crodi-impatred.

Modification of the terms of Anancial lahilities

The Group deérecopmizes 2 Anancial Hahikty whed (65 w@me are modified and the cash flows of the modified lalnilyiy are
substanially differers. Tn this case, 4 oew fnasncial labaliey based on the modified terms i recogmised u fuir vake, The
difference between the camying amoont of te Snancial babilite extinguished nd the pew Snascial lability with modified
terms s recopgiased i profin oo Joss,
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I a mehification {or exchange) does not result in the derecogaiton of the fimencal lebdiy the Group applics sccountmg
prolicy consstent aath the fecuuiremients fioe adpriting the gross CATTYE Amcini of a finaneial acser when 1 modificanon does
not it in the derscopmition of the financal aseet, Lo, the Group tecogiises sy whustment t the amortised cost of the
firancial labalay erssing from sueh 8 modification {or evchange) in paofit or kees ar the dute of the modification {or exchange)

Charges in cash Bows on exisring finanoal lialilines sre not consdered as modification, tf they wesule friom existing coateactual

Ube Group sssesses whether the modification & sabstantial based on quantisative ind quabiatve factors o the followiag
odder: qualitavve facton, quantititve tacters, combined effect of qualitative and quantrative factors. The Gmap concludes
that lhe modification is sil=iantal a5 3 eesult of the following qualtanve Facrops:

£ change the currency of the Guancial Bibiine;

= change i collateral oo other credit enhancemen;

- inclugdin of conversion feature;

- change in the subordmansin of the Gnanceal Habiling,

For the quuntianve sssessment the resms are substantally different +f the discoanted present vilie of the cash Bows wmder
the new teems, ncluding any fees paid net of aoy fees recesved and discounred using the omgmal effective interest tate, is at
lease 10 per cent diffenent from the discounted present value of the remaining cash fows of the orgmal fmancial Rebiby, 1§
an exchangs of debt inenuments o modification of reers B accounted for as an extmgrishmen, aoy costs o fees moummd
are recognused as pace of the gain or lose on the extinguithment, If the exchange or modification i o sccounted for 2s an

extingushment; any coate or fees incored adjost the carying smount of the babilite and are amorted over the semaining
term of the modified labiley

Drerecognition of financial asscts and fnancial babilides
Flinpncial assets

A Brancial asset (or, wheee applicable s pan of  financial asser or pan of & group of smilar fnancial ssen) B derscogmised
Froen the conanlidared srarement of Anancal porton whers:

& The nghte 1o receive cash Beows from the asset have expired,

L the Civanp has rransfesed e ti.Elﬂ tob receve cash floes from the seser, o8 has geamed an -:hljgntm o iransfer che
receved cagh flows in full without metenal delar m s dhind party wiader o "I;nnsr. ﬂwqh'mmg:m:ﬂnﬂd

* the Liroup either (#) has ransferred substantially ol the nsks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither tansferred
nor retined subsrantally dll the deks and rewands of the asser, bur has eeansferred contml of the azset,

Where the Gmup has transferred its aghts 1o recefve cash flows from an asset and has nesther rransferred not tetained
substanizlly all the naks and rewerds of the asser nor transferred conteol of the asser, the asser i reonpnised to the extent of
the Leroup's contmang ivolvement in te ssset. Contnung iavelvement thar takes the form of o guarantes aver the
transferred sssef i messured af the lower of the onmnal cammng amount of the asset and the maximmom amount of
conziderstion st the Group could be eogumed 10 wpay.

Frrre o

Financial assen- ase wiitten off-in part or in full, oaly when the Group does not expect v tecover thetr value. TF the smount
te b werttien of f i hagher than the accumulated impatrment albawance, the difference is ar st recorded as the meeesse in the

allvwanice that & mbsequently applied 1o the gross carrying amaount. All the subscquent reversals are recogrised o crodit loss
wxpaieps. The vrite-off pelates o the desecopnition event

Fingncial Fabilitios
A ftanietnl hulidity is desecnpnised when rhe obligation under the labthey i dischasped or concelled or expines

Where an exisang financial labilsty is replacod by another from he same lender on substantally different terms, or the terms
of an exstng kabiliny ane substandally modified, such an exchange or modification i treated a3 2 dececopnition of e origind

hahliry ind the recogminon of 4 new labahry, and the difference in the respective camrnng amownts (s recopnised in profie or
Hiss

Impairment
Non-derivative Fnamcial assers
Ser alen Mores 4 and 27

The Group recopnises allowances for expected coednt losses (ECLY on the followmg financal mseruments thar are not
mensured at far walue through profi or loss:

- Eimamcul nseers thar gre defs s pusen b,
1m



Agerasian Credit Corponation |50 [ onsolidaied Financal Staements fop 2022
EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Y KET

- Froanca] guamniee contracts 1ssaed,
Don omparmmaenr boss e reongrused on equiny mvestiments,

The Group measwres Iogs sllovances ar an amonat equal o lifeeme ECLs, axeept for the falloonng, whick ase measured as
12:mnnth ECLs

" delit investment secunsies that ane determined w0 have moderute credii mak at the reporong dare; and

. other Brascal msirimenis oa which credit nsk has not increased sipnificamly since thetr mital recognition.

EZ-mmuonibh ECL are the portion of ECL that eesale (o default evaits oa o Bnandal instroment thae are po=sible wachin the
12 mewnths afver the seporting dase. Financtal mstrinnents for which a 12-month ECL (s recopnized are teferred o2z Etage 1
frnamcinl instrameins

Lifenme ECLs aze the ECLs that result from all poseible defaulr events ver the expected e of the financial mstmament.
Financid inseraments for which a bifedme BCL & secognised ire referred to es ‘Stapge 2° financial insrruments (if credir aik on
fnancinl estriments has inceeased signaficanty wpost asival recogmtion bat firanaal insrument i not credit-mpaired) and
"Stxge 3 (i finoycial insteament & creditampuined),

Mesrarement ol extwcted cralit vy (ECT

ECL are a default probubitiry-weighted estimane of oredit beses, They ase meosured as follows:

. frmawcial avees that ant wal covdet-taparmed af ke rgbartgg date as the present value of all cach shonfalls (Le. the diference
heraeen the cash Dows due o the Group in accordance with the coarrsct and the cash Bows that the Grronsp expects
0 reCETveE )

. Jewaweral wiets thod an enedit-imgoared af e reporieeg dase as the difference berween the gross cirrying smount and the
prozend vahue of esamared fumse cash flows;

. Jiawiial guarawies cowtradte the present value of expected pavments m reimburse the bobder leds any amounts that the
LITOUP EXPECE T feCover,

Rustemeterwnl fiwanecead arsets

If the teoms of & Onancial asset ane eenegotated or modified or an cxsting financisl asser i replaced with 2 new one dee o
Amanckal difficulses of the bosmowet, then an sssedument is made of whether the francial adet should be demenpnmed and
ECL are measined ds feflows

L If the expeoted restmichinisg will not ekt in derecogmiton of the extstng dsset, then the sxpectad cah foan Ansing
from the modified financil asset are incloded i caleutaning the cash shererfalls from the existimg asset

- If thie expocted sestructunng wall result in derecogmition of the existing asset, then the expected fur vahe of the new
asser 15 megied & the final cash Sow from the oxisting financial asset ot the time of 5 descongmmion. This amount is
ircluded in cileulating the cash shortfalls from the exsting financinl ssset charare discomied from de erpeched tare
of derccogmition to the reparting dave using the onginal effective inverest rate of the exdnting fruncn] ssser

Crviitameparred Fmawcial aes

At pach reporing dste, the Creoop asseeses whother foancnl sssets cormed 0t amormzed coer and debr finsncial assets carmod
at BV Iﬂ‘:ﬂ'ﬂﬂ!t-]m[‘-ti:‘td A fimancaal asaed ix 1-|:"|:El:‘]i:|-‘i111.]:|=.'|.|'=|:|' when one or meee evenne that bave & detmmenial Impact
on the estimmted furere cagh Dows of the Branoal asset have cocormed

Evwdence thar o framcaal ssses b credst-mmpatned inchedes che following observable data:

. aynnfrcunt fmmncial difficulty of the bormower o issuer

] i breach of conmict such a5 @ default or being past due,

. the restructunng of o loan e advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not conssder atherase:
. it 15 becoming probable that the borrower wall enter binkeuprcy or gther financil revtgansaton; or

= the disippeasanee of an scbee markes for 3 seconm because of fnaneial Biffieultes

A loan that hus been renegotinted due 10 a deterioration in the borroaers condibon s usudly considered 10 be coedi-impazred
unleas there 15 evelence that the mk of vor secening contracmal cush fows has reduced significanty and there are oo other
ndicators of Impaeme.

Taxation
The cursimt corporte income fax charge i calculsted &0 accordimics with the tax legishnon of e Republc of Kazakbstan,
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Deferred corporate meome tax sssess and Hahilities ase caleulated i respect of all temporary differences uang the labibry
mwtthisd. Dieferred income rawes are provided for all emporary differences ansing beraeen the tax bases of aesets and Babulebes
and ther carrying values for the pumposss of consolidsted fmancial siatements.

Detested corporste Meome tx ssers are recognised only fo the extent that i probable thar mxable profie will be svadable
against which the deduciibile emporary differences can be unlised. Dieterred componite mcome tax assets and lishilsties are
measuted o b mtes that are expected 10 apply m e pedod when the asset ts realised or the liabiliry {e senled, based on tax
rates that have been enacied of substantively enscted o the reporting dare.

The Group performs offserting of deferred tix assers and deferred fax liabdities and tecosds them in the consolidated
stutement of financial positon on a net bass, when

- The Group has 1 begally eaforced rgln o offsc curtont i asseis aguns current mx labilines; and

L Drefforted tax assers and deferrsd tax habdins sefer 1o Carparale mcikme fax rhr-lrgl_-rl |'|:.' the same iy body fwom the
HUTIE FAXTEL,

In acddition, the RepuliSc of Kazakhstun has vanous operaung axes apphcable o the Gmup':. opentions, Thess myes are

wcliaded i other opemittng expenses

Property, plant and equipment

Prooperty, plant und equipment aze carned ar ¢ou, exchiding the costs of day-wdiy senacing, less sccumulaied depreciation
unel aceumnlated impasrment losses. Such cosr includes the cost of replacing part of equipment when thar cost s mcared i
the capatabizarion cnfera are met

The carrring values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for mmpaitment when events or changes 1n corcumsmnces
bilicane thar the carrping value may not be recovernhle

Losts related ro repasres and renewals are charged when incussed and mchsded i other nperanng expenscs, unbess they qualify
for capatalisation.

Depreciation of an awet begins when it is svailable for use. Deprecianos is cabculared on a steaght-lne bass over the fallowing
estomated usifal lves:

Dreprrecianion e
Buildings 1-5%
Mlachanery and coutprent 4-20%
Viehicles 10-25%;
Oitkisr 1=-33%

The zssers’ ressdual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if apprapriare, ar the end of cach reporting petiod
Investment propery

Investment property is intendied 16 eom rental income from operating bease of teal estate azests for o Iz petind ar from
mncrement in value of propetry and bnd plots, whoch ae nof sed by the Group as praperty, plane and cquipaient,

Investment propesties ure masssned mitially at cost, including muasaction costs. The carryuy, wmount mcludes the cosp of
seplacang past of an cxistmg invessment property of the tme that coet i monrred if the FoCoREnEen Corera are ot and cxchdes
the cous of day-to-day seracing of an mvestment property, Investment property |= subseguently meastired gt cost bews
acrumulited deprecunon. Investment poopery ic amormised on 1 sreaight- line hasss over the estmated veeful life.

Tovesment propeety 18 detecognised m the consoladated staement of fnancial posiion when it 15 cither disposed and no
eCOMomic benefits ate expected from ity disposal i futase Any gams or losses on the disposal of i isvestment prupezty ine
recognired i prodit or loss in che vesr of derecogninion.

Transfers bo and from mvestmens properties are carned out only when there ¥ a change i use. For o trnsfer from investment
praperty to ouner ocoupeed property, Mo carying amownst does not change gs the Group uses o oot accoantng made] foy
hath categonies - mvestment propeny and property occupied by the owner

Intangible ssicts
Entangible assetz nclude computer softwarne and hoences,

Intangible asseis acquared separately are mdtially measwed at cont. Following inimal recopnation, intagible amets ane carried o
cost less any sccumuhited amortisiton amd sy accumolared unparrment logees. Tntangbile nssets with finaee lves aee amoniaed
over e imeful econpmic lives of 1-10 years and assessed for impairment whenever there i an midicanion that the intangble
sezet mar he im'pm,rc.d:.

=



Apmanan Credit Corposation |50 Consalidated Fimneial Stitements for 2022

EXPLAMNATORY NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YK KT

Aceets held for sale

The Group classfics a non.current asset as held for sale if ite carrving amount will be recovered principally thmagh a sale
transactom taiber than through conanang wse, For this to be the case, the son-cument assel muest be avalable for immediate
gale in it present condition subject ondy 10 weome that are wsoal and custonmary for sales of such assets and D3 sade must be

h'%.h.[:.l |:|m|||:||.\k.

High probability of sale imphes the Gronp mansgenent's positive intent o follow a plan ro sell the non-cucreat siser. Lo this
vase, tf 5 necessary o star the programme of active memames o search for 0 buyer and fulfil the plan. Ta addiion, 9 son-
current aeset must have been actively matketed for o wle at 3 price that s masmble in relatbon 1o s cwment for value. In
addinion, the sale should be expected to qualify for recognition a5 @ completed sale wathin one vear from the date of
classification of the non-currenr asser as held for sale.

ke Liroup measures the srsers classified as held for sile st the Jower of its carmyang smount and far vahue less costs 1o sdl,
The Group recogiises g impairment ose fie any mital or subsequent write-down of the asser 1o Fair value less coste 10 sl
i ewente of changes in droumstance indicate that their carrying smoant may be inspraired

Foarechosed collatenal

Repossessed collsieml s pledyed property sezed from the Group's bosiowers 1o repay debt on o volontary or compulsony
bagas. The decison on kg pledged propery on the Group's balance sheet shall be rken by the Credic Commitee @nd then
upprm‘l:d by the Managensenr Doard of the Growp, Cnee all procedunes have been pecformed, property is recogissed on the
Crroup's adaoice shast. AT ite, cuizrent eetimated valoe. Thebe assets. acé accounsed fow within the asects beld for sale i the
eonsolicated etaternent of Bnancsl positon.

Share capital

Charter capetal

Conmbutions to share capial are secognised ot histoncal cost, less direct costs 1o lsue shares,
Rusiros eapitid

Reserve capiial may be mereased by transfernng funds from setaned easmings based on a decisson of the Gronp's Shateholder,
Under the Group's policy the reserve capail i5 tormed 1o cover the general riaks inchuding future lasses and other connnpent
nzks and crcumstances. Reseree capital 15 distnbarable based oo the Sharcholder's decision,

Dhivdoernady

Diaclends are recopnised s lishiline and deducted from equity at the epoeting date only if they are approved before or on the
repomng date: Dividends are disclosed in the consobidated Gnancesl statements when they are proposed before the reporming
date ot proposed or declaced after the reporting date baor befote the consolidated Anancial ststements 4re aubiogsed for izsoe.

Estimated liahilities

Estimated habalities ase recognased: when the Group has 2 present legsl or constructive obligatian 1s & result of past events; it
ts probable that an cutflow of resowrces embodyng funire econenuc Benefits will be regured i setile the ohlhganon; and the
arpoumt cin be relubly esfimated.

Enrnﬂn!!m: hahilities

Cantmgent batabnes are 00t recoguised m the consolchited sarement of firannal posnon bur are discdosed wdess the
possabality of any outllow in serthoment is remone.

Laan comniitmemis
Lk commidtmenits are frm commutments to provide credit ander pre-specified femms und conditions,

Commutments 1o provide s loan ot a below marker iovesea eng ore wonally messured ar fair value. Subseguently ey are
measared at the lagher of the loss allowance desermined n ocoondance with IFRE 9 and rhe armemn inimably recogrised less,
when appropaate, the cumulave amount of income recognised m secordince with the ponaples of IFRS 15,

The Group has isswed 1o loan commitments that are measured a1 FVTPL For oches loan commitients the Group recopnises
lons allowance. Financid balabties aomng from lean commitments are included m other labiines,

Recognition of income and expenses

Revenue i recogmised o the exrent that it 15 probabbe dhat the exomomme benefirs will Aow ro the Groopand the revenue Can
be rebably meusured. The follvong speafic moognition cateris muse sleo be met before revenee i recopnised:
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Jmterest? Gned owedbar incews and A

The Group cilcubites mietes income an debr financial assets measared ot amortised cost or at FYOCT by applving the EIR
ta the gross carmyimy amount of ol ssseis oilier than oredin-impaired sseems. The effective interest mie is e me tt
exactly discounts exbmared funure cash pasments on eeveipes through the expeced bive of the finandul instrument or @ shones
petiod, where approposte, to the net canpng amount of the financid] asset of firancial hshilry. The caloulotion takes e
account all centmacnaal tenms of the fnancal instroment (for ooemple, prepayment opoica) snd includes any fees o
incremumtal costs thet ore directly atobutable to the iostrument and -ase an iregral pae of the clfcctive ineeesr iz, but not
future eredst losses, The carmying smaunt of te financial aset ox Gnandal Babibite i adjueted if the Group revises its extimates
of payments or réceipts. The sdpsted correng amounr is calenlated based on the onginal effectre mreres: rate and rthe change
m carryeng amoupt 1 recorded 45 et moome o7 expense.

When o fnaoal asser Becomss credit-anpaired, the Croup cabulates oversst meome by applring the effective interes: rate
tob ahve el smorised codr of the francid asser 16 the fnuncial assets cure and is no longer credic-impaired, the Group revers
1o galenbatmg mibcrest nxome on a gross bass

For purchasced or opgmated credit-impaired (OCT} Bnancisl assers, the Group caloulares mnteress ncome by caleudatmyg the
eredit-adjusted EIR and applyng that mate to the amornsed costof the asser. The credit-adjusted ETR 1 the smterest mate thar,
ot onginal fecopnition, disconnts the estmated fobure cash Bowy (including credit losses] to the amomized cost of the POMCT
aseets,

Porsenraro

Interest income calcndared wsng the effecive interest rate method presented m o the consolidated statemen of profic or los
inchudes interest incame an financial assots messand at amortised coat,

"ther inferest income” jiem préseafed o the consolidated stutement of probi or loss nchsdes nterest ncome on fmance
lease recervahiles,

Trmerest expense presented in the consoldated statement of peofir o loss indudes interest expense on Gnancl labdines
méasured ot amornsed cosl

Government grants

Lroverninent prants are asestance by the Govemnment, Govemisent agemcies and stste-owned entinies i the foom of transfers
of resources 1o the Grrowp in retuen fod past or fanaee complance anth certam conditions relating to the opeeating acovifes
of the Group. Government grants ane not secognised unnl there s reasonable assurance that the Groap will eomply with the
condssons attuched 10 them and the grmnts will be received, [T thee are condinoas that may require repayment, the grant is
recopnised m hahilites,

The benefir of 8 governovent Joan ar a below-marker rate of miesest o+ treated 25 3 povemnment gran: where the government
does not act as a sharcholder. The benefin of the below-market rate of mterest is measured a5 the difference berween the inirial
carying wahae of the loan and the proceeds necerved.

Government grants that compensate the Group for sxpenses incurred are recopaned i profin o loss a8 expenses on
spstematc bacs in the sume periods i whoch the expenses are recognised

When funde are reccived to finance the Bnence kase tansaciions, e govemment grant 3 pecopnased us inoome on §
systemanc basis and compensares the aepative effect ofinterest aceriod at the macket rate on s loan recetved ar o below madkce
mre. Such government grant income reduces the related mispest expense in the consolidated smrement of profin ar Joe and
ather comprehensve income.

Spaff costn and relaied contriburions

Wages, salancs, conmibnitions o the stape pemsion and social msarance frnds, paid annusl ave and sck leave, bonuses, snd
non-monetary benefits sre accrued in the year in which the associased services are rendered by the employess of the Group,
The Group las ae bigal or constmacive obligation o make pengon or sindar benefir parments bevond the paymenss o the
statutory defined conmbution scheme.

Presentation of the consolidated statement of financial position in order of liquidity

The 1-1"11:"-1[!-'5'!1-::!- mod have & CJHI']}' sl=ntiiEble :lj!-:'tll'.i.rlg: :Fﬂh anidd theretore does and pressenr current and finn-cierens sders
and habilinies separarely i the comsolidated statement of Anancial posnon., Instead, anslvess of assers and Gabilives Ty their
cxpecied masnties are presented i Nate 30,

Investments in subsidiary

Suhsidianes are ennifics contnolled b the 'E-nr'up.']'h: Gm-'up controls ﬂ.l'l.l:l'ltil}' when i ie expetad o, or hae dghts o, vanable
seturnk from s myolvemient wath the enmy and hay the abdlry o affec those tetams thowgh e power over the entity. The
liiarcial stabements of suhadune: are moludad m the consslidated frasci] satements from the dase that contrel commences
unbl thie date thot conreal craees,
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Teanractinns eliminated on consalidaton

Irrra-group hatances and transactions, and any unreabised s anang from sregoosp tosscucas, are clminated m
prepanng the consolidared Anancal stitenents. Unreilised loases are chminated in the stme iy as wirealised pams except
it they ate only eliminated o the extent that there 15 no evidence of mpadrment. )

Acquisitions from entities under commaon control

IFRE 3 excludes foom s seope ‘s combmanon of entites or busnesses under commod comteol’, For the purpode of the
exemption, a busine combimton mvolving ennnes or businesses under common control is s business combsnation in which
all of the comlaming ennnes or buminesses are ulimaredy controdlad by the same pamy or partes borh before and after the
bagirss combination’, and that control 15 ot teasitoey’. Thes will incude tansacoons such as the tensfer of subsidiasics o
Imsinesaes b roreen entrhes within s EEoup,

In a business combinanon wvolvasg enttes or businesses under common control, the assers gnd labalines of the entty
acquired undes commen cantrel aze recognised in the lost (e, the Guoup) consobdated fnancal staremenss as their carrviag
amLirs 45 at the date of tnsfer: The host {i.e. the Group) is taken 1o be the highess level reporing entire over which financial
information of the acquired entity was consolidared.

Any difterence berween the curving amount of net assets on imnsl scquisivon of an entity under commen contenl and the
consideration paid s recogmised m netmned esonngs i equity in the consolidated Enancial statements of the Cerowp

Acccounring for buzincss combinations woder commom control

A merger of eniies under common control 15 3 basiness combinasen m which all of the combimed enntes ase ultimarey
cantrelled by the same party or parties, both before, and after the combination, and that contml 15 not mansisory, The effect
of business comlenations under common contral s sccounted for by the Group waing *pooking of fureresss’ method, the sssets
and laksbities of fhe mergiag entties are measured ot ther carnang valoes at the date of mengez, the mnsacion costs related
o the merpes are expensed n e consolidated moome statement, mutial balances are elsnimared from the balince sheel, any
difference between the purchase price paid,/ reansferred and she net assets acquared (ar dhierr carrying valies a3 disclosed o the
conselidated financisl statements) is secogaisad m eguity,

Lease

Rupdiare arret

The Group recopnises sghe-of-use ssseis ot the commencennent dute of the bease (e, the date the nadetfying dsset is avalilbe
for wse]. Raghr-of-use ssscts ane measured o cost, less sy sceumulared depreciinom and impainnent losses, ond adjusted for
any’ petneasurcrent of bease habalines. The con of tight-of-use asscts mchudes the smount of lease Tabilites vecognised, fitl
direct costs incurred, and lease payments mady af or befory the commencement dase less any Jease moontives recoived. Unbess
the Growp s reascnably cermain m obtain samerchip of the leased ssser ot the end of the lesse term, the recognised nght of
e @ssers are depreciated on o snnghtlme husis over the shorter of i estemated aweful lifs and the lnaoe term, Right-ofooes
nasets are eubget o mparmens femng,

Loriave Saadiisay

At the commencement date of the lesse, the Group recopnises lease babiling: meazased at the present valee of ledse payments
t by made over the lease e The lesse payments inchude fixed payments (incuding in substance fixed payments) less any
lease mncentives recervahle, vanule lesse pryments that depend on an index or o me, ind smountesxpected 10 be pax] oades
residual vidue guarantees. The lease parments also mchade the exvercise price of o parchase option reasonabl certam o be
excresend By the Group and paymente of penalties for tesmmating o lease, if the lease remm reflecns the Group exercising the
option fo ferminate. The vanable lesse parmentts that do not depend on an index or a rage ase tecognised as expense in the
perod on which ihe event or condibion that emggees the prement oocurs

In '-“iI'EUHTHIE lhttﬁﬂ!ﬂi viliae of bense paymenis, the ':-'rl'l-‘ll.?lp ases e merermental '||-crrmw:|ng rate wt the lease commseacemen
ahate 1f the merest rave imphicit in the kase i oot weadily deveminabile. After the commenosment date, the amaunt oF lease
tiabelirtes 1 ncreased 1o reflect the weoretion of interest and reduced for the lease papments made. Ia additon, the carrying
amoamnt of lease kabilites 1 remeasured if there is 8 modfication, a change n the lease tenn, o change i the m-substance
fized bease payments or a change in the assessmeent 1o purchase the onderving asset

Shorr-tevee foases ared deages o duvvalie aimeti

The Group applics the short-temm lewse recogninon exempion o it short-term leases (e, those leases that have o bease erm
ol 12 menths or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase opnda). The Group alsa applies the lease
ol levw-value nesets rocopibon exemprue io office g leasen wherem an Llnd-u.l!'mg wrser 48 comsdored of kew value,
Leuse paymienis on shar-teem leases and lesses of Jow-valae sssets ane recopmised 25 expense oo a steatghi-loe baas over the
lvase e
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.Tﬁﬁm.ﬂw.l.u dedervmtmingg the feasr ferm o cominade sinh s P

1he Group determines the kease seem nz the non canceflable term of the lease, together with any penods corered by an opaon
m exvend the leise 1 i i reasalily certmm o Te exercised, or anv pedods covered by an ophion to ferminate the lease, if it
in peascmabdy cerman non o be exsiused,

Fimaseer fara =G ¢ @ detie

The Group recogmises lease payment receivalbies i e amount squal o net imvestments in lease from commencesent of the
lease reem. Finanee income i caloulated based on 4 patiem rellecting u constant penadic rate of renem on the camang amount
of nat investments, Inital direct costs are secorded within inatal amount of lease payment receivabies

Leases which sssume trnsfer of substannully all the tsks snd rewards of ownership e cassified 1s financs leases leasing).

Whether a lease 15 2 Gosnce kase depensds on the substance of the mansacnon rather than tse form. Esamples of situatioas
thut indrvidually or in combination would nommally lead to 2 lesse being classified a9 o fnance Jease are:

L The lesse transfers ownership of the asset to the lessee by the end of the lease wem;

2] The lessee has the aption to purchase the asser ar 3 pace thar s expected 1 be sufficendy lower than the faie valoe ar
the dare the option bectmes exercisable for it to be ressonably certain ot the incephinn of the lease, thar the apison will
be exercised;

3 The lease term g for @ major par of e coonone Bfe of the seser even if tde 18 sor reansfecred;

4) At the moepnon of the lesse the present valae of the mungmom lease parments asmoants tooat least subsantally sl of
the Gair walue of the underhing asset, or

5 The underdving ssset 5 of such a specialised nature that only the lessee can wse them without maor modificasons
beang made.

1FE 16 also denafies chamscrersstics that, msdivadually or m combinanon, can lead 16 alese being classified 4 o finance lease:

k) of the besser 33 entided 1o cancel the lense eady, the lessor's lomses awanciated wit the cancelanon ase home Ty tha

beszee,

Z) s ar bosses fom flucouations i the fair valoe of the residual fall to the lessee (for example, by means of 2 1ebare of
bk payenons equel o the magodiiy of he procesds om the saleat the end of the lease tenm)) and

¥ the lessee has the abiline tocontinue o ke for o secondury pennd a1 o rent that is substartially lower than mrkee
reni

{owitoad svvarvermencend

L pon besse commencement, the Group shall recogmise assers held under o fnance lease as a reccivable at an asmount eqquitl 06
the net investsment 0 the [eree,

Trugal recogrrmon = made on the dase of sgming of the act of transies faccepeance of the leasing item with the lessee, The met
invesiment in the lease 8 the gross investment in the lease disconnted ar the meerest mte anphiat in the lesse

Truriad direce costs associated with the scquisioon of the lessing item ane mcluded tn the initi] measurement of Arancial kease

recervaldes.

Lease paymenis are made by lessees an o reguler basis 18 sccordance with finande kases, Lease payments are allocsted m
secordance with the terms of comcluded fnance leases.

The meapunos of finance meome should be bazed on s pateen seflecting 3 constant perodic nite of um o e ksors
net invesmont outstinding in respect of the finance lease. The aceraal of interest begans ar commencement of the bedse wom,
urless oiheraase ix ::rrrminl:d h},' the reems of the Anance bease

he commencement date of a Jease 1 the date on which the lessar makes an asset avaibible for use by lessee. This i the dase
of inial recognition of the lease {Le. recopmtion by the lessee of fhe relevant assets, habidities, meome or expenses imakisg
froen the leaze],

Wamng off the princpal, fees and oiher moeivalies on firance kase ur the expense of the etablished provissons s made in
the fellowing cases

Y declanng the debtar bankmupr and /or cxcluding the debtor from the nadonal rgisters of dentification numbers;

by the Group has secerved an act of the bathif ro teonunare the enforcement proceedings and rerum she it of execution
tos the claimant due 1o the debror's lick of properry that cin be foreclosed. At the same vme, debe casicellation is made
1:Ir|.1§.= if the hankmpicy FI!'DI.‘E-EI‘I.HE!- cannng be applied due 1o legl resncoons,
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Fees may be chorged under finance leases, 1F the fec = e m‘l‘egﬂ] il of the effectne intepest ruie for o Bnance lease such fee
it peooghised a8 a disconnt to the poncipal wncant of fhe Goamnee lease s is credited to inconme LT the sffectve e
miethod. The fee {5 payable wwhin the teeme apulased by the contrct

The Griup recards ¢ modification of finance lesse a5 a lease tf the follvwing rwo eonditions are met
1 sesers increase under the lease agreement; and

2] consideration for the bease 15 increased by an smount commensisrate with the stand-sdone selling prce n ncrease the
scopse, and by appropmate admstments to thar stand-alone selling price 1o reflect the crcumsances of the parmcolar
camfract

1f the modification o a finance lease 4 ned reconded as o Le[uraie lease, the Gn:mp accenante for the snodalficaiaom urder
1IFES 0.

In the evenit of & finance lease in which the Gooup acts a5 a lessee, the Group, for recogrition md measorement of mansacons,
will be gaided by the selevant provisons of TFRS 16 Laer,

Foreign currency translafion

The consobdated fnandial stabemets wre presented m Kamukhstam tenge, which & the Group's funcoonal and pressnton
cuetency. Tramsacnons o toregn currencies are mially recognned i the funcoonal curency of the Growp at exchanpe rare
ar the dare of the tmnsactons. Monetary assets and Iabiities denomindted i foreign currencies a1 the epomng date ane
retranslated m the functional cumency at the exchinge rate ar that date. Gamy and losses resalting from the teenelstion of
forelgn currency Tansscions are recognased in the consobdated statement of profit or boes a5 forcign exchange net g/ lose.
on-monetaey items that are measarcd in tooms of historscal cost in s foceign curtency ane wanslased ssing the exchupe e
at the dute of the (rassction. Non-monetary sems that are measared e teems of fee value 6 0 ferclgn curmency are amslated
v the exchange rates us a1 the dutes of fair vahse measurement,

The subsidury's mchonal cumency s the Kaxakhstan renpe.

The diffesence between the contractial cxchange rwe of a transaction i o foeign currency and e official (Kaeakhsian Sk
Exchange (KASE] vachange ate a2 at the date of the transactien are iscluded i pains Jess losses from tambibon difference.
Below are the exchonge rates used by the Group in prepasation of these comsolidated fnancal stiemenss

A1 Decermber I Deéscernibuer

2022 202
EET 5D d652.65 231,80
EXT/EUR 452 B 48810
KET/RLUHB 3 avh

Segrcnt roporiing

The Grroaop's business and geographical segments were not pressnted separioely i these consolidated fimancal statemenis as
management believes thar the mon opemmng segment of lending sed fmince leasng 3 agocuttural orparisations 1o the
Republic of Kazakhstan, for which the ozks and level of reum are considered similer throoghout the country, Making
decisions on the alfocation of the Group’s resources and assesssnent of the Group's performance by the management making
aperanng decisons are based oo the IFRS conschdsted financial sratements.

Tiew sramdards snd inteqrerataons not yet adopied

A number of new standands ind amendmenis o standards are effecave for anmml periods bepirmaing after | funuare 223 and
eartbier applcanon i¢ permitted. The Growp has not carly adopted the new or smended standards i prepanng these
consabduied Bnascil sistements

The following smended sundards and l1.1ﬂ'|'.|rrm.|.rims are mat expectod o hove a dﬁﬁﬁcm: umpact ooy the Growp's
comsabdated Arancal statemente

- IFRY §7 Linirwee Contrads)
= slwwendmeoutr to LAY B - Definivi of Aawwnting Bieadis;
= Amenlorods fo LAY 1 owd IFRY Praocgee Tentemens T — Difoiss of A wesmirsg Dadizer;

. Aoy to LAY 12 v Tanins — Dhferred Taoe redated s Arreds aowd LAaliBied writan froce o Niwpt Tragsactior,
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Significant accounting judgments and estimates
Esvmanion uncematan

In the process of applying the Group's socouating polices, manngement e used s padpmenis and made esfimanes fn
determmang the smounts recognised i the consolidsted finsncial stiements. The most significant e of judgments and
estimares are as follows:

Fuse pendur uf Hrawcial dvrframents

Where the tair values of finasceal sssets dnd Grancal labidibes recorded 10 the consalidared sarement of fnancial position
cannot be denved from active markers, they are defermined usag a ranety of valuastion technigues thar melsde the use of
mathemanesl medels. The input to these models is taken from cheervabde magkes whese possble, but where this is not
feasthle, o degree of mdament & required mestablishing fasr values: Fusther deewils are provided i Noge 79,

Exgpecteal covdit deaies am il aroi

‘The messurement of impatment losses under TFRS % scross all categomes of financial assets requires judgrent, m partenlsr,
the esnmation of the ECL and timing of fisture cash fows and colliteeal valies when assessing o sgnificant increaze in credat
msk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, chanpes in which can result in different bevels of allowances, The
Grroup's ECL calcubatwns are outputs of complex models wath 3 nomber of usdedyving sssumprions regarding the choice of
vatiable miputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL modeks fat are considered sccounnmg judpments and
estamiies inchude:

. the Group's cotens for assessing if these has been o sgnificant ncocase m credit osi ond so allowances for fnsncial
asretn shoild be msasensl oo @ lifibme ECL basis and the quaiitnoyve sssesmen,

. Grroupmng of fimancial sssens, when thew ECLs #re asseseed on s group bases:
- Developrment of the ECL calcubation models, inchidang vancus fopmulas and choice of nput data;

- Dorerminanen of assoctnon berseen masmesondmic scenarios and, coonmmc npats, suchy w3 effoct on pmi:mhi.l.iu:—.q
of default (P13, exposures ar defaule (FADY gad bosags gven defaule (LGDY;

. Selectson of forwand-lnoking macroeconomic scenarios and rheir probabiling welghtings, 1o denve the econpmic Inpurs
imuo the ECL ussessment maockels,

Further detuls ore prosaded in S 27,
i fiairra! asieriwent

The Group's smansgraacat meastees i collasemls on w oegulas bass, wsing i judgmiens besed on e peocnce o mdepomben
estmates 1o sdjust the vatie of colluteral to refboct current marker condimions. Fursher demils are provided i Ne 9,

Tinanue

The Republic of Kazakhstan correnily has a single Tax Code thar regudares man rasamnon maness. The extatng tases dnchsde
value added rax, corporate meome tax, socal snd other maes: Implemienting regalatons are often unclear o non-exissent and
mignificant amosnt of precedents hus been esmblished. Ofen, $ffering opinions reganding Jegal mterpeetation exsst baoth
ienong and anthen govemment ministnes and oeganisations; thus creating uneectinnes and soeas of conflicns: Tax declarations,
topether with ather lepal complssce sreas (i camples, customs and curreacy contiral matters) ane sulsect fo review wnd
T e I",’-' a miember of aurhannes winch ane enabled |:|=:|'|“.r1'c| umpsse severe Anes, pesnalbes wod interest ;Iu.qEﬂ. Theee
facts create ax miks in Kazabhstan sulstansally more sigaficant than rypically fonnd m conntries with mose develaped tax
EVENETS,

Management bebieves that the Groop s a0 compliance with the max bws of the Regublse of Kazakhstan regobinng s
wperstone. [oweves, the usk remains thar refevant authonites could ke diffenng positions with regard 1 isrepretive tx

ARBLIES,
Basis of measuremen

The consolidaied foanal staemenis are prepandd on the histoncal cosr batis,
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Comparative information adjustments
The impact from adpstments to previowsly reported data on e corresponding Sgures may he as follows:

As previoushy As restated /
reporied  Reclassification reclassified

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended
M December 2021
Inrerest received R E R CTH 4,590 421 613371
Cash flows from operating activitics before changes in
vperating assets and labilides 14571.797 4 500 427 155712148
et frranel { Asermere Jn DTN @LsEL]
Ciovemmicat granis B G435 (a9 425 6217014

Acquisition of subsidiary and business combinations under commeon control

Dt 1 July 2032, 100% of ordinary shares of KaedgeoFmance 150 ronallng KZT 147 470014 000 were rransfeered 51 the
afferg price of AT 1000 per one ordinary share against pavmsent for 147 470,014 aedmary shares of the Company, throogh
the exercise of the pre-emprve nght by Bametek NMH J5C. wheeh acts us the Company's Bole Shaseholdes, to puschase the
Compaoy's shaees,

The Group applied mdgment 1o classfy scquusmon of subssdiaey w8 ‘nequisition of bty ander common contol” becmse
both the Company snd its aubsidiany were under commen contol of the Sharcholdes. To aconient for the acquirition, the
Compary wsed the pooling of interests method, under which all assets and habslives weee scated e the camying amounts of
aesete and Labilities presented i the Bnancal statements.of sibadury

Thas, o 1 July 2022, after completion of purchase of shases of KnzAgroFmance JSC, the Comgan's share capital increased
by BT 147470004 thourand and dhe amounts due from subsidiary @ the Company of 2T 20,042,431 thousand wese
dereengnised 95 @ result of busmess combwanen n the consolidated fmancial satements of the Group. Ner asets of the
subsidinry as at the date of scquisition wmaunted 0 KZT 167707271 thowsand. The posmive difierence hevocen the
subsibinny’s net sssets and papment wceved for the increased share capital, tking nfo scoount derecopninon of the
Company's assets - amounts due foom the sabsidien:, was BZT 94800 thousand. 1r was incheded i rerined earming: a¢ part

e equiry.

The follewing table sommerses the recogaised amounts of asecis scquired and Babibives assamed 51 the soguistion date

Ar I July
A2

Agaels

Cash 503,787
Lvane vo bandes 7041
Loans m customers 1841 2,580
Lease receivahles 324 547 4495
Inveniones $ 175454
Carrent corpomie incodme bx asseis 134,115
Property, plant and equiproent B3g,050
Inzangible azcer 4382
Value added tax and other 1xes receivable TH35T
MAddvances pand 4,177 (T
{ither sesens 260,291
Total assets 404,494 045
Liabilities

Asnounts dae o Buterek NMH |50 11.371,533
Amoanis diss o credit menmiiens 34 508230
Trehit socunnies esued 132 AT T92
I’“J:.-ﬂ.hle& to supphers 11867 260
Treferred corporate income tix labilities TA9105
Advances received] G438
Drefeered value adidad s habiliees G471 900
Chiber lishilises 3,066,828
Total hobilities 236,787,674
Total net arreie 167,707,211

28
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Merger of Fawd o Financial Support for Agrowirare 150

Lo implement the Address of the Head of State 1o the Feople of Kazakhstan, the Mmasrry of Agncobose and the Mimstry of
ldhusery and Infrastructunl Development of the Repoblic of Kazaklstin sppeoved & Nabonal Plin Rosd Map (the “Roed
Blap™). Pursuant to Section 27 wof the Rowd Map, b the end of 2021, Fund o Finanaal Support of Apnicalnre [SC (the
“Fund™) was reoganisal through mkeover by the Group, with subsequent dissolusion of the Fund.

By decisson of the Manspement Board of e Sole Sharcholder No. 66/21 dated 13 December X121, the Company was
rearpanised through the rerospectve tkeover of the Fund on 1 December 2021, The FFSA property, sghts md abiigitons
were transfermed 1o the Company a5 part of the reorgansation from: the dare of approval of the st of wminafer, raking into
account the requirements of the legislanon of the Repubbc of Kazakhitan

s a result of the rearganiestion, the. Groep has hecosne » legal suecersor of FISA for oll is obligarions gad peopesry nghrs
m respect of all creditors and detuars of FFRA, muluding those for obligaoone and property aphm sppealid by the partios
(FIFSA and/or thied parfies)

The Group's share capital increased by B2CT 80,371 244 thousend afier the takeover of FFSA, O | Decernber 2021, afier
the plagement of sheres, FFEA transferred a0l assets and Hihiliges, snd the met asmets on the minsfer amounted i
ROET 80,603,116 thoesnd.: As o esull, the Group secognised o postiive difference of 2T 311,672 thoussnd within the

petaingd eacninge in cquaty

The following mhle summanses the recogmsed amounts of assets acguired snd Babifmes assomed ar die tbeover dase:

Ae F Eccornber
20
Asseis
Lish drndd B34
[evestmient seciritics L (2 603
Loans o customers I 16,508
Lease receivables 0.630,253
Froperty held for fmance bease 444,762
Advanees paid 43,054
Peoperiy, plest and eguipment 1,103 R &k
Inmngble assos 412034
Valise wckbed tux recermhle 1115274
{Irther aesars & 3549
Toral asseis 235 154 154
Liabilivies
Loans from loc] exenanve adies 112,350,228
Loans from the United Natons 27,533
Ligkalines on neesl IR 1,554,254
LIt secianmses sz T TALASG
Current corponie noiane v, lalilines 137 7
Dreferred corporare mcome ax liahilines 2040413
Dreficrredd wabae added fax lmbiliny 1, 203.334
Crawetaineid g 17 33,744
{ dher habdhies ot
Toral Habilites 144,511,238
Total net asseis HLnES 116
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash ol cash equivalensts consist of the following;
Jt Becemnber H Degemiber
22F i
Bivoise mpu:l:r.'h.u.ﬂ ajjreenpeil T42A% 424 =
Camily ab current bank pcermmes 59 3%6062 LR ELF |
MARE notes 20,5000 b 20 4R7T 425
Cash nn current hank acooimes with the Repoblican Sare Encermease (ASE] "The
Trowsiry Commiteee of the Menisery of Finance of the Repuldic of Kazakhstan® 103,351 .
{ brernight depossts with ocher banks T41 14,218,596
{aah on hand 14 15
172,489,673 102,855,777
Abcvaunice fue exprocitd wredis lpsses 15,367 . [2 0Ly
Cash and cash equivalents 172,454, 504 102,423,173
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As at 3] December K2 cash anad cash qu.u\fﬂmn ane bk st e and rur.rﬂnn.ﬁc-.d ETSTT) Fmﬂ:r 1 [‘,'i1 [Dievember 3031 - cash
s carh eguivalenes are not past die and cangosised mio Stpe 1),

Avat 3 December 2028 and 31 Decesnber 2021, the credir qualiny of cash and cash equivalents balances may be sammarised
el v Standant and Poor's or other agencies converied B Standarlf Poor’s sale ax follows:

X Decpmber 2027
Corrrens
ACCOuT with
HEE “The
Treasary
Cormmurres o
the Mingstry of Overmfplin
Firranee of the dhemowits Reverse
Currens Republic of NBRK  with other  nepurchase
acconniy. Karakheman® Aaes vk BTN Ttal

Moot prerdie

- WIVRE fiobes (ol nebed) - - M R i - - TM.566360
Cash oa carvent sccotint with

REE “The Treawery Commmittes nof

the Minkstry of Finance of the

Repubbic of Kazakhstun®™ {nar
sated; . 1,351 6k = : — I0AS1 66
- WBRE 1, BCELCEN = - = - 1RG0
= rwtend Froon BRB- vo BRE= 3622073 = - - - AT
- mtedd froom B o BB+ B ETT 103 - = ’ = ERTT 08

ratex] Fioon Be pa [+ 2,477 455 - - - 4 HFT 455

noe rated 1,620,431 = = THL TAZNEANM TTAGRAN
Total cagh and cash equivalente,
net of cash hefote deduenion of
impairment alowance E8 56, 0s32 10,551,065 20, 566 W06 T4l T4 ERE 424 172 ART RS
Alowane for sapecoed coedit
I 1,47 (124 L2 AT - 1.7 (5567
Total cash and cash equivalents,
et of cash 58,334,615 10,550,942 20,564,279 T 74233715 17484202

I Breceaier 203
[
ALuereri deposies with
ACCELTS ERK aoaes edrer fudpnkow Tl

Mot overdut

MBRLK noces fnat maned) - 20487 425 - 29 4HT 425

exted Feorn BED- o BRA+ 54,120,045 - . 54,120,945

rated fram BE- 1o BE+ 156,343 - 14,203 Tad 168351129
— ruresd feoen Be o A+ 141,223 - : 111,525
- it e 473314 2 5,810 8767 84
Total cash and cash equivalents, net of cash
before dedoction of mpainment allowanece 59,149 641 L 4ET 425 14,218 6% 102 835, TH2
Allowsinee for expected credin bosses (B35) (1 (8% (] (2 ]
Total cash and cash eqnivalents, net of cash 59,148, Rk 20,486,356 14,215,016 M2, 853,158

Amar 31 December 2022 the bubce of w1 med cish and cash equivalents inchuchées the halances with Cirbank Fazakhsten
JEC und Besele Bank J5C (31 December 2021 Cinbank Karakhstan J5(2).

Asat 3 December 2022, the Group entered into reverss repo agreements at Kazakhsrim Stock Exchange, which were secured
by the teeasury hille of the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan, NBRE notes and bonds of the Eyrisin
Lrevelopment Bank. The total fat value of the above financial mstmments was KZT 74382575 thoussnd, The carying
AMOUNT under SEVerse repao agreements 23 at the reporting dare was KZT 74,233,715 thousand (31 December 2021 theve wene

00 FEVe e Tepa agreements ).
Asar 31 December 2022 the Group does oot have any accounts with hank, whose woral balances of cash and cash squivalenrs

excees] 1000 of the Group's equity (31 December 2001: cash balasces of KZT 33,570,476 thousand wath Fursian
Development Bank snd NERK notes of KET 29,487 425 thousind)
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Loans to banks
S Drecernber M Deceamber
b 203
Loaqa 1o second-uer banks 1003070 12618972
Term deposits wwh matunny more than 90 days 6l 236 LB, 779
10,525,812 13,727,751
Allewunce for expected credit bosses (7625 (15,239
D from banks 10,518,187 13,708,512

As at 31 December 2022, loans w second-ter banks wre not overdue and sre categorised o Stage 1 (31 December 2021
loans 1 second -ber banks are not overduee and categonsed o Stage 1),

Ax ot M Dipeornber 322 and 31 December 2021, the credin quality of koans to bunks moy be summanaed based on Standacd
wid Pone's e other lEErll:i::l eomverted o Standard & Poor's seale s Follows:

i Docember H December
2 Eﬂ-’-_'a'____.

Ton wveniue
- el from BRE- 10 BRI+ T 58] 28 136
- pated freom BB- 0 BB+ = 11328459
rated froms B o Bt 1119234 101,156
10,525,812 1,727,151
Allownnce for expecied creda lospes (7 8 25] {19,239
Livana ta banks 10,518,187 13, 708,512

Dunng 2022, as pant of the Kea-Dala anmul govemment programme for supporn of the spang field works, the Group
provided loans to Halvk Sivings Baok J5C for the todal amount of K2T 38,604,164 thousand, First Heastland jusan Bank
I5C tor che ol amount of KZT 3,099,228 thousand, Bank CenterCredit |50 for the ol smount of KZT 906,567 theausand
ut the belowomarket interesr pate of 1.340% poa and maneny before 1 December 2022 — for koane isaeed (o the roral amosni
of KET 32957 000 showsand, marerfy before 1 March 2023 - for lons dsced for the soial amonnt of KZT 2802979
thousamd. The Crooup recopnised discownt of 2T 3,559,818 thausand a4 kese on indtel secogninon of Toans ar below-markes
inferest rabes and intesest income on amomiation of dscount of KET 3,318,027 thomssnd m the copsolidered starement of
prafis o loss within other expenses and inlercst meome on boans to banks, respectivelr, The Graup applied esimated marker
merest mates from 14.91%% 1o 18.76% pa to muemsute the fiur value of the shove mentoned loans on initial recognstion by
discounning thesr futuse contracnisl cash Bowe

Diuting 2021, ax pant of the Ken-Dals anmul government prograsme for suppart of the spring fied works, the Growp
provided Joans to Halyk Sevings Bank 5 for the toml amounr of KAT 31,540,998 thousand ar the helow-market iniesest
st of L5 o, pnel matuney an

Gt 1 December 2021 the Group recogmised discount of BZT 1,954,546 thousand a5 loss on innal recogmition of loans ae
below-madket mterést rites and merest income on amorisanon of dscount of KET 1954, 5406 thowsand in the coneshdared
stafement &l profit os loss within other expenses and interest moome on loans 1o banks, respecavely. The Group applied
eatmuled market intereat mres from F019% to 1100% pa. o messure the fir vaboe of the above-mentioned Joase on inital
recogminnm by discounring their fumes contraciual cash e,

As at 31 December 2022 the Group had no halances with banks with total balance exceeding 10.00%% of egaty.

Loans to customers

Ladsts to customees e represensed by loans to the horrowers operating in the agricubiursl sector and inchude the following
[Pt

AF Pecemiber I December

. 2z

Loans to legal enntics-credin partnerships 297,707 AN 201 508,382
Losans to legal ennties for mvestment projects 115,230,485 103,307,504
Laamns 1o other legal entines SO0 SR A 155 473,637
Loans toandnaduals 276, BE1 359 25,067 (b
870,831,998 754,056,163

Albowance for expecied credin lodics (135,327,.208) (B O 10 505
Leans tw castemers Hsrwhm ol 016,227
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Wi KZT

Impuirment allowance for leaas 1 customens

The 1bée below provdes analyns of movements in the gross hoak value and the ECL allowsnce for loans t legal entities and

individeals for the reelve monthd ended 31 Decembes MIZH

Loans i

legal entities-credit parenerships Stage 1 Srage 2 Stagn 3 POCT Tewal
Gross camyving amount at 1 Janoary

H22 68,500,768 L4758 151,331,710 - 21,308,282
Mew assers orgginated or purchused* 140,184 383 23233574 * T4 000 154,140,147
Aszirts repaid, inchidmg changes due 1o

p:lﬂ.i.ﬂ rep:l]mntnr'in:t:m: hgnra:

CHTVIg amou (TS CI2052 TAHY  (14.6560240% = (P8 AT5 400)
Transters to Srage 1 81,845,585 — [R1,H45385) = &
Tnsless 1o Stage 2 (3,037,342 2E1TE 1T 24,244 847, = =
Transfers to Swugn: 3 2 423TH (253,129 405 502 - .
Changes provided for by apreement of

cash flows from modificanon thar docs

i eesle i derecogniition - — (1218251} - (1.218.251)
Clhanges an mlenest socmed 236,350 884, ENT {1 287135 - 1934054
As 3 December 2022 205,930,373 41,554,189 30,571,154 T41,0%0 277,797 806
| m'.M-'ﬂ:g EHH.!T.I;‘:T Tetiodea iages E_J'-FEI' o m‘dg.n:'ﬂ'n.r Err W arredt EHEMM o furegead

FEEE TR

Fogrand enttitios-crodit pareners i Seage | Srage & Stage 3 FoCr Tuiral
ECL allowance as at 1 January 2022 5436 1,533 5,302,7M - 5300650
Miew assets onginated or pirrchased” 192 a2 133, 1640 = = 325 g
Asseis repaid (TRET; - [1.270,725) - {1278 560
Transfers to Stage 1 S0, 15% - {50157 - -
Transfers to Suge 2 [f154} 506,773 {50 121) - -
Transfers o Smage 3 - (114} in4 - -
Mowernents m B4 Ls for the TRAr s W

resibl of runsfer From SLApe fo siape

and changes 10 mputs 416,723 27077 411818 = (26557,
Changres provaled for by apreement of

cush fows from modihoanon thar docs

ot resull in desecognition {402 498 (2, 7i0) = - (G0 258
Liparinchng of discoant - = 364532 - 1,564,532
Ar 3 December 2022 F9z.99] J40 8L 4 B2 514 - 5,025,332
*lussidiy franiiers befosrn Hapes after feiilal reopaitien for ave dvrell snginated oF piehared

Loang o legal enalifes fiv

SR ETETR P ects _ Sragel Stage 2 Stagre 3 Pocr Toaral
Girose carrying amount at 1 January

D 12,334,402 ~ TRE0EIT 232,085 113,307,304
Meaw sasite ongmted or punchased® 14444735 = - J8. 007 14002852
Assets repad, including changes due 1o

partial separment or NCTERLE Bl Toss

CAITVUI[E AMsiEi 6713097 {36500 2,447 545 16,454 1L LRY Ak
Tramsfess 1w Siage 1 21305460 = (21360 5440) - =
Transfers 10 Stge 2 [723,503) L35, 160 {391567) - -
Trnsfess 1o Sage 3 {5, 7066900 = 5, Taa 00 = =
Chanpes provided foc by agresment of

caih flevs fmom mesdificanion that dees

e result o derecognition - - [3, 304 63 - (3,364,000
Clatges in miterest aconsed 1LITEIM 33,107 1161328 31544 2 576,108
At 31 December 2022 36,483,317 1,311,751 75,255 24 2,20, 185 115,230,483

*Includimg rampiers befween ataer affer fuifial prcgartaor far pew ety ansmated o puriicend
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YW KZT

Loung tn legal ennitios for invesinient

ECL allowance o8 at 1 Jamuary X122
M assel ofgeated or purchased®
Aseers repaasd

Trnesfers o Siape 1

Tranfern o Stage 2

Trunsfers to Srege 3

Movements b BECLa fur the yoar asa
reslt of transfes from stage to aage sad
chasges in npuis

Chariges provaded for by agreement of
cash flows frem modificarion that does
rvd peaull i derecogrotion

Limarndmp of disgount

Chlaer changes relutigs bo restutement of
poor peood provisioes

Ckher changcs

An 3] December 2022

Flaydiding Ireansind Intoedn rlapes affer imtiel reopfog for aaw ety avigiaated or partihatisd

Loans o ather legal entities

Crrome carrving amoumt ot 1 fancasy
2023

Recogneed 244 redalt of acquannon of
subsicdmne

Dhippeoal due to dequaisin of subssdiny
Mew assers originated or ponchased”
Assers repaid, mchding changres due 10
partinl repuyTen or MCrEsE i) groes
carrying gminent

Trmnefers 1o Sage |

Trandes in Rragee: 2

Thlrli-\.rrrt i S"."E‘:‘ 3

Changes provided for by agreemsent of
cush fliowe from moxEtfeason thar dioes
nof resall an desecagnition

Changes in mberes: uecroed

Amounes weitten off

At 3 Dhecember 2022

“luclvalinp frowrierr befween caper after inétiad rropwition far mew austr sngiveizd or purchaned

Loarrs fo ul!.l‘ler}g:n.l' Erres

ECL allowange as ar 1 [ameary 2022
Recogmeed as s cesudt of acquismos of
suhesdine

Dr=posal due o sequismon of subsidiany
oW 1ssee nnitim:r.u::d @il purc-'l-“wd'
Astens repaxd

Tonafeo we Seage 1

Trnsters 0 Sope T

Tranalers 1 Seage 3

NMMovemenis in ECL= forche NVEAr a4 A
weaaly of trusalee from abags o stage and
changes in mputs

Eh:ﬂge,q prmn.tl-r.d l'm'h:: agheament af
cizh flows froom modificomon that does
mot resaddt i derecopnetion

Lleraaneling of dasconne

Amounts witten off

{Jpher chunges relanng to resratement af
prio period provisom.

A M December 222

Stagre 1 Seage 2 Stage 3 Fercd Toin!
B892 - 25,780,617 38,387 27,008,116
08 562 - - z 0115 5462
(793) - [ 3. 2401 8R0) - 13241673
{48,327 48,317 - %
(1:26,889) - I26:R85 i =
450573 250 563 5357785 100,20 11,143,265
- (73,161} - e N
; = 5571768 - 5,571,768
45AT3 - 7,504,953 - TA53 440
- - {3,551,563) < (3,351 563}
B ATLAT 24,729 37,559,855 1,698,605 45,365,760
Srage [ Suive 2 Sl'li'ﬂ' ¥ | Poey Toral
TTATE,T61 1,919,000 74,849, 260 2410 153,473,637
1,1 5068 2,126,413 26054930 - 29332 (ki)
{20041, 115 - - - (20541 095
1,254,030 2,635,604 5,459,835 89,430,579
{#3,248,327) (553,407) (TRISITE) 25M (31,654,314
2,628,304 [1.541,053) (1,087 362 - -
{1,569,103) 1414523 {1,845 420
{14, B0, OT] (338,147 20,192 424 -
= - {5,103 34T} - [5,003.347)
743,951 271,544 6,992 333 - 804,128
= o "+ (1,652 284} - (1,653 20¢)
B0, THG 222 4,579,658 10, 165374 54,056 200,922 340
Srage | Stage 2 Srage 4 ey Tiieal
1L,73L620 187,523 31,481,333 3,043 33,4609 321
2438 - 13,1441 6 13,147 554
(1,654 360 - - (1,654, 3600
1 490,250 431 = : 1,450,010
[141.267) {8.3512) (2,493,673) = [2.6401,254)
333083 [252.982 CIB0 L0 = =
(5423 468 410 (461,597 -
Y638 (144367} {12729 - -
ETRIRE TV HOI1, 741 2.6E4,525 et 4 573 A28
(ZE07) {1:253) - - {41500
£ 3,328,294 = 3 535 200
e - (1.652.280) - (1,652 286
- = 11675435 - 11,6575 435
2,965,231 1144,217 87,739, 584 25,255 61.E74,297

*wviiling tronsiors Belaeen siager SRier WERD) FVEINGR (6r Kew aisis orgseated or puriaied
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EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A KLT

Thae tahie helow privvsdes analysts of movements in the gross camrying amount and the BECL allowance for loans to indmaduals

foc 2022

Lapaems pn deralivialiady

Gross curryving amount ot 1 January
(]

Recopnased as g eesult eof acquisition of
subsidiagy

M pasets onginated or purchased
Amsets repuid, induding changes due 1o
partial reparment oF incréae i pros
ATV amrsind

TI:II'II-'EEI’! m‘l‘:-I'HE.E 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Unwandasg of discoun

Changes provided for by agreement of
cath floswes from modaficaton that does
it pesult mederecogninon

Changes in mntzrest accnaed

Ammsnts worten off

Ar 31 December H122

Laans o individuals

ECL allowance as at 1 January 2022
Recognisid ws a result of acquisition of
subeadiany

Mew assets enpinated of purchised
amps repn.il:l

Transfers o Smge 1

Transfers i Smge 2

Transfers 1o Stape 3

Movements in BECLs for the vear asa
eesubt of teandior [rom dbage fo atage
and changes in mpars

Changes provided for by agreement of
cash fows from modification that does
ot resll in derscopnibon

Uawinding of discounn

Hecovery

Amomnis wotien off

At 3 Diecember 2002

Srage | Srage 2 Staigne A Ponct Teical
226 411,760 4,856,030 35,893,903 B2 438 265.967,M0
276,141 14,531 3,218,045 = 5508717
65,000,763 (4,875 - 1,331,319 56,977 857
HaAEETIS) {10337 (1200065 330,121) (53,295 801}
LE Fr (G S CIOET03) — =
AL T0062) 5 RET O {1,246 046Y = =
(15,650 008) (4,005,177 0 RES, 106 . -
- - G5 - 071
- - (129,655) = (125655}
{723,100 19 588 4,184 314 382352 3H63.154
= . (17004 - {174
20,117,628 6,093,841 67,451,892 2,217,988 276,881,369
i Stage 2 Srage 3 POCT Toral
13,163 30,247 21,529,545 539,974 2331290
= - 1.2BR223 far 1,280, 225
36,785 IRHT - - 372 651
(253,07 (24,557} [1,433,001) = G TI0.TST
14047 (1450 (12587) = 7,
VASGE3G) uz1Ml (H66.27S) = -
(257 698, (25,516) 283214 = =
G605 518 el | [LS748.2%4 {21,540 18,408 542
(8BS (3.9 - - (A, 54
= - 114518 - 1614,018
= 05T - {3,057
= o (174 - (17, F4)
7,337,245 1,156,058 4,250,152 514,434 43,261,000

The 1ahle helow provides analyas of movements m ﬂmp:-m: carmping ameant aad the ECL aBoesance for loans o Jegal enomes

tfor BIZ21

Loans o fepal enrites-credir pareersiips

Gross carrving amount ar 1 January 2021

Tiew assers Grgireied or purchased

Aasets tepaicl, includmg changee due o pichal
ACRAYIET OT MCASE 16 GI0Ss CAETyELE] Amaing

Transfers 10 Suge |
Tmnsters 10 i"ﬂ:gr 2

Transfers o Stage 3

EI‘I.ITIP"E‘!- p'mv-ikd for b agresment oof cach flevoes Fronm
mndification that does net result in derscopmition

Cliaiapes ki iilerest accnsed
At 3 December 2021

¥ Seage 2 Srage § Testal
79,941,163 6,526,637  WOG1Z,96 196,040,796
38 4R6,658 131, B80%1 1 Lg ST RPG
(30444267 (TA3SEH)  (EODGOEETY (7124014
4211130 2054521 (1,556,609 5
522,123} 837177 (415,054) -
(23, 266,518) {2,080 56T 25054185 .
5,056 = 475036 FES o]
128, 7RD (11,734 | 337 B b 454 010
[ e 1,475,804 151,331,710 2, MR 2RI

g
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Consobdared Financsl Staresmenes for 2022

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

000 KZT

Loans to legral envivies-crediy pareaerslips Seage | Seage 2 Stagre 3 Toral
ECL ailowance 25 at 1 Janaary 2021 6,062 3133 6,493,509 6, B0, T
Mew assers ongimeed o pinchased 2044 B13,062 RIS, 10w
Auigers sepaid 215 - {5TZ] (L7249
Tranefers to Srge 1 3,133 % R - -
Tmnsfees m Supge 2 (144} 144 -
Teanetess 0 Hﬁy 5 (572} 372

Movernents in BCLs For the veir as s result of mansfer

from stape 10 sruge and changes 10 wpuars Ly 1,389 (1,530,843 (1,532,750
Chanpes prnaded for by spreemens of crshi fiows from

madificancon thar does pot reault i deeecogminion = : (475,957 (4759573
At 3 Diecember 2021 5456 1,553 53025 S 30067
Lwans ro logal entftles for invesmnent

profecis Srage 1 Seagre Z Srape d PGl Tovtad
Gross carrying amount at 1 Janany

2021 48,515,340 - 59,3579 2590, T47 110,264,021
Mew psaets angnated or purchased T6584.711 - (5384 000 - 35,020,073
Asceds rephd’, mlu{hng ch.i.hgm cliar g2

]'."IThﬂ- PEFAVITIEDT N INCREAEE 10 E’H!ﬂl

Cafrying anseunt (T1.1H1 B4} - (13,054 440 b e ey 24,055 502
Transfers o Stape | LI 57 (2327571} & -
Tanstes o Sape 2 - - - =
Translet o Stage 3 (24 THEHS1 - 2410685 =
Changes prevaded for by ageeement of

enzh flovas brom modidficanon that does

isor pesulr in derecopaition g - 474107 14462 475 B0
ICliagipes i diterest aocrmed RS 445 - 5 240 500 257 NRE 445056
Ar 31 December 2021 12,534,407 - 78,540,817 Z,132 85 113,307 504
Lawns fo legal enerives S inves mrens

Projects Seagw | Srage 2 Srape 3 Prwcy Total
ECL allvwsncs as a1 [anasary 2021 BTE, 55 = 24595 604 1,060,232 26,331,476
Mew asete onginated or punchased 3373 - 2E15218 3236501
Amets rq'uid {55 48 = {6, 2 - (341 343
Trnslbers 1o Stape | 7T 045 = (47T 003 - =
Taaasher o Stige 2 - - - 3 5
Trnsfers o Stape 3 {FH, 204 . F 94

Movemenms in ECLe for the year as a

sl o waisfer Dadis LIETL TR arul

change 1o mmas 726432 - (2654972 (H21 RaT) RS PUR L
Changes provided foe by ageeement of

cmh flowe from mndibicateen thar d-n-t-:

ot rerult i e o = 474067 {474,167}
Upwmnding of discoent - - 2188 807 - L188.AT7
Ar 31 December HI21 SED.112 25, TR0A1TT 638,387 27,8, 116
Livagms vo other

legal enditics Seage Stage 2 Stage J PoCt Tt
Gamss cirrving amount at | Januany

201 E1,200,357 30,473 LT 3583 134,250, 145
Becopmised aga oesull of menper 3,406 45 YL | 416,542 . 5,126,542
fegw assits orgmated or purchsed A0 062 155,00} 4,245, 108 - 422126
Aspete repuid, including changes due

partE] FEPATTIENT OF ENCTEARE N o

carrying amennt {34, % 4 4K (30675 (H A1 E0) T.738) (32,0907 5113
Transfers tno Saage 1 1,127,258 (139072 (88, TR, :
Transbers w Soape 2 {1.525,367T) | 357795 (4 A - =
Transfers 14 Sage 3 (20 ATRA1R) (i 808 2541521 - =3
L& provided for by ageeenient of

wash floras frosn odificition ts dies

nox result in derecogeaution da, g3 20,401 1257385 ST 1,355,284
Changes in wierest accrued 1,329,731 TEa3 4 TR - 0,180, 34K
ARSI sl - - (L3 - (12203
Ar 3 December 2021 T1476,76] LA 74,140, 265 28 6110 153 473,637
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EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o KZT

Lians oy other legal entities

ECL allowance as ar 1 Jamuwary 2021
Recigmsed as & moalt of MmErper

Mew asseds onpinated or purchased
Assers repaid

Trasfers f Siage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Tramsfers to Stage 3

Movements in ELLs for the yeat asa
eesult of transfer from stage to stame
ardd changes m s

Changes prowvided foe by ageccmcnn of
cosh fows from modification i does
avot result i derecppritm

Cnwinding of discount

Recovery

Amiounts wnnen off

Al 3 Devember 2021

Sisge | Stagpee 2 Srage 3 Poct Total
1953427 LA 2496430 15372 26,934,820
2351 1,20 | 331950 = 1337 410
225,580 112 L39T 00T - 1615726
8,181 - (BT1.308: = (S 465
28,968 {1,692 (22 296} = =
(R0 A5 80,350 - = -
(459, 106) - 439,106 - -
136,011 104,635 216819 (B 32V} 17 A%H
L A6 A00 - ity O]

= - S AE2 00, R LR

- - 5761 = 5,742
- 3= (412207 = (412,207

1, 731620 187 323 11,481,335 9,043 33,4030

The table below provides analysis of tsovements i the pross carying smount and the ECL allowanee foc loans 1o individaals
for the rwetve months ended 31 December 20210

Loans wm individuals Stagre 1 Seage 2 Seage I PiowcT Towal
Gross cammving amount at 1 Janoary

2021 57,234,051 208LE60  14,915971 785,320 75,007,020
Recognised as a result of merger 156,113,011 3,887,143 6,928,427 - 17e028 541
Mewr assets onginated or purchased M4E5424 LA 3715068 - 341100
Assets repand, inclsding changes due to

partiil repayment or meresse n pross

CAMTYHNR Ao (1923291 (38 620 3,550 BTy (27 21T (231983575
Tranefem 1o Sagr | AAETATH (BE2.7H) (2504, 745 - -
Transfers o Sage 2 {ABT,288) 7,730 (ET0462 = =
Iransfers 1o Smge 3 I3 IAER) (431, 71K5) 341318 - =
Changes provided for by agreement of

cazh Aows from modificaton that dpes

b0l tesult m derecopnition [Fon - 125,343 - 124,544
Changes in inteTest accrisd 2,832,405 [465,3610) EHR 163 fi, 320 3,740 50
Aomomnts wobien off - - (2 4HE) - 6 48K
Al 31 December 2021 226,411,760 4,536,939 33,503 903 24438 265967,040
Lians o fedividials Srage | Srage £ Srage J Pocr Total
ECL allowance as at | January 2021 433,995 222 457 4,862,571 e £ 604,720
Recoguised as a mesulr of menges 321,164 18,005 13,901,536 - 10301405
Mew asaers ongiredied or purchased 3ZRTO0 = 56T 081 - 916,051
Askets repeild (31 A30) (61,037} (RS, 344, - {178,585
Trunstess g Srage | 26,123 (07, 145 (119,178 = -
Tranzlers mﬂmgr 2 (23N 17,048 [1-,061) -
Transfers o Stage 3 (HLAR {6 35 #5685 = -
Moverments i ECLe for the vear a5 a

resalt of tromster froam srage 0 sage

and chunges in mputs (325020 i3, 1) 370587 454, (KE 495,357
Changes provided for by agreement of

cash Hows from modvhcaton thar

does mol result m derecogition - - 18,593 - S
Ulansd g of discouia - - TRG G234 - 186,439
Recovery . = 4477 = 4477
Smounts weatten off — - (34,374 - (56.374)
At 31 December 2021 913,163 30,247 21,829,545 339,078 23,312,920
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Conzobdared Finnncal Starements for 2022

EXPIANATORY NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

T KCAT

The E-'-Iﬁ'm'ing tahle peovides inframation em the crecht guahry of the logne 1o costomers ge ot 31 December 2032 apd

M Decembier X1

Ar S Decernber 20
Seagrer 2 Stagrer 7
Lifedme BCE  Lifhetine ECL
Srage ]  on assees 000 on aESets o
Livans v legal entitiee-credit T-rraprih credir: credit-
fartmerafumy ECL seziprairpd impairea PoCT Toral
not overchie 204,719,601 57,748,508 10,454 742000 263,049 ROT
- everdue ap to 3 days 110712 1,719,769 2213074 e B, 144455
- everdne mcne than 31 days and
leis than 60 dars - 1085421 1,887,951 - 2013005
- overelue moee than &1 dayy and
Jesx shean 90 dars - BT ITHAT
- overdue maore than #1 dayi and
Tess than 360 dave : - 1.200.075 1 0TS
- overdue more tham | veLt AT - 4,350,117
205,934,373 40,554 180 300, 571,154 TAZ,000 277,797 BOE
Alloweance o ewpectad coadin Insse A5EI2.0NT ) (349 827} (4 08T 514 = (5035330
40,204,562 26 ASH 540 T4L N 27T AT
A 31 Decermber 2027
Stage 2 Stage ¥
Lifesime BCL  Lifoive ECL
Stage I on assefy pot on pEseis mol
Lavans v fegral entfities far IZmanth ercaie- credii=
Hrvestmens frofoors ECL faprained drhpifree Foor Taral
Aok rrverdss M ETLAN ETX AN 368, 35G.37TF 220185 Tl 2 20d
- trvenchue lese than 3 dayy I a10.421 L0092 2685 - 11,632 686
- gvendhun e than 31 days and
less thear 60 days = 3R Qg LL5%4 48 - L1LESR A90
- errence more than 61 days and
Jess than W0 days = - 179843 = 170543
ovesdue mewre than 1 days and
less than 560 days - - 3TRTAR - 5,134,752
- awerdue mope than | year . 2 - 9,517 543 = 9517243
i A8, 517 1,311,751 TE, 255 2 2210155 115,230,483
Albewunce bor expocted coweder lonss fﬁ-ﬁ_.HE_“ [ M L] (37,550,536 {1 RIS {45305, 7
A &1, 437 1,077 022 37,675,694 Slki, 580 69,564,723
A 31 Dercwrriver 2027
Seage & Reagre 7
Lifetime ECL Lilvtime ECL
O AEEErE Ao N @5acs raaf
Stage ! erelit- credir-
Loans fo piher legal entities Tty FCL finpadred POy Toeal
nof cvendae BT, TR 2,085,570 R, 145 503 5,491,150 134406220
oo up bo 30 dave AN 223 2169072 1,257 85 - 14,4817 574
- wvendis mHare than 31 dagy and
be=s than ek days 124, 144 0, 5ad 204 10 0GE 55
averdee moee thin 61 dase and
lie=s than W clavs 495 1R 5414
-gendue Mot than 91 days and
lesx than Xk days - 4.8, 550 - 4508 55
- wrverdue fmare than 1 year - - 36,136, 20K - 36,1362
RO, TAE, X 4,570,688 765,374 5,491,056 200,522, 5
Alowance for expecrsd coedit lonssgs 12365731) (1044217 (37,730 584} ":jiﬁj-} i1 874207}
TTHZ0.97 3735471 52,035,700 5. 465,791 130,408,045
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Consolidaied Financal Stitements for 2027

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

) KET
Ar 3} Decembor 2127
SHFE..E' .'h‘:ugp F
Lifetirme ECT.  Lifedme ECE
Srage I oi aswels nef 0N asseis now
L2-morreh eredir- nedif-
Loans to individoals BT lenapaired nrpired POCT Total
- not ovesdae 192337 3492 2101 A7 26,308,765 t 254 651 2 002 782
orerdue up to 30 days B.TR0L130 103 [160 37607197 1,505 14.742 308
- ovverdoe more than 31 days and
less tham 60 chays - 3,78.521 4,114,534 601457 TATeA14
- owverdue more than 67 days and
less than M0 days - : 3,845,655 - 3,845,655
- gresdue maore than 91 da:.-':f i
less than 360 days - - B.03l 086 13503 H.943 9R0
- uverdue more than 1 pear - - 15AH3.653 ERGAER 19370321
201,117,628 5,193,861 67,451,502 27,988 276,881,369
Abowance for expecred credi
losses S, GIBAM) 43261909
103,780, 353 1,937,763 33,201,760 1,599,550 233,619,460
Ar AF December 2020
Srapme 2 Stage 3
Stage | Lifedme BECL on  Livedme ECL an
Loangs w Lmomeh asseds nor credli-  aasers oo croddits
legral entittescredir pareverssliips ECL feipratrad impirined Ttal
L LI ETE GRIGET T 1.26B66] 155 376,536 208903775
=it lega than M) du:ﬂ 241 D 133523 aaaT a4 2. 42556
overdee more than 31 davs and lews than
il clays - Ti61R 3,584 574 3458102
- pveridue more than 61 dave gnd bees than
M days = = H95 WK A0S a0
overdue more than 91 daps end ks than
360 duys - 1472637 1072537
- pverdie moe than 1 pear - - 4,235218 423521 H
68,500,768 1,475 804 151,331,710 221,308,282
Abovwance bor expected cred losses ) {5.A34) {1,533 __(5,362.701) {5,209 670
68,495,332 1,474,271 146,029,005 215,998,612
At 31 Decemiser 202]
Srage 2 Stage
Lifevime ECL  Eiferime ECL
Stagre 1 off RESCES 0T 06 G580k Gt
Lovans o legal envirfes for L-prrearsehy eredii- et
fnvestment profects ECL dnipaired impained o Taral
-tk evendue e T R | - 55,540 440 21 320ME B19TT, RT3
- enverdue Jess than ¥ days 7054 - S ARG 250 = 3463 184
overdue mote than 31 days simd
lews sham 40 diya - 1.521 516 - 1521516
- wvverdue maore than 67 dajes end
lese than 00 duys = 1,006,723 - 1,006,723
- svendior miviare than 91 d.a.:ps s
lese than 560 dayvs - - 5,87 375 = 5 R0
overdue more than 1 veas = - 0446 515 - b 446 533
32,384,402 = 78,540,817 3132088 113,307,304
Allowance for expected credi
losses {580,110 - {35, 780617 (6IBIET] (27048116
31,745,290 — 53,060,200 1493658 86,359, 168




granun Credit Corpogation |SC Comsoldated Pmancil Starements for 2022
EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wii KET

Ar 3 December 2021
Seage 2 Stige ¥
Liferime Lifmme FCL
Stgree | pmopssers o 0N assels fof
Irmaoneh it eredis
Loans o other legal encielos HCL impained fmpaired Pzt Toal
- not overdue 75,618 38 LATELTH 493385594 24610 126,564, 262
- presdue Jess than 30 dava | K58 28] - 6,614,055 - B472,4306
- averdue moce than 31 days and
less than 001 days = S40322 D240 - LA2,TaE
averdue more than 61 days and
less than ) days - - 2756907 - 27507
- overdue more than 91 days and
Tegs thinn 360 days = = 3,625 720 - 625,728
- taerdue more than 1 yenr = - 11,621,534 - 11 621,580
77,476,761 1,910,000 74,049,266 25,610 153,473,637
Allowance for expocied creds
losaes LT 6200 (147,323) (31461335 A LR e )
Th, 45,141 1,731,677 42,567,931 19,567 120,064 516
Ar F December 2020
Stagre 2 Stage J

Simged Lifeine ECL Lifedme ECL
S rnomey [T ASEN FIeR fF7 ESFETR T

Laovwges to irvclfvidnads LOL  credivfimpradred eredie-fmpairod POoCT Tocal
- A avepdue 212 ML ERT = 10,932,511 - 203 631 698
overdur up fo M0 days 1371257 4 0nR 47 A0 M5I17E 152432035
overdue more than 31 duavs
amel le=n than 60 dave - 4,502 8571 1,308 734 S 260 6,281 855
averdue more than 61 days
anel bess than 00 days = = 2408 27 = 2 40H237
- owerdue more tan 91 davs
il fess than 360 days = - a0, 202 - o (IR 2102
orverclue mone than 1 year - - E2,315,R0) - 12,315 504
226,411,760 4,834,939 33,503 903 B24.438 2655967040
Allgrwance for expectesd credic
— GILI3 DU (21629545) EWITH (23312900
Z25.498,397 4,806,692 iﬁ.ﬂm 234,404 242,654,111

Di-l-'l'-l-tl,g 2022 ww perT of the Ken-Thk annael pONEMIneN! poognnmre for Im&np: of ilee lH'ru-i.n.duarri:d Llnﬂplﬁ":. e Liis ]
suppart the spong Beld warks, the Group provided loans for the wil smowmt of KAT 97240821 thousand {2021
RET 31539002 thovsand) at the hedow-market mierest mee of 1.50 % pa (20210 2000 pa) and maning before
November 2025 (020 before Apdl 202X, The Group eoopniscd discount of KET 928,104 thewsand {2021
RET 4027400 thousindy oo sutal coogmnon and unwinding of discounr of KZT 483,608 thousand {2021
BT 3,708,157 thovsand) m the comsolidited stitement of profit or koss within other expenses and mteres: meome on loans
to customers, respectively, The bots of 2T 9250,104 thousend on initeal recogminon of boans at below-market interest mies
(2021 RAT 4007401 rhousand) was fully compensated through receipt of 4 govemment grant (2021 was parmally
comgensated hrough tecept of s povernment grnt of KET 3,757 430 thousand) (e 270 The Groap applied essmated
magket vsrerest valer froen 15,40%0 10 20 HW% Pl |_:|:|3|: froam 13T i Ilhlrl'“i.p.ﬁ._l T mscasure the G value of the above:
migrficred e on mitinl recogmton by dscounnng their funsie costracnaal cish Sows;

Pupmg 222 the Goop contimeed dssing aod servicing the louns provided under the Government Progamme {or the
Development of Preductive Emphiymient and Mass Entreprenenrship for 2007-2021 ("Tsker'™; mew boans were fssed for the
ammoant af KT 5] 464550 thoosand {2027 KET 18,967 32 thousand). The Gooup used extrmased market misrest nites of
1240F% ta 21.90% pa. (2025 11605 — 167045 pa) to measure the Fair value of the sbove-menmoned Ioans on - il
recogritnion by discosnting theie fomiee contractual cagh Bons, The loss of KET 10,901,034 thowsand on intal recognation of
these lnans tssaed ot below marker inrerest tare I:E":I.El: KT 6674 2448 lhnuunﬂ; oA :eq.ngmmd within odher ERpEnEEs and
Fully eampenaated ar the expenee of 3 govemment grant MNaw 27 |

Diatmg 2022 the Crroup continued ssuing and servicang the loans of K27 13,718,157 thousand prosided under Enbek and
Emplorment Rosdmag 2020 povermmeni programmes. The Croup need eenmated oudkst interest rates of 15,400 - 31 00,
p-t- o measure the fiir value of the shove mentinmed ans en mitial recognition by Becoursting their fanre contractual cash
flows, The boes of KZT 2,833,242 thowssnd on winal recopnanon of these loans iziued at bebow market interest mie was
recopruscd wirhin other expenses and fully compensared st the expense of a poverament grant.

i



Agraman Credin Corporation 150 Comiofidated Finuncaal Statements for 2022
EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

T KZT

Durng 2021, the funds siceved as part of the bond jssue i the otel ameunt of KZT 5000000 thousand under the
progmmme “Emplopment Roedmap 2020.2021% (Naw 17} were allocated i Al 1o the agro-cdustrial comples entines. The
Corowp vsed cetimated madket injerest rates of 16.30% - 16,700 poa. tis méasure the fuir value of the above-men ioned loans
ul il recogrution by discounnng their furure contracnaal cash flows. The boes of EZT WI0656 thousand oo il
recayriion of these loans issued ar below myacker mrerest e was recognised within other expenies.

Druring 2022 the Chroop ficurned axprected credit losses oo loans i as prart of the govemment programme of age-
industral comples. development for o totel pmount of K2T 8732054 thousand (2021 AT 2622720 rheasvand) on foams
issued during 2018-2020, Expected credit Insses are compensated through receipt of govemmens geants (MNote 21).

Dranng 2022, as par of 2 loan received fom the Shareholder for lending 1o agro-industne compler ennties to fmence the
comairuction of commencial dairy fasms and implementation of the investment prosects for production and processing of
apnculranal products, the Group ssucd now Teans Tor o tonl smoont of KET 5,500,188 thoosand. The Crroup used estimared
market inteeess rates of 15,4006 - 21.90% pua. to measure the fur value of the sbove-mennsoned loans on mxaal recagrition by

1 thets Funsee contrmenanl cash Aows, The loss of KET 14651777 dhowsand on inital recogrigon of these loans
msed a1 below marker inserest mies was recogmsed within other expenses and was Fally compensated at the cxpense of 3
povEmment grant (Tieis 1),

In the nermal course of buzkess, the G provades loans at below market eates to borraen opemimg i the agriculiaeal
midustzy, Loss of KZT 19,601,734 thousmnd on inimd mcognition of Ioans st below market srtecest mtes (Nt 25) was
recogised within other expenses fur the tvelve months ended 31 December 2022 (2021 K2T 25,782,983 thousand). During
2022 the Group used estimated market inicrest mtes of 1540% to 20.80% poa (2021 11,600 — 16 T paas) s mensure the
fair value of the above-mentioned loans on it secogniton by discounnng their fare contriciual cash Aows.

Ar at M December 2022 the Grong had g0 bormowess whose total balance exceeded 10% of equity (31 December 2021: no
bafronaets).

Collateral and other instramenis thal redwes credit dak

Lhe smamnt and type of collirel required by the Gaoup depend on an assessment of the credit msk of the counterparty
Crmdelines are implemented segardang the aceeptabulity of trpes of collaeral and valuation prameter

Minagement monitors the market value of collserl, sequesrs additional collarem] i sccordance aath the undedving
agrecmnent dinng the resiear of the wdeguacy of the allvesnce for mpairment losses.

The fallowmng ble provades informanen on collavesal wivd ofdser eoodin cabancoments securing loans 10 COMPOIEE COSIMES,
net of koss allowance, by types of collateral 23 ar 31 December 2022

Fair vilue of
Fair value of cellateral = fior
collateral - for collateral
Carrving amount collateral assessed a3 of
of loans o agsesged as of loan inception
CHBLOITIEFS reporing date date
Sy (1 St excpecivd ey foares
Cash and deposars 4,555,551 4,555,55] -
Bk puprintere and surctes received from legal
entativs {rated from B ro BEBE4) 1,258 473 1,256,473 -
Vehseles 61,842,674 - i1 842470
Real extase 00,134,822 50,630,164 L58,3048,458
Equipinenr 10,542,285 AJR,501 L0210 804
Coods m fmaver 13.971,632 - 13,071.632
Land plors 411112383 - 40,112 383
Mo collareral or enher credi enharcernent 166,125,341 - -
Total Stage 1 507,549,183 56,772,779 24,651,063
Sigee 2 (1 oferivme epected erelis Sijes ow auset mw ot
separred) _
Cash and deposiv AT E4R 055548 -
Vehicles FOLG 7T - THLGT0, 5460
Bual eaate 21X TG 6,962 4ib 14 050,321
Equl]:mmf 108431 - 3,108,433
Lroodds in turmover 340,167 - 1491167
Lamdd 4501 762 = 4,501,762
Mk collateral or orher credit enhancement O 08I 662 - -
Total Stage 2 49,954 618 7,946,314 35,822,642
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Wi KET

Soage T (Lifetion expected et forres an credit-impained guat]
ish and deposits

Bank guarantees wvd surenes recerved from legal ennnes
(pafed froamn B- 10 BBR+)

Vehieles

Heal estaie

Equapment

Cpepnls i Ti0VED

Land plots

Cither mssees

i codlabeml or vither credic enhancenve

Total Swage 3

P Teqivet

Cash and depomit

Bank prvantess and sumtien recoved from legul ennnes
[rered Feoms . o BHR+)

Viehacles

Rn;l erhate

Egquigeeni

Goods i famover

Land plogs

Mo eollateral orother credin enhimcement
Taotal POCT-anseis

Taotal loans o customers

The following table provides information on collieral and other credic enhancements securing loans 10 coporte castomers,
ot af loss allewance, by vpes of collaveral as at 3§ [December 2021:

Siage (1 Dot evpatied ol iver)

Cash and depasits

Bank guanntess ancd surenes recenved from legal cannes
{rated from B-m BER+)

Bunk guarantoes and surctics rocoved fvom kegal enones
(it sl )

Whicles

Feal estare

Equi:pmrnl

{anods i mmoves

Furare aisets

Fair value of
Fair valse of eollareeal - for
collateral - for collateral
Carrving aimiunl eollateral assessed as of
of loans to ussessed as of Inan incepring
customers  reporting date date
20,484 026 454 =
38B,679 AEHATT -
4,737,535 07,754 $.62%,771
21.816.063 4, 315, 121 31010542
EATTI20 1,987 594 FEI,120
EHO0 56d - B, R0D 564
17,309,708 - 17.50%,708
517 Ly =
19,330,164 100,E35 -
144,301,884 64,312 444 8,880,111
13,251 13,251 -
[ IEEIRY nxe =
308,600 - 30B.600
1,510,346 3.304.77E 1,230,568
31,254 147841 175,209
34,144 - a4, 144
515419 - S1E410
STET0E - -
B, 409,015 £,480,289 2.357,024
715,304,704 134,513,826 JRE 680,840
Fair value of Fair value of
callameral - for wadlateral = fisr
Carrying amount  collareral assessed collateral assessed
of Ioatis 1o as of reparting as of foan
CUSlomers date ineeption date
1164653 164,653 =
J.435654 2435, 634 -
g B - b Rk
13,688,704 807 (134 5 610G
1 54,768,621 6,515,555 50,253,066
2,043,474 2 TaENEE 1755806
355,054 F0E, 713 T4
T, 115037 h 733,707 A2 1440
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TN KET
Fair value of Fair valuc of
callateral - for callateral - for
Carrving amoniy collateral collateral asscaned
oof Inans mssessed ax of we il baan
CUHSTAMEES n:p-uninl date inception date _
Land plots 24,285,331 17370340 &9 AR
Cithiwr callatoral 5374 2874574 235217
Mo colluteral or orhes credin enliascetnem 183 489,626 - -
Total Stage 1 401,484,360 112,224,338 105,770, 3%
Yeqpe 2 (Lafetivnr socnastead orvallf s aw awsets ot comalstpomghaired)
Cash and deposits 131,823 131,423 =
Bank puatantees and surenes recerved from legs] enutes
mot rated) 5,355 - 5355
Vehicles 43,123 15051 43072
Heal csnare 6,535,870 231567 G, 234312
Equipment 32,907 357,505 5400
Fuire msseis 0464 T4 =
Lamd gty L5K, 2857 B33 44957
Clther collsierml 62T, HS3 SR04 41512
P oodlacesal o other credit enluiascement 1B 740 - -
Total Stage 2 3,002,640 3,459 TR 4,394,910
Soape 3 (Lifutome exgected ooy does oy, crpdis-amareed 2oets)
Cashand deposite 108 535 1,000 L35 -
Bank gaassnress amd surenos recenved from legal ennnes
(rageed from H- o BER+) &0nT A T
Bank guarantoes and surcher recenved from legd enoties
[rwnt rated) o631 0]
Vehicles IHI5 36 2007 302 1. E28,556
Rl eueehe 222282 724 173,210,615 ATT 0
Equipment 194768 1,105,725 BT, 043
Shares, cquity ehares ST 450 447 1 -
Crewewl s A turmewver 19927 19,927 =
Fufure assess il 49 35
Land ploas 18973874 14,840 206 41234683
hiber collaneral 2643602 3150252 A3, 8510
o collserl or other credit enhancement EELAE = -
Total Stage 3 253,721,498 199,010,598 54,3TLEET
PN asress
Real e=tane 172 1,797,728 -
Tatal POCI-a55e15 L1971, 729 L7729 =
Toatal louns to customers G65,016, 237 AW, R32 446 164, 537,103

Change in estimates used 1o caloulate expecied credit losses on loans. o customers (Noke 28 muy mmpact the amount of
allowance tor expected credit losses. For cxample, 1o the extent thar the net present value of the estmated cash flows differs
by plusy/ manus one percent, ECL allowance for logas 1 costomers as a2 31 December 2022 would KZT 7,153,047 thousand
lower/Tgher {31 December 2021 KT 6,650,162 thomsand).

Significant credit exposunes

Az ot 3 December 2022, the concentaition of ner carmping smount of loans issued by whee Gronap 400 1en miapor mdependen
parties amounted o KAT 69772285 thousmand or 9.73% of the ageregate loan ponfols (31 December 2025
ST 02, HE, T thousand or 937 of the aggregare koan portfolic)
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i K2ZT
Finance lease receivables
Analyein of Anance base cecervables as w1t 3 December 2022 and 31 Deceniber 2021 is a5 Fulliaws!

Ar December M Decemirer

22 e

Less than 1 year 100,828,163 1,788 954
Feom [ 50 2 veirs Th.504. 1005 1,550 S
From 2 10 3 vear H1 653 0065 2172519
Froam 3 o 4 veass Bamiaay 2535243
Fram i o 5 veass “H,5K6, 204 2 206583
More thin § peers I37.TRT 42 QOTL1T
Minimum lease payments B, 1670440 20,676,416
Lesg wneasned fanamie ideome
Lemis thas | yede (3 ka4 S5 (ST i)
Froer 1 1o § vears {98.B7T,55%) (B XW 403
Mlare thon § vears (125 420 733 (3670385
Less unearned finance impcome, ol (229 046,743 {5,287, 3T)
Allowanae for expeceed crecht nsses {35,251 648 [3, 762457
Finunce lease receivables 405, H6% 555 9,626,642

I determimeng the ECL allowance for finance lease receivables a5 ot 31 December 2022, management made the followeng key
SIS

" PEY value for finance lease receivables allocated to Stage | of crsd quabiny mnges from 4,48% o 25.82%, allocated
Stage 2 of credit quality ranges from 24.62% o 741%, depending om the segment and nunber of vesrs remadning 1o
repavment of @ hormower’'s loan;

L] LG valoe for finance lease recervables allocated o Stage 1 6 13% in average, o Stage 2 i 14% in avemge and 10
Stage 3is 41% b averige.

In determining the ECL allowanee for fnance bease reccivables as ot 31 December 2021, management made the following key

ABSLMpEHINE

- P12 value for fmence lease recervabiles allocated to Stape | of cosdit quality singed from 7. 48% fo 31.01%, dlocated in
Stage 2 of credin quabiey ranges from 34 28% w0 TH92%, depending on the sepnens and aumber of vears remaining
repayment of a bormower™s boan;

- LG walue for Ananice ledse eeceivahles allocated o Stage 1 2 19% m average, o btage 1= V¥ m average sad 10
Srags ¥ s V0 0 average,

Changes in the above estmates could affecr the allowance for expecied credit losses on Ainanee lease receivables) For exampls,
tor thee: extenit that the net present valac of the estmmated cash flows differs by plos/mams one percent, the ECL alvwancs for
fietice lease secevables as ar 31 December 2022 would be KZT 4,038,6% thousand lower/ higher (31 December 3021
FET 260 thovaand ].awer."hlgﬁﬂL

The table below provides an analrsis of the chanpesin ECL dllownace for 20020

A

Stape 2 Seage 3 PocT

Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL  Purchased or

ur assets noi for assety ariginated

Stage 1 credit- credit- crecis-
12-monih ECL impaired i padred impaired Trvat
ECL allowance at 1 [anuany 2022 57,263 R20,623 4,584,572 = 5, T2 A5T

Becopnisad a4 pesuleof o memper

{Nwie ) 384,080 L A3 T 2 To4 937 - 28,731 FRA
Mo assets oopinated or purchascd 1830315 E =5 15, 240 1 M4t 555
Transhers m Soage | 2 366, 100 (2,129 3] (238 713 — -

Transfers mo Stage 2 (172,200 23745 (ZM5.211) -
Transfers m Sege i (67 44 ThE8] G55 105 - -
Bt [reversal)/ change {72004 506) (B2 5T 2601473 T45 {LRE 3T
Arnownts wasren off = g {103.8a1) - {03,301
At 31 December 2022 411155 1 ARGAT 30 e, 242 10,078 15381 a0
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YUK K£T
The zahle beloar prowices analpse of movermeis i the FU L allbannce for the rear ended 31 Docember 2081,
JEA
Stage 2 Stage 3 POCE
Lifetime ECL - Li#fenme ECL  Purchased or
i AREEES THOL for assets originated
Srage 1 cresdit- credin- credit-
E-moath ECL impaired timpained impaired Toral
ECLallrwance as a1 1 January 2021 - - = : =
Recognised a5 a nesult of merger
Mo &) 57263 E2062% ,ER4572 - 5762457
Mew assers noganated ne puschised - - - -
Temnsfes: to Srape 1 - - - =
Tenrsiess o Stage 2 - - - -
Temnsfess to Stape 3 = ; = . =
Mt {reversal)fcharge - = 2 -
Amounts wrirten off - - - -
A1 31 December 2021 BY. 242 H.623 A H84 572 5,762,457
Credit quality of fmance lease ponfolio
The following sible provides nfonmation on the credst qualiy of the finsnce besse ponfolio as ot 31 December 2022
A Deconrber A28
Porc
Srage 2 Siage 3 Purchased or
Stage J  Lifeeime ECL  Lifewise ECL enrTgrirneted
L earieneh AT AFFETE MGT ar eredir- ereait-
ECL credit-impaired itnpined asseis fypaired Toeal
- oo crverdue 357,145,104 845,645 461,433 2TAME 386,00, 254
wvendue up to 3 days 8411927 LTS 3008175 12 355,050
- svendue maore than 31 dn:n argd
lesi= thae ™3 davd 3 219824 5017098 = 6,115,232
rverdue more than 91 days.ard
lewa than 180 days - - 2221 563 = b f 1
averduy mote than 181 dara and
lews thar T yer - - 3,453,020 = SA502
erverduie meare than | year —— = - A 002 0R7 - 2R SIZOET
363,557,038 11575797 G1.503,325 27048 30,121, 200
Loss allwance (4,111,381 {1,480 810 (29,648,282 (10475 {35,251 A48)
Tatal inance lease receivables 361,445,450 10K 9%7 32,315,043 16073 A3, B0 553
The fulliwamg tabde provides mformation en the credin quality of de Gnance Jaase portfolio as 11 21 December 2021
3! Docomber 202
Stge 2 Seage 3
Liferne BCE Lifeme BECE
Sragre ! N Assels pot W e
L2umanth ECL  eredft-trpaired  inpaived assets Toeal
~ st i 1HEH A0 5,225,230 3582031 ) W s |
= overchse wp v A0 dagd = 102525 103 038
everdise more than 31 dups und beas b
o0 days - L, 109 B55 | LR
wverdie more than 01 davs and ess than
FE clavs - - -
avendue more thin 1B davs snd bese than
1 yenr - - e, VR4 EH. 784
- syendue TEope than | year - = 1312190 2312190
S8, 354 5223230 8,175,485 15,385,095
Lags alloaanes [ = (Eausa3) 4,684 573 5,762 457
Tutal finance ltane weeetvables 631132 £, A404,607 4,200,513 0,626, 64

Andlyris 3F merali e K prosy sarnies aomenss

Az a resalt of sequsnon of @ subsichary 1 2022 (MNa &) the gross carmving amount of Anance lease weervables mereased Ty
the tedal amoune of KET 353,319,288 thousand.
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T¥N) KFET

In 2021, leases were dus o acguisifin of areets 55 pant of o takeover of the Pond fos Financaal EBupport for Agncalmare JEI':
(Mt ) with @ gross carrving smdunt of KZT 15,382,710 thowsand.

Increased fumdmg secured for leases in 2021 cawsed the gross camying value of the ponfolio w grow by
RAT 10350LA25 thousand (31 Deeanber 2021 KZT 0) and resulted n reluted merease i ECL allowance ronlling
KT 2049207 thowsand (31 December 2021: KZT 0}

Repayment of fmance lease recervubbes cotegnnsed min Smage 3 rosalbing ROUT 34854000 thousand (3] Decembes 202,
KT 1) resulted ina decrease m ECL allowance of KZT 43,970 thousand (31 December 2021 7T 0

Transfet of finance lease recenables to Stmge 3 rotalling 2T 6,667 934 thousand (31 December 2021 KZT 0 resulied in
niresse in ECL allowarice of KZT (498,535 thousnd (31 December 2021 KET i,

Transter of inance bease recervables from Sempge 3 10 Stge T ronllmg KT 4,104,654 thousand (31 December 2021: KZT )
resulted non decresee in ECL alloaance of KAT 12954 thensand (31 Decermher 2031 KT O

Transfes of finance kase recervables from Stage 1 to Suage 2 jorllmg KZT 3,163,355 thousand (31 December 2021 KZT )
tesudted i an merease in ECL allvwance mtallog KZT 49,971 thoasand (31 December 2021 KT 0.

The tolloving tables provedes information oo collateral, leased sseets and other credit enhancements rebited = Bnance lease
recesvalles (net of loss sllowance) as st 31 December 2022 and 31 December 321, by repes of eollateral

31 December 2022 M December 2021
Faiir valioe of
collateral = for Falr value of
Fair value of ciollareral collateral - for
Carmrying  collateral « for  sssesscd as of Carrving cullateral
amount of collateral finance lease amonnt of  assessed as of
finance lease  assesscd during receivables finance leasc  lease incoprtion
receivables repoming date  inception daie recervables date
Stage {1 2 apamth exctected crvdit
Nire )
Vehicles SDRI2FE 39537 4TH IT4.852 = -
Equpment 576,350 337635 - = -
Reul esgare 1660510 166931 - - =
Oitheer colbateral 357,453 HT 453 R 931,122 03,122
Total Stage 1 361445450 361,170,598 274,852 931,122 931,122
Ftage 2 (Lafuriet exguied sl
diares oW riets o credil-
smpoared)
Viechicles 5491 Rk 5631 Boa = & =
Rl esrate Uy - 401,956 2020272 el el
Land plods L ed -5 513,214 40531 540631
Equigrmicns 133,508 15350 - - -
Cher collateral 2,795 805 142 BikT 2 H50 7S 1835704 182504
Total Stage 2 10,092 987 5,067,079 4,105,008 4,404,607 44 807
Srage 3 (L igtime exproed ey
ey o oveaditeiugienineal wisidh)
Baak guasmsiecs and
asretis rooved from legal
entities fnod mbed) 20X aEl = S12.2ad B4,812 B AT
Vehacles 14,010,835 L4045, 5342 G593 12,215 42213
Equiprment ATAT ARG £.767, 830 _ - =
Rzl estate 32ER 00T 1,04 105 2133 nal BE6, 076 GdELTH
Other catlaperal T HE R LARL T 21720 ERETREL 3135 140
Mo eollarera] or adher eredis
cithanoemen 240,973 - =4 A7R. i3 =
Total Stage 3 32315043 26,489,543 5284327 4,251,113 3,12 250
PO -arsets
Vehicles 16,0073 B 73 — - -
Total POCI-askets 16,073 16,073 =
Total finance lease
receivables 403 869,553 m,ﬁﬂ:ﬂ} 4 hd 38T 9,626,042 9,247 8970
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T KZT

Value added tax and other taxes receivable

A at A1 December 2022 and 31 Diecember 2021, value added tax snd other taxee recsivable comprised-

F1 Decemiber A Decermrber
e (e 227
Vilur sdded 1mx meervubile 510678 1.0F14.543
(Oither taxes 12908 fi, 358
Value added tox and other waxes seceivablbe 8,523,585 1,80, T
Other assets
Diher won-finansial esdets compnse the following rems
2 December LM Decemier
ey e L
ImwennomeE 3,290,754 347 690
Advances paid FEG 400G 49,652
Cother 526,475 230,373
Cher non-finamcial assets 442270 BT MM
1 noeatiaried
Az 31 December 2022 and 31 December W21 invenrofes comprse the following sems:
A7 December Al December
e 2022 22y
Equipment o be keased under 3 finance lease 1 A4 664 -
Collarersl transfemed 10 cvmership 1000 603 a2
Cither materials 450,107 547
3,969,464 547,690
Impazrmenr alloaance {672, T00) -
liventaties 3,256,758 BT 600

During 2022, the Group teok ownesship of o nember of assvts obinmed to repay borrowen' ourstanding debre. The Croug

i3 planning to trassfer these propertaes under Anance leose apreements
ldvarcer fud
Ax ar 3 December 1022 aad 31 December 2021, the advances paid comprise the lloanng ttems!

Al Diecemher Ji Dvwcwrnber

20xr e Jed |

Adlvances padd for apocslun] machinen: 553.252 =

Advances paid for equipment 10,77 -
{Hher advances paid 46,757 49632

61, 7T 19,632

Imparmen: allowance {13,283 =
Advances paid 550,406 lgﬂ_;.:_

As ar 31 Decernber 2002 and 31 December 2021, advances comprised prepavments for supply of agnculural machinesy,

equeprmien] knd cantle te be subsequently leased cat wnder o finenee kease
Chber financial apsets comprise the followang iteme

A1 Prevember 3 Decemiber
2022 2021

Accoemis receivahle:

Receivables from ke ApraProducy JsiC 0,711,500 R el
Receivaliles ander mstabnent sales conteacts 5204 881 4031 BS0
Cither receivalies 5,685,520 17244338

19,621,804 16,301,315

Less: ECT, alkoromace (14,028,207 11,334,678}
Diher financial axgets 5,593,593 4,956,657
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W KZT

Ag 31 December 222, other financial aseets of K2 4.106,742 thowssand are camegonsed into Stage 2, ather fnsncial sese
of RXT 15515058 thourand are cateposized mis Stape 3 (V1 Dhecember 221 other fnancal aweets of
LT 3925917 thousand are cateporised it Suge 2, other financial assets of KZT 12,375,398 thousand are categorsed mio
mipe 3.

Reconciliston of the ECL allrwance for acconnts recesvable for the yeur ended 31 Decernher 722 is presented bebow:

Suge?  Saged Tioeal
ECL allowance at 1 January 2022 127,103 11,207 575 11,334 678
Hecognised a5 & sesiall of naenger J5E 342 53953 2 EOTETS
M sgsits orgpmared or parchased 1371 2193 pua; ol ]
Reverdal uf alkeawnce duringg the vear (TEGT| {08, 430 {313,327}
Transfem to Stape 1 - = o
Tramsfen tix Smge 2 - =
Tramwfees te Siape 3 {5, 727) i
Movements in ECLS for the &7 & a resulr of wmesfer from scage oo
sniggre nend chamges mn inpots {93, TNE) 177 (ranx)
Areants aritten off 1 {48,036 (45,134
Ar 3] Dhecember 2002 2032 13,636,175 14,028,207
Reconaliation of the ECL allewance for scoounts receivable for the vear ended 31 Decembier 2021 & presented below:
Stnge 2 Stage 3 Toral
ECL allowance at 1 January X121 29655 0143 856 89073, 40
Reecopnised a5 o peaul of merger - Iy2am 2393 430
Mew assers originated of puschesed 35588 75,207 0705
Frrermal of allowarsce dusng rhe vear [2221Y [hBE 582) (510,709
Movverpenty in ECLs For che vear a5 0 resuly of sranefer from stage 1o stage
acad chaniges oy anpuaks B0 (201,253, (207, 162)
Amonnty wrirten off [ Wis AL
Ai 31 December 3021 127 13 11,207,575 11,134,678
Amounts due to the Sharcholder
Newrulnal inferess At December 3 December
_Maturity dare rate, 4 Cumrency 2022 2021
10 Pedmnaney
Loan under Agrectient No. 26 21 1024 BET 15,761,242 14, et 400
14 Deocmbier
Laan under Agrocmicnt Bo 32 a1 1.0 EET 14,266,721 15276, 7R
L) Febwary
Loan unler Apresmens Mo.d5 a4l 10525 [ | 11,584 2441
(4 Drecesluer
Losn under Apreement Mo, 101 i i KT LR I e 11,667 415
14 Decemiber
Luges unadier Ayreement Mal135 2032 1A RET 1,073,204 8215517
14 Drecembeer
Loan under Agreesnenn M. 134 332 TARIS, KET TR 2215517
14 Dheeembaer
Loan under Agreement Mo, 76 2025 10K KET 7571082 9 B4 A2
38 Jamary
Lean under Apteement Mo 20 2134 1M KT 6, 175m53 6,515,620
14 Diecember
Loan uniber Agreement Mo&5 2025 H KET 5735847 TAXN 480
14 Decemiber
Loan under Agreement MNo 122 2025 I s KET 3,700 884 7 380,123
Laman v Agrocment No43 .t | _‘Iur:rr_- g o KET 304,300 =
2% Seprember
Loun under Agreement Mo, 34 T34 LiEFs KET 2 40, S 2702, 16U
At payable unader assigament i Dcemlver
contrsct of 3 July 2010 a4 L1y oS KZET 1,321 B 1477 7R
Aot payahle undes delr srneles 0 December
agreement of 3 July 2004 24 AL EET 231,405 G634, 3H7
I December
Lo under Agreement No.124 23 T KZT - 16,376
104NN, 7346 0,260 422
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i KT

Duting 2022, g8 part of the Adjusted Financil and Econsmie Feasibilay Study MAFEFE™) of budget invesirments o increaes
the charter capatal of MM KazAgre J5C fot mmplesnenting the wate pobicy o stmulate the developeent of the gro-industrial
comniplex, approved by the Order of the Mnister of Agncutare of the Republic of Kagkhetan dated 24 August 2020, No.265,
as anmended by the Order of the Minister of Agnculiiee of the Republic of Kazskhatan dared 8 Apal 2022, Mo 102, the Groap
recerred o baan for the wotal pmount of K2T 8,300,000 thousand, which matures on 21 June 2034 snd beirs a nominal interest
rate of [L2H% pet anrtien, wath a market mterest rae being equal ro 13.534% The purpose of the koan i 10 finance the agm-
mdustnial complex, namely constrection of commercial dairy foms and anplementsnon of the nvestment proecs for
prodacton and prosessing of vegetables and sugas beets wsing sprinklers and drip ieogation sypstems; in this cise the nserest
nite for the end-use borrower should be 6% per anoum. Dhscount on ininal recognition of the loan amounted to
KT 4,591,188 thousand and was recognised @5 2 government grant kabilitv. As at 51 December 2022, the cazrying amouns
af the lean was KET 3,666, 302 thousand

Draring 2021, as part of the optmesaton of the stuchare of the loan previonsly ssued ro the Grong by Kardgr Holding
using the esources of the National Fund of the Republic of Kazikhstan, by combintng the stisuats due undes the aprements
previousty conchuded with the towl somical valoe s of the date of combinanon 6f BZT 58451 625 thousand and (ssuance
of sdditional tanche m amesint of KZT 11,548,375 thousand, the Loan Agreement No.26 of 16 June 2021 was signed. The
toal amount of e lsan i EZTT TG00 thowsaad, wik matusity on 10 February 2041, noaminal mrerest re - 1.02% pa.,
effecive interest rate - 11.98% g, The purpose of the loan is fmanang of investmens projects m vanous ateas of agricuitural
sector development, such as establichment of commercial dury foms, development of feedlon, ceation of stomges for
ditferent spnculiural products and others. Dhe concluson of this Agreement resubed in the derecogration of the agreements
which were enrered into prevacusly, funded from the resources of the Natiomal Fund of the Republic of Kazakhetan {including
agresmetrs Mos, 56, 61, 24 and 70), and recognition of & sew Hability under the Loan Apreement %026 dated 16 Juae 2021
The discount on instal recogninm on loan of BAT 70,000,000 thoewsand amounsed o KET 56,000,928 towsand and wis
recognised direcely in oquity within sccummiared bosses, whereas previoushy discount in amount of KET 11,196,328 thousand
wak derecugnised to reflect the new ferms negowared with the conreolling party. s at 31 December 2021, the carryng amoit
o the miw Ionan was BT 14, 760,B0 theusasd,

Aear 3 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 the Group was in comphiance with the requirements selared 1o the restrictive
covenants under the agreements wirh the crediors:

Amounts due to the Government

Cin 17 Felmuary 022, the Group enered inee a los agrecment wath the Minisiey of Finance of the Repulblic of Kazakhern
for the torml nommal amousnr of KZT 1-“]._'“},[":'3 thousnod I]Em!j ol vlErest g ol s l_l.:-_t i ard m.n.lu.ﬁ.ug
on 30 March 2023, The losn wae meceived as part of the Ken Dl anausl povermment programune simed ot supportsg
enterpnses in theie epeing field ind harvesting works. The toral smoant of e hean recerved was minsfered to Halvk Baak of
Kazakhstan [5C, Firsdt Heartlend Jusan Bank 120 and Bank Centerlredn 155, with K2Z'T 43750 971 thousand (MNage £ 10 be
uged furthes for irrended purpoee stipalaned |-'H_.' the afere-mentoned programme, and BT 07 2400021 thouwsand o be
provided directly to the customess [Naw 9.

The descenmi of KT 14,420,694 thewsand on inifal tecognition of kans recefved was recognised as o govimment grant
habulicy with irs parnel wse during de twelve monde ended 31 December 2022, Unwinding of the - discount of
FET 12070148 thovsand was eeorded m interest expense on amounn dug 1 the Govermmemt of the Fepullic of
kazakhsran. The CGiroup appled the eximated market intenest mnes varyog fom 123400 1o 16.74% per annum 1o awase
the Fazr value of the Jean on inroal cecogninon by disconstng futune contmctaal cash Saws.

Ui 30 November 2002 the Gronp smed an addendum o prolosg te due date of e then owstanding paet of the boan
received ol 50 November ZI0Z3. The owtstnding part of the loan teceved aas ST TOA0,000 thouwsand as a1 the
prolongarion date. s 3 resalt of prolongation of the inins] repayeent date the Group recopnised sdditional discounr of
FET 6,910,697 thowsarst, and recorded i as an addizicaal povenmment prant lahiline. To measure the faar value of the loan s
the timee of its modificasion, the Growp applicd an esimated marker mare of 16.77% Pt Al

O 25 Febmuary 2021, the Groop recemved a shont-teem loan from the Mimsstry of Finance of the Repoblic of Kagabkhstin for
the total noamal amouet of KET 70,000,000 thowsand bearmg o nommal intesest e of 0,017 per annum and marring on
20 December 2021, The bean was seceived s part of the Ken-Dala annual government peogranime simed ar sspporting
enderprises w0 thar spang fiedd and harvesting wodks. The tonl amounr of Toan received was mansferred 10 Halyk Bank
of Kazakhstn [SC wih KZT 3084098 thousand (Nat #) 1o be used for intended purpose supulared by the
afore-mentoned progrimme, and KAT 38,159,002 thousand 1o be provided dicectly to cusiomess [Nowe 9. The discount of
BT 3711576 thousand on initial recogtion of loans seceved was recopnised as 0 government grant labiliy with its full
ust during the rwdve months ended 31 December 2021 Unwinding of the discoant of 2T 3,711,976 thoussnd wis recorded
in infcrest expense on amounts dee w the Govetrment of the Repubbic of Kazakhitan, The G applied an eetimated
ket interest sae of 1L00% per annum to estmate the fur value of the loas on mitisl recogniton by discounsing funane
comimactual cash fows.
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Af a1 31 December H22 the carrong amonnt of the loas received walled KT 60,747 873 thousand, wcluding inmterest
sccrmed of KRET 117 thowsand (31 December 2021: there are oo amounrs due i the Giswvernment duie 1o full repayment by
thie deddlige prosided for under the conmract),

Amounts due to state and budget organisations

Mesrnedral
Year of  orcrost rad I Decemirer 3 Docember
FITA LT e Currercy . 2027
Lvans repayable v state und budpet
OIgAmsatons 23103 G01% KZET 182,541,555 146,814,505
Loanis reparabile o srace and budget
CTEEIEATS T 1.00P% EET 315 Bl

182,850,442 166,814,398

Duriag 2022 the Group recerved loans of K&T 30,928,726 thousand (dunng 2021: KZT 35,029,195 thoosand) uader the
Budpet Programme 006 “Lending of Oblas Budgen to lsue Microloans in Rursl Serrdements and Towns" to grant microlsans
tny thie Programme participants to implement bugness projects in el semdements snd fooms and finance MFPOSLP for ks Ewng:
e nboanie 0 the participants at 2 nominal snterese rare of 001% fu. gl matunty m T pears; the Crnoup alen secenved BT
S00,00K) ehotsxsd foa Akimae of Atyonn Ohblast as et of sugspoet of small and medmm-sized ENEEIHIESS i the covenfryEde,
bearing . nomnal mterest este of 1009 and matusty mo 5 pears. The Growp revopnised  dwmcount  of
EET 18274480 thousand on all koans secerved [dusing 021 KZT M662665 thowsand) on it secopnition i the
consalidated satement of fimincial position a5 « Babilisy related 1 the povernment grant wlsich was partilly weilsed o che
relevant periods, The Group appSed the estmated markes interest rates of 14.12%0-13.20% pa. (dunng 2021: 8.86% — | 266%
pus) T measune the faar value of the above-mentoned Ioass on ininal ecognivon by dscounting their fumr: contracnal cash
IREES

As at 3 Diecember BT and 3 Docembor 3031, the Crroup compbied with sestaceve covonants under the agreements with

credinors.

Amounts due to credit institutions
As ar 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, amomits due 1o credin mstttons COMmII e

I Deeeinber JI December

Currency Marorrity M 2021

Hialyk Bk of Fazabhsian |20 EET J024-2027 48,237 582 -
Cinbank Erzaklisun 130 RZT 2y H2E4 03T -
Irschuaserial Development Fund J50 BET HHZ LELETR. L =
79,522,517 -

Che 2 Drovemnber 2022, borrowed funds: wene raised froo Halyk Savings Bank of Kuxakhstan [SC in che smount of
RET 40000000 thousand, o replenish the working capital of the Group, for @ term of 5 years and witly & nommal inscress
rate of 18,007 pes annum,

Dunng 2022, the Group abo raiged bomowngs from Cribsnk Kazakhstan [8C m the toml amoont of
KET 27700 thousand 1o seplenish wodking capiral warh & outurey 0 [amune 2025 and 0 nomanal interest e of 16.80%
per anni,

As part of Bnancing projects m the processiing indstry and agro-andusiry amned st improving the envimrmnent, in wenrdance
wath the procedure and under the teems determaned by the Decree of the Government of the Repubbe of Kazakhatun dated
2 September 2021, No.604, on 13 Auguse 2027, the Group sigaed the Loan Agseement Neu5-DZ wath Industaal Dievelopment
J.'I.I.I.'Id.ji'-CTh: peal amount of the loans was K2 T 300000,000 thousand, the loan termasunml 7 Auguer 2042, and the aominal
interest rate 15 135% per annum, The purpose of the Loan i3 1o finance the purchase of domesncally manufacired self
propeled sgrultural mackanesy for further transfes under Boance lease agreements. The benefit of a loan o a below matket
muterest rate s recognised @ a government grant that amounted to KAT 37097318 thovsand as ai the Jean recogniton date.
The Group apphed estimated marker nferest otes of 13800 - 14.19% pa. to measre the fie value of the above-mentoned
boans on anitial secoginion by discountng thedr future contracisl cash fows
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. Debt securities issued

KT denominated debi secuntics s comprse the following captions:

Inrerese
rare per
Placernenr Mamriy annum, i Decomber 3 December 1 December 3 Decernivr
daie dile i ez 202f 2022 i F
Fived mcome bonds 28 July 2022 3 july 2029 16R83% 41, 167 244 L=, AZ AT OTh - -
0 Augast
Froed mcome bards 0 20 Auguagt H2H. 11900 EHECUHTEEN] = ATATLAM -
Fineg] inccne boods (1 sse of 10 Choootbeyr W) Cicoabier
thie 4eh bl program) b L] 36 1754 PATSINT MBATEINT A411 410 40409 B5s
Pined income bods [6saeof 3 Juae 10 Dreeember
the 3th bomd program) iz 3 IE00S SSO00000 000000 3ES 4ngsinm
Vined o Baosds (2 3mue of 20 Anpues
thi 4th bend progrunt) MM 26 Awgue 2000 1073 I0AS6202  W0400002  31SEIEM 3 SEGAW
Fied tncome bymds D gssue of 21 DRecmber 21 ecember
thie dith b peesgeas M2 a1 11505 S0 000,000 EEECTINE T MRS B J00R5 85
2 Peeembir 21 Decomber
Frged Ingome baopds g Nk b L5 1:508 25,001 I . 25,070,148 -
Faed inernne Ivmels (4 af the 17 Jume 24 Decembior
Zndd Boww] proggram) 20 024 2008 3000000 — AT EM .
Fmed jmcomse bemds (3 e of 24 December 24 Diepembic
el 20 boesd proosgeam] 2019 X4 12.00% 198363, 000 - Tb0 415
Fraed meoane bonds (3 ssop of It Juby 1 |ariuamy
the Tat bond propron) 24 2 Ao L 152 250 - 17507 253 <
37 Juie 30 Apal
==y it conzpon beomds | i | . 13,000 15 THI DN - I4.230.B33 -
Pl meoane bonds [3issae of 8 Neovember 8 Newember
the Vst brond perogesis) 2B 2023 L2000 12 AHH3 (e} - 11,615 841 -
Fixed moosne beads (1 ssaeof 20 Aot 30 Frbruary
the Xed baoud frviprmim) 214 ) B.50% 101 AKH 000) 1 11,0 M | 0 208 B [LI,E:-I-J}""'J
S Movcmbor M April
Fizead wnomene b 2023 225 144508 1O AKHF ) 10T %027 -
Frxed mgomss homids (4 lsme I7 My 37 My
of the 3nd bemd program) 0 A 11507 0 350 HK 050000 45185 ASE 55
Fised tecime laids [ Tot fasize
of the ¥st bond ropram) i Db

ocoguised ge 8 esult of morger 2004 30 March 2096 10.07% 5,189,100 3,189,000 SIELO00 40266
Frocd incame bonls (2 s aof 32 Dhecember 22 Juee

the drd hend pangman) g el (EXL 0 EALEIRGTH FALLIRELY G aaT4 506438
12 fune 12 e

Paved e beinds 2015 223 LA 3,550,140 - §onL052

Fuied mhoome Bemds (T meue of 27 October 27 Clomobes

the 4t bood program) Ap 2001 s [ EHELIELTH 5. TWHD IR T 3743735

Foed e bonds (2 isaue of

the Yar bend poogmm} 21 Denober 21 Apil

reirrased af o resdt of merper 2kLS 2 IO R 23000 (MM 2345015 2A45005

Fiaed mevane bonds (2 dssue of 17 e 17 Dheeernbar

the 2ol bemad proggram) e 032 LAY = 17,500 KM = E7 347674

374,862,713 180,300,200 NR4TIEI08  10h654,2%H
Druring 2022, the Grroup bsued boads io the wotal fce vales of KT 50,230,364 thoassand:

On 24 July 2022, the Group pliced the fire ssue of bonds of third bond program (KZ2000008514) with & roral face
value of AT 40,230,366 thousand, issued at coupon rate of 16.85% and manring on 28 July 2029, Proceeds from the
bond issue were used 1o finance purchase of various agacultural equipment for farther transéer under lease agreements
aeid acrve the F_irnu{.r'l Babilibes.

= Om 3 November N2Z the Groop placed coupon bonds [(KA2C00009116) with o  face value of
KT 10,000,000 thousand, issued at conpon rate of 14.5% and mututng on 30 Apdl 2025 Proceeds from the boad ssue
wete wsed b fnanee purchase of lease items for fenther ransfer under finance lease sprecments 1o e entities dperating
i the gproandastnal comples,
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Dunng 2021 the Group wwued und sddionally placed wathm the previons ssusace honds o the wotal fice vl of
BLET 5,850,000 thensand

unsecuted commerce| ok wath total face value of KZT 4,500001 thousand (RZ2C00007177) ssund i coupon raic
of 10.75% pa., matusng on 20 Decembes 2021, The hunds from the placement have been used for extending loans o
the entities opemsting ;m the agro-industrial complex;

ansecuted caupon bands with total face valoe of KT 935000 thousand (KZICH0006] ) tssmed ot coupon tore of
115005 p, matoang wrtiun 5 years. The pmcesds from e plicement have heen used for sxtending lnans to the enrines
operatmg in the ago-ndustaal complex;

unsecured coupon bomds with sl fice value of BEET 35 000,000 thousand RKZ2000007735) isseed at coupon gare of
15400 pa., manting on 10 December 2031 The funds frooy the. plucement will Ie wsed w0 Anomnce e preseces of thie
agro-ndastsial comples, on o prionty basis for the prodocton and processing of mean anid milk, The Group recognisel
the premmun of KT 530,976 thouwsand on wmenal recogninon and since the bonds were fully repurchased by the
Sharchokder, the premium was wated af distribution to the Sharcholder, induding tax 0 amowa of
K2T 1,185,195 thovosind. The Group applied setimated macker interest rate of 12.10% Pode 00 meapuse the G value of
the bonds 1ssued on wanal recognmon by discnunting thesr futnre contrieneal cash fows

mnsscured coupon bands wirh ol fiee value of BT 5,000,000 thousand (FE2C00007953) issoed at coupon mte of
71% ., seamnsng wethin 10 years, the effective mierest rate is 11.8% pes annum, The funds from the placement have
been wsed for extendimp Ioans 1o the companies opetaring in the agro-industnal comples woder the Employment
Boadmap 2020-2031 programme, under whoch the interess tate for the aittmate bormowers - the sntties operatiog in the
agro-industeial complex - must not oxceed @ with the lmn teom oot excesding theee vears, Thus, the diseount of
KZT 1,229,557 thewsnd calculsted on imitd recognition was scconsted For within the govemment grants (Neg 270,

ensecured couped bonds with tote fece value of K2T 30,000,000 theusand (K22000008316) issued at coupon ke of
11.5%% pu, matumng withn 10 yeams. The fands fromi the placement have been used far extending loans to the companies
rperaimg lg‘m-:‘ﬂdﬁtlﬂ1 Eﬂ.l'l'l.piﬂ!

18. Other liabilities
Crber mon-Anancal aasets compmse the following sems;

I December JI Decormber

SEE 202

Advances received G AL 200,77

Dredermed moome 1,374 865 =

Chher taxes pavable 286, 20 [ 373,656

{rher 3190 130,431
Ol oon-finansial Habilitics 8,551,002 17645638

Aldmaices reorved

Asat 31 December JI22, advance recerved of BT 6,900,814 thousand conrpnsed prepaymeént from dhients for property held
for finance lease dnt wis scquisad under firance lease agreements bor not ransferred oo the lessee, s well o prepayments
aasde wsder fnance lease agreements and other sdvances received

Ciher non-fmancnl assets compnse the following ilcme:

Al Decerber A1 Deceriler

P 20

Pavables o suppliers 107,503 238024
Hural morrgage A5 TT4 2076435
ECL allowance fer contnpent Talilities {Mate 26 HES quF 1,083 165
Accoants payable 14,304 4 A
Ameunt payable weder an assipnment conract 20,585 158,930
Liabehnies on redemption of debr securnes issued - 24,914,950
Losns recetved from e 17N 16,061 25038
Oither financial Babilides 7,652,684 .7 038
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Puyaler fo intdiers

A at 31 Diecember 2022, sccounts payalide o supplicrs comprise mosily the Group’s pavables o wipplices oo propeey oo be
subsecuently iransieeoed under a Boxoce lease, 2 Folloas:

I Pecember A7 Decevrber

202 22y

Agricultural machmery 2354 428 -

Equpment RE R -

Cartde s2ock T45 =
L b SG208F 23R4

Accounts pavable to aipphicms 3070563 ZNR B2

Rl st gepgd

The Group acts 25 an Anthorsed Agent in the govenment programme for financng mompages i rursl sreasand reciives a
fee for managing funds, which i 2.5% of the smount of debt on loans ssued to customers. As af 31 December 2022, the total
amount of prancipal debt on morigage loans ssued by the Growp on behalf of the local executive bodies was
BT 54,085,056 thousand (wnawdited) (31 December 2021: KZT 85,601,551 thousand (unandited]). As 41 31 Decernber 2022
and 31 Drecember 2021, the amount of other financial Babilities consdsts of the funds that have been received fram the bocal
exccutive authormes but not vet tmmsferred 1w the end users. For the peniod ended 31 December 2022, the Group's
commssions. on med mongages were KEZT 2118776 thousend (for 2021 KZT 159,230 thowsand) [Nate 25

Liabilifies nn rediampsioe of debd securtisen fivied

The curstanding securites of the Ist bond lssue onder e 3rd Tomd program, AGERBS, NN FA2000005507, with 4
Todnn[mlm date nf Wi Dlecember 2021 for the ol smonat of KET 253014050 thowsand wese repaid on 10 January X022
As 3t 31 December 2021 payables on paysénts on these bondswere classified a5 ather lbilities as theit matusier under the
coftract expired,

Taxation
The corTposafe o my £5pene comprses
A2z 2024
CIErresll InCoene 14 expeiss [4,643 4724 (4,580 203
Dieferred corporste incomdt tax expense - ongination and reversal of temporaey
differences 1,813,108 Z3HT, M4
Corporate income 1ax expense (2,830,316) (2,202,454)
2022 2021
H.thn.lr-rd s & reenbl o bissiness combdnation - L4941
Dieferred corparaie sonme tax recogrmsed 1n the conzabdated statement of
i o boas 1,815,108 2 3H7 348
Deferred corporate moome tak recopnmsed m equrty (E3,51) (7,215,201}
Movemenis in deferred corporate income tax 1,759,157 (6,977, 356)

Arar 3l Deceber 2022, vhe Group's cormént corporate mcome tax Habilities toealled 2T 1 950,809 thowsand 31 Brecembes
221 AT 1,785,128 thousand). The corparate incoine fax mate for the Groap wms 200% in 2622 and 2021

The ebfectve LT mie differs from the stanony CTT eates. Below s the reconciliation of componte income mx expense hased
an the stmtony e with corposite ncome tix expense recorded in the fimancial eriemenns:

2z Frjcmv
Prodin before comporate income ax 213458 a4 140,497 494
DEATHEDIY COTpooaDe ncos [x rusy i 2%
Theoretical corporate income 1y expenkes at the statitony mic {44727 (2,179 A9
MNpn-taughle ancome from povernment secuniies 12265 530,708
Moon-dichicsible expenses 1,322.548 (543563
Corporate income tix expense £4,830,316) (2,202 454)
Drefereed corporste moomme tax recopnised in equany it dismbaied between the items as fallows:

2022 2
For asset - 1,184,195
For lishilities (33951} AN ARG
Corporate income 1ax expense recognsed in equity {53,951) (7:215,291)

a2
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Agraman Credi Cospotation 150 Consobdated Financeal Statements for 2022
EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N KET

Deferred cnrporste micome tix assels are recogmized only 1o the exienr thar it 48 prabable that the future mxable prafit wall he
avadable agansr which an seset can b atilised.

Deferred VAT liabilities

When transferring properny onder Brance lese agreements, the Group recoprises defesmed vabue sddod vx abilitioe. An at
31 Decemnber 2022, deferred value added mx habilites amount i KT 10,917,373 thousand (3 December 2021: none]
Govermnment grants

H December 31 Discember
2022 227

Government grants receved from the Government of the Republic of

Kadakhstan m the form of o boun from stare and budger cepanisanons amd

Sharcholder under Apnbusiness Development Programme 6 40 385 2,641,852
Government grants received from the Ministey of Agreulnre of the Republic of

Kazakhstan w partislly subsidise the repayment of priecipal and intesest on

loana s=aued 1o the bomowers 3173708 &HT31TH
oW ErTUmEINT ZTants 64, H23, 093 40 515,010

Crapermaend sraady eeedaind frve the Cootyrmment

The Crooup recorded as pocerment grants the amount of benefire recerved in the foem of loans af low wbemse cates extended
by the srate and busipct cupammatons

- 2022 22y
A1 1 January 33,641,532 9,158,681
Governmnt grants recetved from funds of credit mstmtions (Mt ) 2T N7 318 =
Government grants recesved from the Govemment of the Republic i the form
of i loan from the Ministry of Finance (N 14) 21.33.3M 5,107
Giovemment grants recerved from the Govemment of the Repulilic of
Kuzakhstan in the form of  loan from kocal executive bodies [Nale 75 14,274,140 AbbB2 hES
Govemdaeat grants sectived = the foom of loans from the Sharehabder
{Mpie 1) 4,891,183 =
Government grants recerved foom the Government of the Republic of
Kazakhsman in the form of bonds fom the SBRE Nare 17 = 1,329,537
Recopndied as o result of 0 business combinenon (Mo af = 17330744
Uhilisation of o govemment grant o tesae Joans 1o bormwers urder the
Givemeent Progmmme for the Developeent of Productivs Fmployment and
Mass Entreprencuralip fos 2007-2021 (*laker™) (Wate LR RAEN ] (672 48]
Unbisanon of poveEment grants to ssue loons ta l:l:.g'ihln:' hamks under the FKon-
Doala aduiusl pevemment programme (k8 L R (1,954 544)
Uslisatiom of povernment grants o ssue lnans to eligible customers-bormarrs
under the Fen-Dala anmual govemment programme (ke 9) (the compensable
prtien) {9,230,104) (3,757 430
Ulnlisaton of government grant (No ©) V8,732,054 (16322 73m
Unlization of 4 govemment gmnt to1zsue loans 10 cigible customess-bormomaers
urler the Employment Boudmap for 20002121 povemment paogramme and
Enbek government programme (Mo ¥ (R340 [T, 56
Utilsation of a povemnment grnt 1o issue loans o digble eustomerns horrowers
wnder the Agrlnisbeecs Govenvment Programme Pk 2] - (1.0355, 265
Utilisation of a govemment grani o issne loans o digile costomens-bormowers
ar part of kao from the Flolding (T 2) A5, -
Amomsaton chaspe foe the peood (MWawe 25) e ey (3,580,303
Covermment grants 61,649 185 341,832

Crarernmont priwts eveised from tie Gavernsany o' the Rapuilic in o e af o b frow she Miniitey o Financ

Subseguent 1o aital recogrition of a govemment grane liabality, the Group recarded m profit or loss wn amount cotresponding
to the renegonated loan on preferental wems for bomowers, onee the Group met government progrmme conditions
(Mvotes & awd 9. The Group iz obligned o dismbate benefits o end borrowers by means of setting low intesest rate on loans,

Dumng 222, poverient gramts ttmsferved o profit or loss (Now 29 smeusting te KZT 43,586,419 thousand und were
maluded in ‘othermeome/ mxpemies diring 2027 KT 20,554,771 thousnd).
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Cranertmiint pranft weeied fme the Miwertey sf Agridues

Az k|
Al January 6,473,178 3,312,883
Recermed for the penod 18505 885 LKL R
Remamed 10 the Minismy of Agmoalnre) tansfermed o parmicular borroaess
which have met speaal conditions (13,417,800) [11,542,397)
Uiihisation of grant throwgh offser agawmst aceraed intorest payabie of parocular
borrowers which have et apecial conditions (8.ATT 555 {45505 A2
At 3 December 3,173,708 0,875,178

Lrovernment grants receved from the Mimsioe of Agocultuee are utilised 10 pactially repay pancpal and micrest cowed by
‘borrerwets that have recened Joans for nvestment projects and purchase of new or previougy unused endchinery and
equipment, To be ehigible (o reoemve these grants, borrowers must meet cemain conditons.

Equity
e capirad

in June W22, scorrding o the Resohmon of the Shaselolder dated B June 2022, M0,25/22, a numbser of tuthonzed ardmary
shares of the Company mencased through sddinonal ssue of 144,904,63% ardimany shares. [n accordance wath the Resaleton
af the Board of Directoss of the Sharcholder daved 15 July 2033 Noa05/ 10 & decision was made o ebisgacnser 10000 of
ondinery shares of KerAgroFmance [3C owned by the Shareholder movhe amount of KZT 147 470,014 thousend 1o i Foa
147,470,004 asdinary shares of the Compaay @ the offcong prce of KET 1,000 per share thoeugh sale to the Sole Shaecholder
that has n pre-emptve mght 10 buy the Company’s thanes.

In wccordance with the Resolunos of the Management Bosrd of KazAgre Nanoml Management Holbing J5C (ex-
Shatehoider) Mo, 9 of 4 Mareh 2021, the Company ssued 12,633 9352 ordmary shuzes ot the offenng price of KET 1,000 fone
thitusand) per ardinary share. These shares weee paid by means of tmndermng properry of ex-Shareholdes, with the fur value
of KET 6,186,092 thousand on inifal recogniton. Propesnes meeived consist of four non-residential premses located m
Almanywith the wotsl vabise of KET 2561363 thousnd held by the Company & sivestaiciil pruperty thems; resicdential and
nen- residential properties, lind plot, fumitare and other equipment for e wotal amount of KZT 1,766,830 thousand,
claczefied by the Compimy as assers held for sale us of the reporting dave; the rest of the amount of KZT 37 B9 thouserd
camprise nther items clissified by the Company as peoperty, plant snd equpment and inveorones.

I Marcl 24121, in secordance with the Decree of the Governmear of the Republc of Kazakhstan Mo 952 dated 31 December
2020, and pursuiant 0 8 mkeoves sprecoenn of 206 Febrory 2021 and a deed of transfer beraees Baibeock S01H IS and
KazAges NAH J5C, 100%% of tdie Company's orduary shares iomBing | 80,758,928 shares wete imanstemed oo Baiterek S MHE
156

Apoar M Dycembes 2022 ghe number of mathomsed and  (ssued n:dmar:r- shores of the Lompany s 407059070, of
wirich 400,011,239 shmics have been Fﬂ.il] im full h'.'- the Sale Shapeholdes (31 December J21: 262004 430 phiares - aand
253141225 shaures, respectively).

Berrrer natviad

Duzimg 222, the Groap wncreased reserve capatal by K2ZT 2608512 thoussnd (durdng 2021 reserve capital incressed by
BT 5,598,015 thowsand ). [n sccordance with the Group's policy, reserve capital iz estahilished o cover general risks inchidig
furere losses and other conmngent fsks and circumstances. Reserve capital k= subiecr 10 distibation based on the decision of
the Sharcholder,

sl

Druzing 2022 m sccondance weh the decision of the Sharcholder of 26 May 2022, the Group declared and paid dividends of
KET 6066528 thouwsand e KET 2404 per opdinary share for the vear endsd ¥ December 2021, Divadends were paid om
16 fane 2022 (dunng 2021w accordanco with the decston of the Sole Sharcholder of 12 March 2021, the Crroup declored
and paid dividends of KZT 13,762,035 thouwsand oc KT T893 per ordinary thite for the year ended 31 December 2020,
Dimdends were pod on 8 June 2021)

The book vahee per ordmary share calculated in accoidance with the methodology of Karakhsman Stock Exchange 153 folloos:

Al December J Decenmber

22 Jin2y

BT 1329 8ET 385 HOGAR4 578
Laoss h:-l::.-u,g:ihlt LELETS (U8 3T {f.zq.lm:.
Lets Lahbilicies {11 4 1, RO {535, 705,557}
Mt asscin 418,992 264 2700064,758
Dyurbes of oodinkiy ehare AiNIG R, 234 235,141 225
Carrying amount of one onlinary share (EZT) 1,033,411 L066.85

b
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Expenses on credit losses

The mble below presents the ECL éaponse for financial instruments recogised in the consulidsied statemen ol profit of loes
for the vear ended 31 December 2622

_ Newe  Seage | Srage 2 Stagre 3 POCt Toral

Caeh and cash equivalents 2[M] - - - 2143
Loans 1 bunks 11554 - - - (11514
Launs to customers 4 14452954 P dd, 708 10,776,715 LO54.900 27 420 367
Investment serunme {141 - - - 1,410%
Crher financial asses ] - (87, B8] [GE.424] - (A6, 3140
Fmanice heawe receivalils 1] [1,158,191) (692973 2601473 13,975 BT 2H4
Crizal relaped connmitmenrs M 415658 - — = {413 638
Total expenses on ceedin losses® 12,870, 144 463,559 15509, T4 LeS BT 2770 T2

*The ammiwnt of expewser o orndiy duces differs froow the fodal wmomnt of eigpenter ow credis B remgesned dw the conssdedatid statenen? of Beadir
ar g ey the v o boeses aw macdsieation dhat does v v fw dervepitoon o the fta womawny of KZT 9875316 thonsond aed # fnzdnded
v et ol i Whe ol g amewad gl b ceem (INate T

The table below presenis the ECI, EXpCnse fior fEnamcial instnerments n:-bnp;:ﬁmd. i the consahdared ssateneest nfpmﬁq ot beww
for the year ended 31 Decernber 2021

Note Stage!  Swped  Seaged POCH Tireal
Cish and cosh equivilenss 434 = - - 135
Lnans o hanks e L ) 3= 2 (7197
Loans m costomers o {147 193 4410 A5 G AL 25,102
Imvestment secunbes 2RA65 - . - AR5
Oither fimancial assets iz - P [ (201,257 - (T 63
Credst related comuutments B 36,484 - = — 3,484
Total expenses on credit losses (138,602) 124,500 65, 708 25,534 77,530

Personnel expenses and other administrative expenses
Personnel expenses snd other aperatng eapenses compree the followng rems:

e Ve 2021
Pretscaiine] exp; 7 amal other papmenis (8247328 (4,022,545
Eocial secunty coatobwhon [PIT, TR (231213
Personnel expenses {9, 180,036) (4373,762)
Chagamucieng Cisets e (a2 ATH
{Hfice rent and morrenance BT 274 (479, 204
Taxes and other mandaroey payasents ro lsadger 401 432 (235, 708,
Dieprecrtson nod smornzanon {628,207, (HI2ETES
Trmnspartanon costs (176003 (136,305)
PPE snd sangibie assere techiieal mantenanee Ll ) (L1785
Amdir exmenses (169 0 (0 3000
Crammaumcaticas serices (139,536 (TS
Consnltng expenses (185.55% (71,483
Husminess travel expenses (1E2 ARG (69,1106
Marketing mid advertising (142 5100 1
Admdmatouave expenses of the Boand of Dizectors (39,323) {47,100
Smtionary and prnting (66,314 i, 134]
Secuniy services (42,202 234,749
Informaton: services (43.315) w2 T
Blaterinks [56,744) ra3.943)
Insuranece expendés (16,0100 r17,2909)
Bank serriee (25,610 {8,740
Persoiniel eransag {37 624) (B892
Other (105,992) {165,78T)
Onher aperating cxpenses (4,523, 143) (2,635,138)
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Y KET
Other income/expenses

2022 2021
Cither income from andisstion of govemment gt Nae 21 36,898 020 165,565, 46
Amortisation of government grnt (Mate 27 G.08E,393 3,589,307
Loss on instial recognition of loans 1o banks under the Ken:Dals annual
EovETHTENT programme TVak £ (3,530 013 {1,954, 5445
Lzs o inmmial tecognition of loass o coromers under-the Ken Thls annual
povemment programie (Nos 9 2230, 104) 4027 ATy
Loss on inmal recogninnn of loass 10 customers under Isker povernmednt
programme (M ¥ (10911 03] 674 B K
Larse on imtial recogmation of loans 10 cusiomens unider the Agribusiness
Drevebspment Programme (NWaie 2 - (155,265
Lass on tnitia] recognition of loass 1o costomens under the Emplovment
Boadmap for 2020-2021 progeamme aid Enbek programme (M 9 {2.833,243 (S 54
Loas on inisial recognition of e loans 1o customens: Mo 5] (19,061,73%) {25, T82083)
Loas on ininial secognition of Joans o customers provaded as pan of the Toan
recerved from the Holding (M &) {16517 -
Ageocy fees on rural mongapes 2118776 155G
Ciher n'n'pmmﬂ'rt and F-'rm"isinu Exfeies (R840 -
Ckher moome/ (expenses) A205,519 (550466)
Ohhier incomie / expeises 1,184 963 (20,232,159)

Orhier income from uhlisaton of govemment grants wis recogaised as dncome hased on the results of complance with the
1o af the nl.ennrgmmmmenr pEEraes (Mer 21 )

Commitments and contingencies

Taxaton

Fazakdvetani commercal, ond i parncular, ux legislanon contains regulations, intempresation of which could vary, snd n
certainy ¢ades, the leplation could be smended with mdireet retzaspective impsct. Also, the Group's munagement's
iferpretation of e legislabon may differ from that of tax suthodties, and s o renlt, trensicoons carmied out by the Group
cintkd be estmated by tax qutharies in anather way, and this could result m an addimonal charge of txes, fines and penalties,
The Group's management believes that all necessary tay sceosbs wene fulfilled and, comespondinglv, these were no allowances
chasped i the statements. Tax penods remain open for § (fve) veams, Mamagemeni beleves that s mrerpietaion of the
legialation us at 31 Diecember 2022 and 51 December 2021 in sppropointe ond the Group’s posinens in rerme of axes, catrency
legislanon mud cstoms dunes will be confirmed.

Lagmal mmatiers

In the normal course of business. the Group i the subject oflegal acrions and claims. Management helieves that the potenril
labalittes, if any, resulimg from such sctiong and cldme will not have 8 matenal advesse effect on the Groap's future
conselidated fruncal posason or perfomuance.

Mimngement 1 unawere of aav sguificant, pending or threatened claims against the Group.
Credit related commitments

Coamiitmients and contingent banbines of the Geoop compire the following iems;

A1 December I December

SHET 2027

Credin related comminonenis
Loan commuitments 118,827,140 155,298,195
Fimance leate communments TE,254 310 -
Allowance for expecied credit [osses (555,407 {1,082 195

136,225,959 154, 20, 800
Oiperating lease Habilities
Upto | year 62978 doand
Commitmyentz and contngencies 136, 286,037 154,253,202
Credit relabed commitments

The wotal viutstandeng contmche commitments abave do nit necessanly represenr furuee cash requirements, a3 these credii
related eommitments may expiee or lenmnate withoot beang funded.
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EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YuKd BT

The Loan Commitment Agreement provides for the nghi of the Crosp o unidlaterally wathdmor fram the agrecrmme 1f
unfavourihbe conditions anse for the Groap, and if oo resources for lending are avadable,

The counrerparties o boan commamynt as st 31 December 2022 and 2021 are curent bormowers of the Grromp, g
industral eaterprscs with no eredit rating asdgned and classificd inro Stape 1, that ar not pass due on principal sud iicoes
poymienis us at the ceportag dare.

The following is an dsalyels of movemente in ECL allowance

Loan comminments 2027 2021
e 1 Stage 1
Ad 1 Januany 1,092,195 145,045
Procesds from businiess combination 176,940 >
Changes in BCL duriag the jei (413,638) 3,464
Takeover of FAGRE 150 & LR
31 December HER 47 1,092,195
Risk management
Imrrodduetion

Risk ts inherent i the Geoups sonvities, The Group manages these neks. deough 4 pocess of cnoing idennficarion,
measurement and monitomg, subgect to ok hmin and other contmls. This process of nek management s corical 1o the
Group's continung profitebility and ench wdividual within the Group is seeountable for the sk exposures relating o his o
b responitlilines. The Group s exposed to credin, liquidity and market sk, The Groap 1s also exposed to operstng msks
The mdqmu‘lt-—m eiek conirol process does oot inchsde business deks such as changes in the epvironment, :-nr]:.nnhgr el
usdustry. They are monitosed throngh the Groop's strarepse planning process

Rk sernsggemens sirmciure

The Board of Cifectors 8 ulmately sesponsthie foridennfving and controlling nsks; however, there are separate irdependent
bodies responsible for managing and monitoging rsks.

Board of Directors

The Board of Direcrors s fupl:-rl.i.:ib]r: fini the vaenll n=k management spproach and for approving the nsk seootenes and
PRl

.Hwﬂpﬂu'

The Managemenr Board has the responsibility to monitor the overall fisk process withm the Group

Furd swien

The Risk Managernent Department 15 responshble for implementing and maintaining msk related proceduzes to ensure an
ndepemdent conttul process, snd for montorng compliance with sk prinoples, pobeies and Bmire, aeonoee the Geoag The
Risk Managemen: Department comprises twe separte unirs: financial nsk management and credit ik departments.

Trearry

The Group's Tressury o responsible for managing the Growp's assets and babilines wod the ovenll Anancal strecoare, It i
also pramanly responsible for the funding s bguidisy deks of the Groop.

Ielernal Awdit

Ritk munagement processes throoghout the Group are sudited annually by the intemal audie funetson, that examnes bock the
acequacy of the procedures md the Group’s compliance with the procedures. Tnternal Audie discusses the eesubis of 4l
assessments with manapement and reposts is fndings and recommendations disectly to the Group's Board and Board of
Dhirectors,

Rk sedcarmremmnd il erportfos ryriems

The Giroup's mske are measured sing @ method thar seflects both the expected loss Beely 1o anse in nommal circumatnees
and unespected bosses, which sre an estimare of the wlomate ictual loss bused cn sarsical models

Informanon compdled from ol the busnesses o examined and processed 10 analyse, control and eardy identfy nsks. This
informaton is presented and explomed 10 the Board, the Boand of Dirccrors and the bead of each business division. The
repodt inchudes aggeegate credut exposure, credie metne forecasts, hold leny excepnions, bgwdiny tatios and sisk profile changes.
O o menithly basis, deibed sepordng of industre, customes and geograplue sks tkes place, The Board of Directors of the
Limup moeiver & comprehensive fsk report once 8 quarnes whichis desymed o provide all the necessary iformition fo assess
and comclude on the fsks of the Group

Fadigin midk somoexiraioes

In trder bo aveed excessive coacentrations of dek, the Groap’s pobioes and procedures inchsde specific pusdelines o focus on
mamfining 3 diversified portfolia. Identifiad concentraions of cxedit risks are contralled und managed sccondmgly,

i}
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Cordhit risk

Corechit mek ie the Ask thar the Group vall mewr @ Joss because s customers, chenrs or counterparoes faled 1o discharge then
coaittactual olifpatione. The Group manage: and controls coedit nsk by setmng bmis on the amount of bak it & wlling o
sccept dor individual counterparmies atid by mooftoring exposuses for such limite. For example, to svedd concentranons of
credst osk with pne or 3 group of affilmted companies, 3 limit of up 1o 2500% of the Group's equiny has been st
Counterpurty-bank limirs for mretbunk trasactions are established by the Shareholder.

The Gmoup has established s credit quality revew procese 1o provide eady sentificanon of posable changes m the
crodimwortliness of comterparnes, inchiding segular collaseral revisions, camed oot by the Groap’s desipnated buastness wnirs.
The credit quality review process allows the Group 10 asess the potential Juss as a result of the msks fo which it is exposed
and kake corrective sction,

The carmaag amount of componente of the consobdated ststement of Gnancial position without she tnfluence of ik
rmh'gc:-l'mn through the e of master nettng agreements ard eallatesal agroements, most xmdg reflects the masme
cedir CXpOSumE on these OO TS,

For mote detml on the maxcimum exposure 1 crediv pek fos each class of fnancial instrements, references shall be miade 1o
the speaific nores. For moe detal on impact of collateral amd other risk mitigaticon techniques wee Ny 5

ey grreoeios

In 2022, based on the results of the work cubed ot to vabidate and calibeate the composens wsed m caleutadon of expected
camdit logsus oa loams issucd o costomers, the Gronp changed the alporithm wicd tecaloulate expecied credii loses and the
onder of estmating its components, specifically, fw Growp applied a more integrated appecach 1o extimsating the panimeters
inchading Exposure at Defauls [EADY, Probabibty of Defanle (P10, aad Loss Given Delault (LGD, as well 20 m (T T
thi amount of expectied credir g (BECL)

In sddinon, in 2022, the Group undertook work fo change the spproach sesed o determine the mardcet valoe of collaenl, ic.
commiercial panpeTy,

Av o result of these changes, lonns to customers with the gross cirtyng amount of KT 71940, 719 thousand were pransferred
from Stage 3 o Stage 1, and wath the gross carevng amoun of KZT 43220060 thousand - from Stage 3 1o Stage 2,
avdd 1t also resulted in the increase in the mparment loss allowance recopnised for leans o corpomte costomers, of
KAT 33360417 thousand, part of whach was recognised i the consolidated statement of changes in equity i the smount of
KT 19,228 831 thousad as i maialy relstes to the previows reponing pedads.

Ax part of the methodology wed far dererminmg ot the end of ech repomng penod whether credin risk on the fnancm
mstrument has sncreased spneicantly sinck mitial recognaton, by aisessmg the change o the risk of 2 defandt occurning over
the remaimng life of the fAnancial matnement, the Group divided ofl Toane seaed 1o groups as follows.

The Group ciloulaes ECL based on several probabidity-wesghted scenarios, o messune the expected csh shondalls,
dasceauaicd v the cffccive unerest mare (ETEY, 4 wasl shorifall /2 diffenmoe beween the cash floas that aie dise 16 -4
entity following the contract and the cash flows thar the cnbity oxpects o recerve. The mechanisn of the BCL caleulations are
cutlined bodow and the key elements are as follows:

Pembabaliey of The Probability sf Definltts an estimate of the hkelihood of defadt over 3 given nme horizon. A default

Default (DY muy ool happen at 4 certaim nme over the assessed perind if the facilire hae oot héen previously
derecogmised and is still in the portfolio,

Exposure at Default The Exponm af Defanitis an esnmate of the sxposore at s funise defiult date, taking ineo account expected

(EALY chanpes i (EAD) the exposune after the reporting dare, inclading reparments of poncipal and inteses,

whether scheduled by coniract or otherstie, expeoied deswdowns an commitied Ticilites and scorsed
tinterest from massed poemene
Lz Coven Drelwult The Lias Croew Dhdiaed 15 an esnmare of the boss ansing m the case where defiault oocums at o given tme.
{LGI¥ [t 15 based on the difference betwemn the contractual cash Aows doe and those that the fender wonld
expeet fo pecerve, including from the sealisation of any collareral Tris usually expréssed ax o percentape
axf the EALL

The ECL albowance i hased on the credis losses expected th anse pver the bife of the asset [the hicame expecred credit loss
o LTECLY, unless there luas been no sgmificent tncresse in credit nsk slnce osiginition, in which case the allowance i hased
on the 12 -months cxpected coedst oss (12mECL), The [BnECL is the portion of LTECL that represents the ECLs that
result from defaolt cvents on s Enancial mattument that are possible aithin the 12 months after the sepaotting date. Bot
LTECL and 12mECL ase calcalated oa cither an indrvadual basis or o collective basis, depending on the esablished muateraling
thireshald,

59



Agranan Credis Corporstion J5C Comsabdated Financal Statements for 2002
EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
U0 KET

Tl Group hss establuhed a methodology 10 perform an assessment, ui the end of each reportng perisd, of whether o
firancial mstrumens's credin psk has incriased sgmificantly snce snitial recopnition, by consilenng the change n the nsk of a
defmult nocurring over the remaining life of the Enancial msrument, Based on the abave process: the Gioup groups its loams
trsimed as desenhed beloras:

Srapge 1: When loans arc first rocogmiecd, the Group recognises an allowance based on 12mECL. Srage 1 alo
mnchudes Josns and other credit lines, where the coednt msk has mmproved, and the Joan has been
rechassified from Stage 2

Brage 2 When @ boan has shown o siguificant incresse i credin risk since onginaton, the Group recogmses on

alloance 4t an amownt equal o the liferame FCL Stage 2 also mchedes Joans wed other credin lines,
where the coedan fzk has improved and the loan har been reclassified from Stage 2
atage 3 Crediimypaired brans, The Group necognses an-allowance a5 an amount egual oo e lfvdoe ECL
POCE Parchased or ofiginuted credst-mmpaired [POCT) assets ane financial sssets that are credis mpatred on
initial recognition, FOCL assers are recorded at fair value on infal seonpaibon snd et revenue i
subscquently recogrised hased on o credit-adjusied ETR. ECL i only recopnised or relessed 1o the
extear that theee i & subscquent change in the Iifetime expected credin losses.

In determining the Inss allvaence for expecied credin Josses on Boens 1o customess as at 31 December 2022 management
appled the following key pssumpticas:

*  PDw are estmared for appropaste poals, dependmg on the postfolio segmentation;

Pl for loans o legal entines - credin co-opemmves, for which oss allowance is measused t an amount equal o
12-month expecied credst losses (ECL) was 16400, and for loans. thar ase tot ceedit- impased and for which boss
allowance is measured in full, that & at an amount equal to Hfenme EOT was 50600

FDs for loans ssued 1o legal ennnes, intended for funding investment progects, which are not ¢redit-imipaired, and for
umpuired financiel nssets, with the groaes carrymg amount of less than 0.02% af the equity, and for which ke allowance
is emeenred ot a0 pmeunt equal to 12-month expected credir Iosses (ECLY were 12,3%, and for boans that sre nor
credit-impraired amd for which Joss allowance 1 messsired i ffl, thot i ot on amount equal w lifedme ECL, wen
42620

PLt foe loans fssued to legal entities, intended for funding ineestment progects, whach are aot credir-ampaired, and for
tmpuared Bononcud essers, with the groes carrying amount of more than 002% of the equiry, and for which loss
allowance is measured & an ot equal o 12-month expecred credst losses [ECL) wee b 109%, and for loass that
are a0l creditimpaired and for which loss allowsence is messaed in fll, st i 00 un amoant equal m lifedme ECL,
wers 70,

P for loans issued o begal ennties, for which Inss allowance & messused at s amount equal 1o 12-month expected
ececht besses (ECL) were 10,30 - Z330%, aed for Joanss that ase not credit-mpaired and for which loss allowance is
medsifed i fell, #haf orof i amouit eqial fo hietdne ECL, weee 54.50.796000

P fuor leins psswed o the groap of ndividoals, for which koas sllooance 15 mecsieed st an apson eisal 19 12 month
expected credis bosses [ECL) wene 8.60. 23,300, and for Inans thar sre ant credit-impamed and for which loss allowance
e measaeed i full, Mersr at an amoan: egnal to bferme DOL were S260-80.200%,

* The LGD s esttmated individually, for each loan.

LGDs for loans that are not coedir-impasred and for mmpared financal assers, anth the prosa carrving amoant of less
than (LO2% of the equity, raged Grom (U10%% o 100U, - LGS for credi-impaited fnancial asssts; vath the gross
carrying amount of more than 02% of the equaty, ranped from 090% 1o 1AL

*  The onoginally appraised value of the propery pledged 15 reduced by the lopudiny sanios, used 1o estimue BR. (Collaieral)
and E'IP'H.'EEE' Pl'l:l.ﬂﬂ! fior the =ale of eollteral For uﬂht-kﬂpﬁirﬂ[ fisincmal wssers, with the Eross CATTVINE amoant of
moge than 0.02% of the equiry, the sverape penod for sale of collitersl t& set @1 24 months, and bguedin ranos ase sera
O.50-1.40), depending cn the rype of colliaeral. For loans thst sre not crecir-impaired and for impdered fnancial asets,
with the gross carryeg amouat of less than 00225 of the ety the aversgpe penod for the sale of collateral s st to mnge
From 25 1o AT eaonilss, aod Isjpuadity ranos are sceas 05-100, depending on the tvpe of coltanensl,

*  Propery in the form of coltsteral m be tecerved m futame, and collarerals nor tevalimied dhiring the repoming rear, and
enllaterals for loans overdee Tor more than 5 venrs are excloded from collarerals valse

*  Abowable propecty is depreciated ot the rafe of deprecistion of 10 % of the espmated value, annually,

*  Manapement pbsa commdors the factor char collaveral maght nor be forcclosed due to restnctons smpesed (sach as mansfer
of eamershipy nights to third pamies and other resteictions) and /or whether it would be possible 1o sell pledged propermy
cete collaseral s forechsed (sdverse charcensnes of the pledged property and orher factos).
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ﬂﬁﬂ.ﬂ'ﬂ:q};ﬁ;ﬁnﬁ'dd.m

The Group condders 3 financial nstoment = defualt and thescfore, allocares o to Suge 3 (credy-mpared) for ECL
calculatons in-all coses when cose or two events that ate considered 10 be abjective cvidence of smpasrment ar debals of the
boans have occwrred

A financial asset i 10 be in defanh when the borrower 12 pase due more than M) calendar davs, or when one or tan events
midicate, a2 u par of 5 quabicinve assessment of whether 2 cusiomer i m defiult, that the Group is valikely 10 receme the
vatstanding contracnal amounts. When such events occur, the Group casefully considers whether the event should sesulr in
treanng the customer as defuulied and therefore, sesessed as Stge 3 for ECL calculadons or whether Stage 2 18 appeopoiase.
Such events mclude:

the batrower i past due nvore than 60 calendar davs and 15 & cross- dedad;
the borrower restmcnired the ssset ence or more times over the past reele months;

enforcement i court or banknipcy proceedings:

remsoaable and supportable imfoonancs 18 svplable that indicites & counterpanty i 1 sigmficant financial difficaltes, or
that the levels of the bomower's income or its salvency significantly detenorated;

otber evidence of impaisment o defiull considered ender the Groap's Provslon Caleulason Methodalogry,

In sccomlance with the Growp's pobey, fnancial msruments are minsferred from Srge 3, when aone of the crters for the
occumcnce of a defaull was observed at the reporting dase;, nor the reclissificaion comes defined m the Grooap's Provision
Caleulspon Methodalagy have been met. The decision 15 1o whiether an asset should be clissified as Seage 2 or Smge 1 depends
on whether thent is m mdication of an ncresse i credit sk a1 the reporting dore sivce instal secopmition, eod whether the
recluisificaton cntena defined dn the Giroup’s Provigion Cilculanoa Methodolapy have been mer, These corens mchude the
fallounng: A coedit-mpaired finmcial ssien i transfemed m the cxtepory of fnancial ussets with indicators of sigmafican
wncrease in credit tisk, provided that the connterpary has repaid the outstanding smounes for s period of a least 12 months
which essits in the decrease i the gross carrying amiunt of the fnancal asset as of the daie when allowince for sxpected
credit losses (ECL} was creted. to the amount equal to, or lower than, the noistanding amomi af the dme when the fnencial
aseot was transfermed to 'coedit impaared financial assen’, and if events that are considered 10 be the evidenice of the asset in
be credil-mpacred sccordmg o the criveria esmblshed by the Groap's Provision Caleulation Methodology, have not occurred,
at the date of assessment. 3 financial asset with mdicatoss of & sygmbicint increase i credin nsk is transfirred o the catepory
ol financtal assets for whach allowance for expected coedit losses i messured ar the smount equal to 12-month expected credir
laszes, provided thar the counterparty bas repad the owtstanding smoonts, which results in the decrease i the pross carrying
ameunt of the Brancal ssset s of the date when allowsnce for expecied crodit losses [ECL) was created, 1o the amount equal
to, or lower than, the outstinding amount at the ome when the financial asser was munaferred to ‘the finsncil assets with
indicators of A significast bicresse m coadil ek, and if no sgpnifcant mesease nocredat msk wocurrsd an the fnmncial assen 19
withe dare when allowance for expected coedit bosses (FOL) was Creted,

Therefore, the crtera o be met for kane w0 be eransferred (reclisaified] berareen the stages of impmrment mclude bur oot
linzited 2 one or more of the folkswing condidons:

= = penod Fom th date of mandstory westrecrunng, dusiog which the Gnancal condition of the borrower Tes detetorated
sigmficeny, is 3t least 12 months, For lonns issued ro mdividuals, sssessed on a callecrive bass, o mindmusn prmod of 6
minatha can he vsed, based cn lstomeal stamsnics o FECOVETY of restrocrared kans lmusd 1o mdivichealy, that sndicetes 2
stahilisition of dynamice o hold overdue paymenis, starting with the soventh pavment. For other evears, which ane
obsective evidence of impalrment, - from the ame of exclasion of the evenr that caused the stage of credin impaimment 1o
have deterorated,

= the aggregane amount of payments mude by the horower after he dset ams recopnised eredin-imipaired, s goater or
eijtial tis the amount past due eatlier.

Trvainry urmd dmfertuamd redeon iy

The treasury and mterbsnk selatsonsdups of the Group comprise secoid-tier banks (STBs), inchading miarentesd ks
provided by STHs, o which éxternl credit rongs are sssigned by ar leass by ane of the three intesnarons] oiting sgencics
{Frich R:L‘iﬂp;l-. Moady's Investors Serace, S8 Clohal Ramigy, For mnstsement of intecbank teansac ions with COHIOACTPATC,
the Group assesses each conmerparty ssperaiehy. For counterparties with un extermal eating provided by inteenanonel nitng
apencics ot Other avilable sowrces, the Group uses the probabibee of defaal sccording o the Moody's Investors Sevice
{corporane mangs;.

gty g

For sgobisiness lending, the Group’s stisctural divisions mvalved o caleibitmg provisions perform work w defémmine
whether there are indicators of a sigreficant increase in credy ek, as well se loan mparment /default The credit nisk
asscrsment 2 based on vanons hiseoncal, current and forward-Jooking informabon such as:

&l
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* Histoncal Ansnoal nformarion rogether with forecass and budges prepared by the chent, This fisancial infurma ton
wcludes sealised ol expecied resales, solvency matics, bquidiy moes wnd dny other rlorant ritios to measure the
chiemts financial perfommance.

" Macroeconomse nformanon

. Qther reasnnable and supportable informanon aboul the quality of the chent's management and capabalines thar is
relevant fo assess the entiny's perfosmance.

Espaury ar Dol

Esposure st defanlr (EALY) is the gross canping amonnt of financnal instruments subgect 10 mpurment assessmene and
reflects both the sldlity of the client to merease ire debs ds it approaches defaulr and the possbiity of early repavment.

[ainr odienr J:lp;r;ﬁ'.ﬁ'

To determine the loss gven default L1, the Group takes anto congidemnon cash repayments from the bomoser after
defandt (Posr-Diefaulr Rare - RR (Cash)) and colluteral on the loan. The RR [Cash) is dssessed omee a gquarter. The valee'of the
collateral is reviewed within the spproved dme frame for the revaluation of collateral wsets, agreed by the Groap.

At part of determining cash flows, monthly cash tepayments on defanlted loans {ror moloding foreclosare amouns) are
urmnbysed for ar beast the Bier 5 [five) vears snd meonthly comulstive BR (Cash) for 5 (fee) vears is cobeulaned.

The credin sk assessment i based on o standarbised LG asset=ment framework that resulis i o certain LGD mite. e
LAGLY rases take o acoount the expecied EATS in comparsan o the amount expecred 1o be fecovered or realised from any
callascral heldk.

Sipurficant increars o ol FrE

At each repornng cate, Group assesses whethers e ceedil dsk of o financal mstmment has incoeased sgmificantly sece mieal
reapriite, When oubing the sesessment, the Group conaders the change in the gsk of 3 default occustng over the expected
life a2 the financial instrument mthet than the change o the amount of expecied cedit lesses, The Group compares the sk
of dafiuly on o fimancal instrument as at the sepormng dae with 1l risk of defiult on a fnancsl wetmment as o the dse of
sl pecogrition, and conaders teasonable and suppaceablo information that i wvadable withour undue cost or effant, which
ndicates s sgnificant increase m credit dek from the ttme of minal recopiton of the sebevant instrumen

1 reazonable and supportable forward-lookmg miomuation is availsble without undue cos o effont, e Grvup does o rely
soiely on information on overdue payments 10 determuining whether credit sk has meressed sgmeficantly ance. inarial
tecogmition. However, when such mformation 1= oot availabbe, the Group sses mfnemation on overdue payments 2nd the
existence of restructunng of the bomower's debr in detesmimang whether the credit pak has incresed sipnificanth smce the
tritial PECUPTITHIT of the azzet.

sty S aigelt swarwied o a nledtive bars
Drependent on the factars below, the Group caloulares ECLs either on a collecnve ar om an indeodaeal basiz.

The Group assesses FCL oncan indnidial basis for the follosang arsets:
. all Arincial assets wath mdicators of unpairment and,/ar default with 2 ronal debt of more than 0,2% of equiry 45 5t the
previous reporting dofe soconding e the financial statements;

- freasnery and interhank relsbonslapy (for cxample, amounis dioe from: banks, caily equavalents and mvesimens secunnes
mgasured st amoctised coet;

. fimancrl assets that were clissified as POCT g the tme of derecognition of the onginal Toan and tecopmidon of the
new doan #s & vesaltof debr testmscrunng,

The Group caleubes ECL on @ collectve bass for fiuncal assets with oo indscarors of impainmint/default and /o debre of
bets than (2% of equity a2 ar the previous sepoming date scconding o the fAnancial snrements, When performing &0
aspegemint on a collective bams, segmentanon of loans with smdar sk charactesdos for collective bnpaiment evaloation is
performed. HCLs for wssers amessed om & tollectve basis are calculsred for each sepment separately.

Forard-noking infrmamay avd walinl fosemes eaarmar
T i ECL models, the Group relics on macrocconoma: farecass infonnanion on the GDP growth rates 15 sconomic inpss.

The chowe of the mactoeconomic fictor &8 due to the Bt that it is ooe of the most peneral (beoad) mdicasors, in economic
tezms, thas reflecn the miluence of mioe other factors,
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T nhaam forward-looking miommution, the Groop selies on duis from coemal soaress (official webste of the relevant state
authonnes, the National Bank of the lepublic of Kazakhsetan and othet extemal informahon sowrces). The rahle below shows
the values of forecast economic varables/assumprions used in each econémic scenana to assess [ECLs The data for the
cobhumn Subsecpuent vears” (s 9 loog-teom aversge, wod therefore, 1 the same for all scenarios as ar 31 December 2022:

Assigoed prodabidi,
I-l'g facrs ECE scenasio % oo
GlIP gremeky
ﬁphmi:m: 105 153
Base T (a3
Peramnzibe e AT

The Grroup's fnancul assers and Rabilines are concenteated in the Repabbc of Kaeakhsmn.
Liguidity risk and funding management

Liquudity nisk 15 the figk thar the Group will be unabde to meet s payment oblipanons whea they fall due under aommad and
stress conditioig, To it this dak, mumigement has dreerafied funding sources. Management manages asiets with Hgwidity
bnormandd, amd momitors fafure cash Heas and bepacity on o daily basis. This ncorposates an sesepment of expected cath fows
and the availalality of high-prade collateral ohbich could be wsed 10 wecure additional funding if recured.

Ay of et Babilier by reavasmicy soudraciue’ mustiniied

The fable below summanises the maninty profile of the Group's fnanciol habibnies a1 31 December 122 and 31 December
221, based on conteaciual wdiscolmited payments,

Lrerzarmd
and less thanp  Fromr fro ! Froem dm & Fromé i ld Mone thao
Ar 3 Dhecember 20EE Fernorrely rnnthe aranths raviar il I yorar Tiesad

Man-dedvarive financial lahibines:
Laans froen rhe BE

(Fowennmens GRS e | 3,350 4,090 115 - 0511
Lesare frean the Parent
1 ey LRLRLE S L4747 50l T L4 00 5,005 2 R 240,542 961

Ly andl halanoes trom
banks and orlssr fEnacedal

BTRiTaTaTti e e TS B 3020 250331 6,220 008 19,031,590 LR LA 154 2T RI2
Lesant feven st and buadge

GFFAMESADONE KT & HEE Tas 3 BOAL 3] B1AGsIR HB4rd03z 26055851687

Diebi sectirisies msued 2104 450 144441™ 13, 3064 0150 32545056 44 5E0AR0  A2E 960053

Giovernment grants = - . 3173708 - 347708

Ohther financaal liabilities _BISHIN0  ZAISATS  SATO 244767 GAOSTS TI26RL
Toral Habakees 33 R6 9T 21, {1,450 L350 LAS9443F  LI26,947621 1,354, 146418

e
ainef fpxs than From fred Fromdwbd Froméow 2 More dhan
At 3 December 2021 T vty rERCH monifs montis 1 vioar Toral

Non=derivarive Mnancisl Halsilivies:
Loans from the Parcen

I::.nu'q:lnn_r Ta4a7 1240707 FE0 30S 14 479050 170 3iH, Ban 15027 600
Leasis feom arse -|d.]udﬁ:-r

nEgantRaticns - 1,477,238 4.170,159 TEE0407  MO2GLATY 350,467,083
Daehhr secumities reued : 4, T215TK A TT2ATT 2RI 20706202 35743790
CrOvErImenT g = = - HA731TS - 6,873,178
Chther firsincial Bakalines 2 E22 A0 = — 1,144.233 278067 154
Total Habilities 20.502.232 9441613 10,402,218 A3,207157 TI6A36,3T0 B166T9.590

The tahle below shows the coptraciual mutunty of the Groop's contractusl commitments and conhingencies, Each vndraosm
I eomimatment is wcladed i the dee bad contumng the eariest dace 5t can be dean down,

Lexg than 3 Froer 3 o 1 From Tee 5 More than

Fricritlrs FIRORIETE VA F pourd Tevtad
e v | 147 081 454 = - - 13T 081 4546
2 15508 905 - = = 155200 005

The Group expects that not all of the contegent lalelises or commiments wall be deawn before the expiry of the
oMM,

ek}
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Marker nisk

Miarkes nsk s the nsk that the faie value oc futune cash flows of o financial instenent wall fuctiane due o changes in marker
vamahles such ss intesesr rates and foregn cxchanpes.

liderind vy frd

Intensst rate mek anses from the possibley thar changes in enterest ates will affect futare cash flows or the fiie vahues of
bBrancial mstruments. The istenest rite for assets and babilitics of the Group is fced.

Currimgs ric

Cutreney ok ix the sk that the value of 3 financial insnement will Bucruste due 1o changes in foretpn sxchursge mies,
The followang table shows the foreign currency exposare strecmure of fnancial assets and Halilines as at 31 December 2022

At December 20232

T [0 EUR RLB Total
Arsein
Cish and cash eoquvelenss HG6 S50, X0 5,044,030 - = V7244300
Amonnrs due From enedin msmhrhons O S1E &7 = - = 10,518,187
Lagns to cusiamess TR A04.700 - - - TIE304. T
Finnnce lease recevables 203 Ha' 553 = - - 386955
Orher fmancial aners 5505593 - - = 5515 553
Tonal aesers 1,300,856 510 5,934,020 = - L30T, 70,539
Liabilities
Ameunts due to the Shereholder 100,001,734 = = - 10,00, 736
Amonnrs dae 1o 1he Government G747 873 - = = o0, 74T BT
Amounis due o stk and budges
DIgasations THZR50,442 - - - 182 5501 442
Amoanis due o credis MR TEmE L 19527517 - = - V522 A1
Crelar secunties 1smed M4 T - ~ - TE4 IR 108
Cober Anascil Habiliies 3 ET 452 1,233,432 334514 25 204 T 092 4
Total Habdlities 14,730, 108 1,233,532 554,514 25230 316,543,360
Met positinn 487,106,211 4,700,488 {554,514} (25, 206) 491226079

H Decemiber 2020

HET LISE? EL'R KB Towal
Argeis
Cash and cash equivilens M2R33,173 - - - 102,853,173
Amouand doe from ceedit mafitutions 12708512 — = = 12,7851
Loans mo cusjomess 656227 - = - B:65,016.227
Finnnee lesse recavshles Wh2oh42 = = - R
(ther asacts 4066637 = - - 4,960,637
Total assets 95,171,191 = - - 78171101
Linbiliiies
Svmoants due mohe Shaehodder O 200 22 = - - 04 260,433
Mmvvarnts daie fo state and budger
GFEA s BonE bdin B12,355 - = 166 19,095
LDielst weciantun inrmed 196,454,238 = = = 190654, 208
Ovher babikrics 27,m67,008 ~ - 27,967 3R
Tatal liabilities ___ 485,656,003 - - = AB5,606,093
Mt panition MG ATEAE = = = 309475098
Opesational risk

Owperatcnal ik is the ok of loss ansiag from systems faihsre, uman emor, fraod o extémal events. When controis fail 1o
pertomm, operatice] nsks can cause damage W reputation, heve legal or regubitory snplicatsons, or lead 10 fnancial lose. The
Gitnup cannot expect to elmumare all operational niges, but o control framewark and monitoring and sesponding s potential
risks could be effective wols to manage the ricks. Controls include effeceve segrepation of dities, sccess rghts, authonssron
and reconcilisnon procedurcs, staff wning, and ssscssment processes, mchsding the use of mternal oadic,



Agrunian Credit Corpontion 150

Emwnlld-irnd Financzal Srarements for 2002

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TN KZXT

Changes in liabilities arising from finaneing activities

Arrvomes e Totaf
Aumeinenies Arrroaring Dby Amounts  tostate amd  Wabilities from
dlue fo the e i crodit EPCUFTIES die o the berdgret fnancing
Sharehofder  nsaririons sssued  Government organisarions Acniviges
Careying arnouin ai
31 December 2020 B, 128 0050 = 164,197 450 - 44,701 373,095,653
Addidons LB.501 190 B3.051 457 T 000 35,029 1% 207,571,852
Heparinen| BI85, 190) - (FESEEIHY  (PROO0O00) (10 E52,235) (71322574
Cvidends declared 3,762,035 = F & = [5.762015
[Inadends pasd (13,762,035) - - - = (13,762,035
Dhscount / premiom on
intial tecogrinng of
liwbalitEes ar fidr vobps (42303 260 = 4,600,444 (BM1O78 MLIGRTTE) (63,781 580
Reclassification ak 14) = — (33914 050 = - (23,914 950
Recogtised az a resuly of
the lusiness combmaton - - 7,732, 454 - 112360228 L0, 052 684
Cither G025 652 - (925304 3711576 BT R4 L3 9B8.170
MOt at
3 December 2021 04, 260, 422 — 196,654,238 — 166,814,395 457,729,055
Carrving amount at
M December 2021 4,260,422 = 194,654,258 - 166,814,305 457,729,085
Acbguisiiog of a
subisidinny 11,371,533 JSEEITY 15280, T3 = - 198,834,505
Addinons B A, 000 TR2TT (R S0.250, %56 14000 0 31 428 726 U8, 230, LREY
Repayment (14,369,037) (GESRISG (173900000 (U000 (160210610 (124,579,048
Diwvidends declared G, A, 526 = - - - 6,080,528
Drrvidemils paid (6,16, 528) - - - - {0 L0, 524)
Dhscount,/ premm on
kit pecopriton of
Hahiliries at fair wulue (4 BOL1BY)  (27,054,501) {(IR2EST)  (2,331.301) (18,374 080) {TEURG01
T Hhier i, 530 O LR 2,745,560 12070, 364 13,902 462 40875093
Carrying amaount ai
31 December 2022 11,1, 736 79522517 R4, 728,108 60,747,873 1BZ.R50 442 ROZ, B0 676

* b e consodidated clutement ol cash fows for the year ended 3 Decembes 20282 mecladed m redemprions of debs secunitics
sl 1 the repail oo of BT 22,940,000 thonsand, which co ihie smemnt cutstandang on sccunties of
the 161 bomd issue under the 3nd bond propramme, AGEKDG (PIN BZ200003507), with a redempron dare of 30 December
2021, reclesafed inta ‘orher Wabilines” as g3 31 December 2024 o 18

Lhe stem *Other’ mcludes, excepr discount; premium for the pesod, the effecr of weered but not pad interest on kahilites
arising from financing scivines. The CGroup reeogmised pad mrerest as cash Oows from operating activitics.
Fair value of financial instroments

All aesern apd Babifinies for which G value i medsured or disclosed morhe Arancial atele ments are categunsed within the fair
walue hicrarchy, descibed s folbows, based on the lowest level anpur that s sipadficant to the far valoe messurement as a
whahel

& Level 1; quorted praces {unadjusted) msctive markeds for identcal assets of Elilibes

®  Level 2 vahaton rechmgues for which the lowest level impuat that & sipnificant o the furr valee messuement s directly
orindinectly nheanrabie

®  Level 3 valianon fechogques for shich the Jowest level nput thar 4s significent 1o the fur value mearorement 15
umnesheenyabde.
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The bollowing table provides an annlysis of fnoncial mstrments whese fair vabaes are disclosed by bovels of the hsenrchy of

somarces of fals value

Ai 3 Drecember 222

Assete with @ disclosed fasr valiae
Caeh and cash equvalens

Leans 1o banks

Leam to customiess

Finance jease poeivibbes
Investment securitics

Cither fancin assets

Liatsititics whose fuir value is disclosed
Aamount due ™ the Bhacholder
Amoonn due 1w eredit insnmanons
Amourrs dhue 1w state and bisdpe
OCERSA 0

Amounes doe m the Goverrment
Db secamtics issoed

Accounts pavable

U Mhee financial lipbadines

A1 31 Discember 2020

Aancis with a disclosed fair valoe
Caah and ensh squrmions

Loans oo baaks

l ATATIN 73 CXIFTHTETS

France leace recenahbles

Investment secunbess
Lhher fenancial assers

Liabilivies whose Fair value is disclosed
Amoann due nr the Bhacehokdis
Az due v faRe aml budpe
GTERIUEA OO

Taehir sevisrtuie :lnplpn'l:

{ither firmncal liakibines

Falr valie sncarurernens

Input date Inper dara fopat data

Voo oy wil" Lewed I of Leved £ of Leved 1 Toral
W Dhecemiber 2123 172,484,306 = ITAAR4 500
M Thecembes 2022 = 10,124 B0t - 1124 160
31 December 3123 — 5110955750 GTAIRLTE 60U 373045
3l Drecember 2022 — JIROITEIE 19A0G6RR.  MISIEIL
31 Drecemmber 2022 = 3 - =
M Thegeorbex 20123 - 5,593,593 = 5,503 503
31 Drexenaber 3022 = H341LTG 5411230
3 Diecirnbes 2023 = HOSGEDOH R LE T
31 Diecember 2022 ~  IEEAI08T - 152810376
31 Drecermbes 2022 —  GILEMGTER = bR NG TEH
31 Diecember 20122 130325058 217938 543 = AEA4n154]
31 Dreceember 2022 = 2070 = JiTnn63
31 Diecember 2022 = 7602 554 TAIZER4
31 December 202 102653173 102 ES3ITS
31 Diecomber 2021 13650671 - 365 6T
3 December 2007 BeBol 05 14130 B3 AYE IRDATY
il Blecembher 2071 - 3830575 4 207,425 |10 R0
i Bieeember 2031 B33 19 = B35
31 December 2062] - 4 960,657 - A 560,637
31 December XKL — BT 550 BT A7 530
51 Dwecinber 2021 1641515 20k = 160,505,209
31 Decenbes 2T - 107086412 197,006,612
3 Dwscember 2021 - 04T 054 37 06T B3E

Fibvaveciad fnntravmrewin st mrvosred st G vadee (v e vowalinsesd vonsolidaied [aimens of Waaciay poumtion

A compasiean of the eorpmg amoonts ond far values of the Giowp's firaneial insrmuaments presented oche formcial
staternents s provided below. Fair values of non-fiancial assets and non-francial labilines ase aor presented @ the mble.

I Drocember 2022
Lnrecogiised

Carrying amount Fufr value prafirfloss)
Frnanaciol asaets
Cash and cash equivalans 172484 30 172484300 -
Lcming fo banks 10514187 10,124,190 (303080,
Eewaris dr carsainmers 15,304, T G5 A7 G S (1015 30 755
Funance lease receimbles 05 R0 553 343 508,00 A1 350,643,
Uhber financial assers B A05.E03 S50 5008 5
Financial labilities
Amoants doe to the Shareholdes 1) (0] TR 83411236 7,590,300
Amounts due p-ceedil instinstions M522517 B0, 364,000 (142,392
Amotnts die b state snd budper coranisitions 18285042 152810376 30,044 Dt
Amoumts due re the Govesnment 40,747 BTS ) 330,76 411,105
Dbt securibes msued 344,728 LOR 354,403,541 30,304,567
Cirher financzl liahilires T 402 pEg T B G =
Toral unrevogmised change in unrealised fadr value (91h,411,53%)
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J1 December 20327
Lnrecugrived

CREryTryg At Lair valie T (Toss)
Financial asseis
(Zash wsd cush I!qlﬂlﬂl-l!llﬂi 103A53,173 12 B35, 375 .
Loans to bunks 12,708,512 13,650,671 2159
Lxans to Custommie 665016227 BTE, 209,479 (86,726,745
Fimanece leuse recevailes 0,626,642 LR RITRA Y (1,405 B42
Investment secnmhes 30 325 B35, & (3434
Oither finanoal aszeis d,ﬂﬁﬁ,-ﬁﬂ-— 4,406,657 -
Financial Habilities
Amioninis duie b the Sharehodder Gy 2 422 BT (47 530 Tl 203
Amiounts due to state gnd bodper oganizstons f66, 514,305 160,515,109 6,200 186
[ebt secunnes ismed [ 654238 197 Ofe, 512 432374
Ciiher (inanceal liahilites 27007038 2T 05T L08R =
Tetal unrecopnised change in unrealised Fair value (74,204, 1613

The following descabes the methodolopes and asmmpoons used w determine fair valnes for those financial metnunents,
wiuch are not recorded ar fair value in theve consobdaned fmamcial starements.

Aty wirel fir radr sppredeater e presewd ale

lFor fimancial assers md financial Habilines thar are bawd or have 3 shorr maneire Jess than theee monthe), it 1= sesumed that
thidr present value approximares fair vahue. This assamprion 18 also aprplied 1o demand deposite and sivings sceounts withoat
4 specific matanry,

Fovad rvde rurirmesents

For ksted debt mstmments, the fair value i based on quoted madest prices. In case of non-gaoied debst mstruments, o
discamnitedd carh flow model s used using the curent interest raie, raking into sccount the remaining persod 1o matsnty for
debt instmaments with similar terms and credit dak.

Fuar kwme 1 banks ond loans to cusmemess Fumwes cish fows are discounted WSNE AN AVerspE mamket e of Booncl
instruments wath analar maronnes, based om sudstcs published by the MBRE. This approach was used to meamere the foir
value of Inans m customers. A5 a1 M Dhcember M2 an sreTage markes intereal et wan 1 500 L 21 0005 paa- {31 Decembes
2030 1054 1670 p.a'].

Fot liahdsties whose fwr value is disclosed in the congolidared financaal ssatements, futire cash flows are discounted wing the
muirkel mieres rotes culoelyied using ihe l:l-ll.ﬂll.l-l.lp el ul.i:uﬂ_ all ohservable inpurs such as KASE yield curve asd cosda
spread for the mung of the Group adpused by matudty, published by Bloomberg, As a1 31 December 2022, the mtared inferes
rate wsed 1o mearne the Bur value of loans ised was 140.12-17.04% poc (1 December 20210 1042-1247% poag. Fumnie cash
flerws inclhude repayment of a principal debr and twrerest caloulated at the contractual interest ere spplied ot pricipal debe.

. Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The ﬁ'lﬂl‘l‘!'iﬂgl;'lﬂl‘." cherws zeaets and lalbalines l'l:,'E!:FEETEEI mannatiee See Mow 27 Bark ,H..uw g the Crtoup’s contractual
T EEATTE nepavmed nhﬁg;nfnm:.
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Segment reporting

The Group’s eperations ate bighly mregraied aml constmite 3 dngle husiness segment for the purposes of TFRS # Yoo
Repartiyg. The Ciroup’s assers sre located mthe Bepullic of Basakhsmn and the Group genetates income from operations
comniducted within and associared wath the Repullic of Fazaklsan, The Chief Operadng Decision Maker, in the cate of the
Crroup, the Chatenan of the Boand, receives and reviews dse informanem on the Girowp == 4 whole

Related party transactions

In accordance with IAS 24 Rabred Parsy Discdvmres, parties sre considered 1o be relired if ome party has the abilin 1o contmil
the otlser pasty or exercise sipraficantenfluence over the otkes paty in auakeng Grancial o operanon decssions In conradering
each possible related parry relanonship, anmenton @ directed 1 the substance of the relanonship, not merely the legal fonm

Relured pames msy enter i wansacions which unrelited partses might nor. Prces and rerms of such rranssctions may differ
fram piices amd tenms of tamactons beoween unielated parties.

The Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan contmols the Group's operstions through the Shareholder

The autstanshing balances of related parry transactions se at thie énd of the reporting period and respective amounts of income
and expenses are provided below

M Blecermibers 2052 JF Drecermber JE2T
Errrities Emeirfes
s urager
ST ETATARINT
Nomminal covrril ol Govermments  Noaminad eowrmnl of  Genvemnmernr
fnferrss the nefared  fimieresy the refarad
eate, % Sharchalder Sharcholder  omganivecons e, % Shureholder  Sterchokier  ognivetions
Axsciy
sl Ii.ﬂ] I.;ph
g ] " o L] 104,75 00 - - - IR485330
Invesimenr secunics - = - = QILI1200 = 7355 .t X | p 1]
Lavans yu gusmAmers _ — - — LELE - I 282,554 =
Curmus Corpuen b
HECTETIE TR ARt - - - 1. 350,814 - - 1,765 1
Waloe sl mix sl
other mxes receivabl . - = E3FL5RG = - = 1.080,711
Lizbikuies
Amonmee dhee o e
Slagrchalder ab-100 00 0100, 75 = LINERED RS2 = -
Adncnmba doa o the
(L [xE]] - — BILTAT BT - - =
Aornvnis oy o stie
andl bodgee
durpdn] s (EAR]} - H LT il - 166G, A 14 208
Amiunm due froem
oredin BiEurcme i = MBS = = = - -
Lhche securibes sed 7000500 172, A70053 Sl BH T 701500 135,165 T = 1L 0
Dheferesd pomporne
e fx linbdenes - = = 12,8 307 - - = 1A 451
Preferesd VAT
Kuihilirss - - : RELR WA TR
Licnwemminmi grasy - Sl BN A1 080
Cther imbilimes = = - 5msITH - I 014,950 - 2 Ta AN

T



33,

Agraman Credis Lorponsnon JSC Consoldated Fnanctal Starements for 2002
EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YN KZT
ﬂﬂﬂg_ 2024
Entities Enritiex
noder HREr
COMUTAT  Eroveren- corrrron  Govertments
erirrrrend oof the refarad comiral of the relaned

Sharcholder  Shareholder organisatfons  Bharcholder  Sharcholder orgrn ons

Interest meome on cash and

cah spavalents - - 3,139,827 - — 235202
Interest income o
Invesrmen! secormties = 32,362 1,164 - 15,250 1475
listerest imconme on lnans (o
Customers = Q&7 185 - = 17276 TT =
Interest expense on loans
v [B A0 A9 (26,849 (1027448 (10513 105 = (10,907 044
Inietest expense an deb
BECLRTCE Eattd {16,389 660 (1076581) (10640035 (7620 T4 (R0 (10035048
Accrund of credst losses - (08,177) {LE61) - (359,113 -
Chiheer Incosme | cxpenees = = @3 5RG4]9 = = AEMLTT]
Carporite i ome T
CRPEnST - - (2,830, 310) = = (2,202,454
Key management remuneration
Foey manapement resmuneeation compriscs the follomang;

2022 2021
Wapes. and ralinies and other shoct term benefirs 176,823 167,210
Remunceanoa of the members of the Board of Directors 25,771 32 Wy
The Board of Diteciors admunstrative expensee [{a (] 11,709
Focil secunty costs [RALI] 18,247
Total key management remiunetation 228,300 220 533
Capital adequacy

The Grmup muniins an acovely managed caputal baseé to cover risks inherént m the business. The capital adequucy of the
Company dnd irs Subsadiary i momtored using, imong other measuees, the sisod established by the NRRE,

Asat 31 December 0022 and 31 December 2021, the Company and the Subsdian: were in full complnce with the cxremaly
impoded capita requrements (3 December 2021 the Company was in foll compliance with the exterally inpased capanl
TEGUITEmEE),

The Company's e the Subsidiary’s capital management policy bs o ensure the compliance with extesaally impased capital
tequirements wud maintam a credet mting and caparad sdeguacy msos, which ensuce the susamahls operaten snd makknise
sharcholder vafue.

The Group manages and reviews the aracture of the Group's capital gven the changes i cconomic conditions ansd
charncrenstics of nsks of the repes of s aotivebes

The NERK roquires that the orgemsations enpaged in cemam types of hanbing activity to mamtain o Tier | capital adeguacy
ranno (K1} of at beast 6% of the assets; copiral adequacy ramo [k1-2) o the smount of ar least &% of astes and Hek-weighted
contingent Halalites and commirments, and a towl capital adequacy rato (k1-3) of ar least 129 of the asets and contingeni
kabalities and commimments weighted based on dek and operational sk
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As ot M December 2002 and M Drecember 2021, the Company's cupetal adequacy mtos caloulated in scoordance with the
requiscrnents of te MBRE were as folkows:

A1 Pecernber Fl December

2022 202
Tier | capital 3025494 568 260 ATE 20T
Tiar 2 capital 11 ARE171 4,605 040
Total equity 403,882 739 30,170,247
Risk-wesghbed sssets 791,514,477 T, 484 068
Commitments and contingencees 3413573 T7 444 408
Orperatianal dsk 25887 Ta5 2. 7RA.TTR
Caprtal adequacy rats (k1) 3BT 32420
Capital sdequacy rvo (k1-Z) $5.11% RN
Capital odequacy mts (k1.3) 20.24% 3L.0a%

Az at 31 December 2002, the capaital adesuasy ratiss of the Company's subsdiary calculored o sccordince with the
'n:qu.iur.uﬂﬂ:l of the SMARK were as Follows:

Ji Dyecermber
2
Theer | cupiral 136 280,751
Tier 2 capital 2 6EIT4
Tutal capital 136,500,128
Total assers 455,259,494
Risk-weghred srsers and comumitrments und contngent Babilibes 459,694,541
Clpemtional msk 19,680, M6
Capual sdequecy ragio (k1) 28,08
Capital sdeguacy ratio (k1.2 20.45%
Capital sdequaecy rato {k1-3) T
Subsequent events

' 30 December 20022, the Mintater of Laboar and Social Protecoon af the Populabon of the I:Lupul:rﬁ.: uf koazakhsran
miroduced amendments and addinons  the “Rules of the organisation and fimncng of measmes for ssdsanoe 1o
entrepreneual initiatrre™ No. 47 of 7 Febroary 2022, In accordznce with the amendments mtroduced, a new mechanism for
grenting mucro-loans to foung people through an apend, the Group, hes been established for theae purposes, m Sarch 20235,
the Groap tecewved the fundmyg of BT 2% balboo for its snhsequent distsibution as leams to voung people, followmg the
decison mude by the state empiorment and social welfare deparmment of a relited remen. Finmnang 1= expeced to be provided
tor dbowl 5800 Dhusiness entifies ser up by voung pesple, Micto-loans wall be grinted m pecsons of 21- 35 vears of age; loans
bear & nomim] mterest ruve of 2500 and matore i 57 vesss, Inoum, the Goop will reeeive the apréed commission
percentage for the sgency services if is seT m provide

In january 2023, the Group fully repasd the amounr due 1o Citbank Kazakhstan 15C, totalling K7 T 8.2 hillion, outstanching
asar ¥ December 2022, iy accordance with the contractual ALY,

In Februner March 2023, the Company received losns of KZT 140 bilion from the Minisiry of Fuance of e Republic of
keazakhstars; Joans bear a nomenal eace af 4,01% and matuse 1 MNor r 2024, intended for fmancing sprng el works.

Lrn 24 Jamuary 2023, the Grogp mede payment to redéem mfull the bonds ssued ender the progranime KZZ0M0002749
{RAFIh3], rotalling KET 17.6 billion.

Un Il Febnury 2023, e Group made papment i redeem m fll the T fssue of the Ind bond programome
A KZ2CMWH2TAL, sombmg B0AT 10 ballon

T



